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Chairman’s statement

The impact of digital media on our traditional business
has grown rapidly since broadband became mainstream
and the economic downturn, which started in 2008, has
served to accelerate that pace of change.

RICHARD JEws0N, CHAIRMAN

YOUR GROUP HaS faced the challenges
prescated by diversifying and reposiioming
its portfoho of media assets, by pursuing
effiviencies and by acceleranng its business
development acuvities to take advantage
of the opportunminies created

Absent further serious falls in the GDF,
we behieve that we have established a
platform from w hich the Group can resume
growth when markert conditions improve
Digital revenue has grown throughout this
difficult period, and we fully expect this to
conunug, as new intiatives arc imtroduccd
and bear frmic

Strategy

We rematn resolutely customer focused in
alt our activines serving local communities
or gommunnes of interest We dehver
capuvatng and rclevant content through
mulaple media channels, thereby providing
our advertising customers with a range of
media opuions to help them achieve ther
abjectives We constantly review and
improve our existing portfoho of products
Increasingly we will achieve this through
4 combination of juint venturing with
spectahist and miche bustnesses as well as
in-house development, paroicularly in the
digital arena Tn so doing we seek to
protect and develop our existung business
and grow shareholder value

Results
Group operaung profit at £8 2m was up
157% (2009 £3 2m)after an impairment
charge against the carmying value of certain
adles of £0 5m (2009 £12 4m) and
excepuional costs of £1 5m (2009 Credu
£5 4m compnsing cxecpuiond] income of
%10 0m from pension scheme restructuring
and £4 6m of cxccptional costs)

Total turnover for the Group was down
1 9% at £139 3m (2009 £142 Om) and che
opcranung profit before amorusanon and
exceptional astems fell 2 4% to £14 8m
(2009 £15 Im) Operanng profits in the
magazinc dwision were up 8 1% at £5 6m
(2009 £5 2Zm), but newspapers were down
13 3% at £9 3m (2009 £10 7m) Dhgtal
revenues tncreased by 14 2% to £5 4m

Total operating costs were reduced by
1 9% to £124 5m (2009 4126 9m) through
savings from efficiency imnanves
Opersung cash flow cemained strong at
£137m (2009 £14 Im) and net debe at the
end of the year was further reduced at
£23 3m (2009 £27 5m) The Board remains
confident that the available facilities,
totalling £49 Om, provide the Group with
sufficient working capical and headroom
€0 pUrsuc (s CUrrent strategies
Adjusted earmings per share, the measure
of underlying performance, fell 1 1% to
64 Op (2009 64 7p)

Sharcholders and dividends
In March 2010 we paid a first intenim
dividend for 2010 in Lieu of a 2009 final
dividend due to the impending increase
in rates of personal taxation For 2011
we are reverung to the normal patcern
and a final dividend of 13 7p (2009 13 7p)
will be proposed to the AGM to be pard
on 19 Apnd 2011 If approved, together
with the second interim paid in relation
to 2010 of 6 4p, the total dividend relatng,
to 2010 wifl remain 4t 20 1p (2009 20 1p
per share)

‘I he Board fully understands the
importance that shareholders acach o
the levd of the dividend but has to
balance short and longer term benefits
of sharcholders against the needs of the
business and the economic conditions
it foresces The Board looks forward to
being ablc to grow the dividend as trading
performance and confidence in the outlook
for the economy Jusufy

Following a low of 15,300 shares traded
in 2009 on the Marched Bargain Facility,
some 53,000 were traded in the year in the
pricc range 84 75 1o £5 25, stronger than
those of 1ts nearest compararors but the
scetor continued 1o underperform markets
generally

Our programme of meenngs with
sharcholders continued dunng the year
and we are gratefu! for the conunued
support and understanding of sharcholders
through these changing and challenging
umes The AGM dhus year will be held at

®6Your Group
has faced the
challenges
presented by
diversifying and
repositioning

its portfolio

of media assets®®

The Conference Centre at the John Innes
Centre in Norwich In addition to routine
business, we are bnnging proposals for a
revised Long-Term Incenuve Plan, to
extend the hifc of the current all employee
Share Incenuve Plan and to renew powers
for the Board to offer non-sharcholding
SENLOr Managess an opportunity to subscnbe
for sharcs in Archant Thc Board looks
forward 10 welcoming as many
sharcholdcrs as possiblc to the AGM

Highlights

Very considerable progress has been
madc in rcpositioning our busincss to
take advantage of the opportunities
presented by the new technologres

The fullimplementanon of our industry-
leading conceat management system
through all new spaper newsrooms and
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the assocated necessary cultural change
has been fundamental

We have made a number of important
new scnior Management appointments
dunng the year to sirengthen the executive
management team, and to accelerate che
rate of change and development across the
business The Chief Executive’s report
discusscs a number of chese developments,
but we have developed our Cambndge
stratcgy with the launch of Cambridge Firsr
and purchase of Explorer, launched a
scrics of glossy hyper-local coastal
magazines and relaunched Life county
titles in the Midlands In the digial space
we have invested 1 a group buying
business, Tickles (e frckles co uk),
and relaunched pobs24 on an upgraded
platform We are expanding our successful
weddings portfolio with new preducts and
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inte new areas of the country

We celebrated 125 years of The Star
i Ipswich and 140 Years of the kastern
Dazly Press, and are delighted to be able to
report that the two Norfolk daily udes and
half the paid-for weekly otles outstde
l.ondon achieved circulation growth
in the second half of 2010 as compared
1o 2009 Addicionally, three Lafe utles
i Lancashire, Yorkshire and Cheshire
achicved their tenth consceutive year of
combined airculation groweh Dialogue
madc further progress with clicnt wins
of the Army Cadert Force, the Bniush
Parachuce Association and an imnovanve
Burghley Life publication for the Land
Rover Burghley Horse Tnals Speciahse
launched a number of new utles, notably
Turmng Pro in the photography market
and Clay Shooring

We have continued o 1mplement
efficiencees and dunng the year we
centralised adverusing producoion in
Norwich This Fcbruary, following a
review of our print acuvittes and with
signuficant increases in the pnce of
newspnnt, we announced a consultation
with our cmployees at Thorpe over a
proposal to cutsource the ponung of some
of our atles to a third-party printer

Staff and Board
Thec Board pays tnbutc to the
management and staff chroughout the
Group for thair contnuced detcrmination
and enthusiasm through whac have been,
and conunuc to be, challenging and
uncertain wmes We continue to receive
many industry awards — recently at EDF
Energy Fast of England Mcdia Awards
2010, the Easitern Daily Press won the
Daity Newspaper of the Year award and
www ¢dpd co uk won Website of the Year
June de Moller will not seek re-election
to the Board ac che AGM after 12 eventful
years We have greatly valued her
contnbution over this ame and wish her
well for the future

Outlock
We expect no early relief to che ‘hard
pounding’ of the last few years Whilse
there will be an upturn in economtic
acavity and demand for adverusing at
some point, 1t 15 unlikely, at best, to arnve
before the end of this year Some
commentators expect a ‘double dip'
recession which would delay if further
Mcanwhile we expect an increase in
ncwspnnt prices of approximaccly 20%
and face the full impact of the cuts in
government cxpenditure

Whilst the recession has accelerated the
ratc of changc in media, we arc significantly
better positioned to rake advantage of this
through the appointments we have made
and the improvements in our own
technology We will contunue to develop
ncw revenue sereams, through the
introduction of new products and services
for the benefit of our readers and adverusers




Chief Executive’s report

2010 started well with
revenue growth 1n the early
part of the year, but this was
not sustamned in the face

of low economic growth,
low consumer confidence,
government spending

cuts and bad weather in
December. Despite the
difficult trading conditions,
headline operating profit
before acquisitions was
slightly up for the year.

ADRIAN JEAKINGS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TOTAL REVENUE WaS down £2 7m (1 9%) at
£139 3m The revenue from our newspaper
busmess was down £5 8m (5 9%) excluding
acquistions, manly duc to a drop in
adverusing in pnnt Revenue from the
pubkic scctor was partricularly weak, falling
by 29 1% over the year as a whole with
steeper declines tn the sccond half Public
sector advertsing now constitutes less

than 10% of roral adveruising in print, a
considerable drop from previous years
Revenue from our magazme divisions grew
by 3 0% to £44 9m with parucularly strong
performances from ocur local hfescyle
magazines and chicnt publishing Digstal
revenue increased by 14 2%

Focus on business development and
improving productvcy conanued dunng
the year resulting 1n cost savings of £5 4m
(4 1%) before taking inte account the impdct
of acquisiions As a result, operating profic
before acquisitions, amortixation, imparment
charges and exceptional stems was shghtly
up ar£15 2m

Profic after tax at £4 5m was £7 6m higher
than last year and 15 high enough o cover
the cost of the annual dividend for the first
ume since 2006

Strategy implementation

Our stratcgy 1s rclauvely simple Wearc a
community media company The communities
arc mainly geographtcalty defined burin
some cases are also commumues of nterest
Our job 15 to provide our audicnce in those
communues with compelhng content in
the way that most suus them ac the ome
that suits them In practice this means that
print, fixed web, mobile, exhibitions and
cvents all play a part in delivening the
content. We make most of our money by
helping our clients, be they adverusers,

sponsors, commercial partners or exhibitors,
to rcach their target customers

We started as a newspaper organisaton
publishing printed products, we sull do this
well However, the world 1s changing and
we now need to continuously update our
products o reflect changes 1n consumer
behaviour, and 10 parucular how they use
media We also need o change to reflect
the way that our chients are using new
forms of media to reach their exisung and
putenndl customers We have made
significant progress in this during 2010 and
an increased focus on the needs of our
customers, both audience and clients, has
been a constant theme throughout the year

Secunng and growing our audience 15 key
to our future success With this in mand a
group of semor managers from across the
Group was challenged at the beginning of
the year to grow the paid circulation of all
our titles The response was cutstanding,
gencratng industry-beanng circulation
performance Al four of our daily utles were
in the top cight regronal dailies in England,
and our two Norfolk daihes were the two
best performing titles At the same ume our
Life magazines achieved their tenth
suceessive year of paid circulation growth

In order to understand better what our
audiences want W e have increased our
investment in markert research in 2010

We have continued and expanded our use
of focus groups but have also worked wath
WAN-Ifra, the world’s leading newspaper
wade association, and GfK NOP, an
nternational markenng group, to develop
a brand engagement model for media This
approach, which was tested on the Fast
Anghan Datly Times, paves us anin<depch
undersranding of our readers in print and
online 4 well as 4 system for prioriasing
editonal acovity We believe the new
approach will incredse reader engagement
and chereby consumpoion of our produces
Thas model, which we beheve 1s umique,
w1l be rolled out to ather ttles dunng 2011

Our editonal change project, the first
stage of which was completed during the
year, is also helping to increase the focus
on our audience The new content
management system, which was rolled out
as part of the projece, provides many tools to
help our journalists publish more engaging
storics faster in pnntand online Our
editonal teams across the country continue
to develop the way they usc chese tools and
wncerace wich thewr audience

Focus on our audience 1s not cnough We
also need to understand beteer our chents’
needs and provide them with new ways to
reach their target customers Our mvestment
in business development, whether through
our central tearn or through individual

wrw archant co uk
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#8These changes put
us in a very strong
position to deal

with the economic
turbulence of the
coming months and
to build the business
through the strong
relationships that
we have with our
audience and
clients %9

business units, 15 key to this

We have developed and launched a range
of hyper-local glossy magazines In some
cascs 4 large part of the content 15 written
by local people and distribunion 1s through
local businesses, giving the commurnity a
greater sense of ownership and engagement
with the magaane We are now starmng to
roll this concept out across the business Tn
Lafe we have relaunched some of the titles
that were closed at the start of the recession
whlst at Specralist we have launched a
number of new otles around the core
portfolio We appointed 4 new managing
director, Mick Hurrell, for Dialogue dunng
the year 1o grow the business by capiaalising
on our expertise in membership orgamsatons
and by leveraging our chieng relanonships
acrass the Group

We made sigmificant additions to our
Group business development tcam duning
the year staring wich the appomnement of
Scrge Tabonn as group business devclopment
dwector Since Serge’s appointment we have
grown the business development team and
accelerated the rate of new product
development We relaunched our febs24
website in September and have seen a 12%
growth n revenue over the year despite a
22% reduction in our pant recruitment
adverusing We have also scen a 36%
incredse 1n visits to the site, and a 250%
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increase 1n onling job applications since
relaunch Other developments include the
roll-out of our weddings busincss coneept
acrass the Group, with significant growth
budgeted for 2011, and the launch of a local
group buying service, Tickles, similar to
Groupon, in January 2011 Therc arc
further products in the pipeline for launch
duning 2011

Productivity improvements
We continued w work o improve
productivity dunng 2010 We are currently
mugraung virtually all of our adverusing
praducton for newspapurs and magdsines
to Norwich This wil provide us with the
wols to improve anstomer service and
design quality whilst generaung substantial
costadvings | he project has included the
implementation of a new workflow system
that cdn be readily adapted for use
¢lsewherc in the Group

Other arcas of efficiency improvement
include Archant Accounting Services
where we have implemented new customer
management softw are that strcamlines
the work of cash collecnion scaff whilst
providing customers with 4 web interface to
review ther invoices, make payments and,
if necessary, raisc quencs

At Archant Pnnt we have announced
plans to outsource the printing of our weckly
papers published outside Norfolk and
Suffolk This will savc a substannial amount
of money and would not have been possible
without the addinonal equipment installed
as part of the 2007 capacity cxpansion
project. It should be noted chac the 2007
investment has achieved 1s financial targets
and that the savings from the new project
are 1n addivon to these These plans, which
are subject to consultanon, will ingvitably
result in a number of redundancics

Archant Informauon Systems provides
the I'T infrastructure thac makes all of
this possible Major projeces dunng 2010
included the roll-out of the new content
MANELMENL 3¥stem t our newspapers and
the first steps tn creanng two fully mirrored
data centres in Norwich and Tiford
Together these will give us more resilient
systems and the abahry for our staff to
work from any location, including their
own homes

Industry developments

The clection of 4 new government in May
2010 saw a change of direction i a number
of arcas Mostimportantly for us, the new
government 1s determined «o stop local
authontics spending taxpaycr moency on
pubhishing their own newspapers A new
code of pracuce for local authonity publiciry
has been laid before the House of Commons
which prevents counals pubhishing anything
resembhing a newspaper more than once a
quarter T'he code 1s expected o become
law in Apnl 2011

The new Sceretary of Scace for
Culrure, Olympics, Media and Sport,
Jeremy Flune, has stopped the previous
government's plans for regronal television
ncws and 15 promotung a plan to creatc local
televasion services in cines There are no
clear plans yet and 1t 15 not cerean that
there 1s 2 viable business model, however
we arc tallung to 2 number of orgamsanons
ahout the role that we mghe play in this

There s mcreasing talk of regional press
consolidation in the trade and financial
press Daly Mail and General Trust Plc has
stated that 1t 15 not prepared to put capital
1nto bevoming a consohdator but that it
wauld constder any warthw hile approaches
for 1ts regronal newspaper business,
Northchffe Debt and pension 1ssues
remdin problematic in the context of
consolidatton for the other major players
The major financial benefits that are only
available from consolidation would come
from the chminanon of duplicated
management structures and the closure
of compeung ttles in the same geography
Any consolidauon hkely to resuli in the
closure of titles, or any cther reducnion in
compcuton, would almost cerwainly be
referred to che compennon authonties
The new government has made posiaive
noiscs about relaxing the relevant rnules,
particularly in respect of cross-media
ownership, but nothing has happened yet

The launch of the Applc 1il'ad has
samulated a burst of creativity 1n content
declhivery [he iPad expenence 1s
significantly betcer than chat from more
limited e-readers such as the Amazon
Kindle and there will be a proliferanion of
similar, less expensive, devices launched
n 2011 which will resulcin cablet devices
becoming mainstream delivery channels
We launched a number of (Pad and 1Phone
apps duning 2010 and will seek o exploi
the capabilines of the new devices as they
appear in 2011

Outlook

The outlock for the economy 1s not positive
n the shert term There wall be an upturn
m the parts of the economy that affect us
but a matenal improvement this year secems
unlikely The price of newspnnt s expected
to mncrease by approximactely 20% m 2011
and the curreng unrest i the Middle East
15 unltkely to be helpful for energy pnces
We have sigmficantly reduced our cost
base over the fast two years whilst investing
both in new produces and the capabilicy to
develop new products faster We have also
invested to develop a better trained and
equipped customer-focused editonal team
These changes put us 1n a very strong
position to deal with the economic
turbulence of the coming months and to
build the business through the strong
relantonships that we have wich our
audience and chienes




Financial review

A solid result in
a year of investment.

Brian Mo Cart11y, TiNaxcl DRI ¢C10R

2010 2009 Change

£m £m £m

Group revenue 1393 1420 {27}
Operating costs

Stolf costs 555 569 11 4)

Other costs 690 700 (no

Total operal ng cosls' 1245 1269 [2 4]

Operating proht! 148 151 c3

Amorhschon
and impairment 151 Nnz3 122
MNet exceptional ilems 115 54 69

Cperating profit 82 32 50
Share of operaning

resulis in assooicte Ic2) 102 100]
income from invesiments  CO 02 10 2}
Interest payable {18) oa 12
Other finance expense {0 5) na 14
Probir before tox 57 Q7 50

'Exchuding excephional tems amortisaton end impoirment

REVENUE AL £139 30 (2009 £142 Om)
was 52 7m {1 9%) lower than 2009
Operaung profit before amorusation and
impawrment of intangible assers and
exceptional items fell by £0 3m {2 4%)
to £14 8m (2009 £15 1m) Total operatng
costs were down £2 4m (1 8%) with hke-
for-hike costs down £5 4m, a saving of
4 1% over 2009 Cost control remained
an important proTity across the business,
howevet, provision was made for
imvestment in business development
to ¢nsure our conunuing growth n
new business areas, parucularly digial
Overall the results were solid

Operating profits in the second half of
the year were 9 7% hagher than the first
half at £7 7m, and would have been better
but for the adverse weather conditions in
December and fewer publishing days for
daily utles due to Christmas Day falling
on a Saturday The rate of like-for-hke
revenue decline was 5 3% in the second
half of thec year, compared to 1 1% in the
first half

An umprovement in stability in che
financial position of the relevant acquired
utles and the cumulavve effect of
previous write-downs has meant thar a
non-cash impatrment charge of £0 5m has
been recorded, a 96% reducoion on the
2009 charge of £12 4m

Exceptional items, comprising

restructunng costs, reduced profic by
£1 5m (2009 £5 4m credic) The 2009
credit arose prinapally from changes to
the defined benefit penswon scheme,
resulung in a one-off credic of £10 Om,
off-serting £4 Om of restructunng costs
and other one-off costs of £0 6m

Intcrest payable at £1 8m was £1 2m
higher than 2009 despite the reducaon in
net debt This 1s due to the higher interest
rates applicable to the Group’s debt under
its refinancing in December 2009

A £0 5m charge (2009 £1 9m) 15 shown
as other finance expensc in the profit and
loss account Thus anses from the
cxpected return on pension scheme asscis
relatve to the interest charge on scheme
liabihitics under the FRS 17 accountung
standard

The tax charge on profics for the year
was £1 3m (2009 £3 8m) and the profit for
the year after charging imparrment and tax
was £4 5m, an improvement on 2009's loss
of £3 Zm

Adjusted earnings per share, which

reflece the underlying performance of the
husiness, were down 0 7p (1 19%) at 64 Op,
whilst baste earmings per share improved
by 54 8p from (22 8p) to 32 0p

Net debt at cthe end of the year was
£23 3m (2009 £27 Sm) after capital
expenditure of £2 4m The Group
maintans sufficient debt headroom for
development opportunities and 1s
operaung well within covenants

Summery of divisional

operating results

The revenuc and operaung profit before
amorusation, imparment and exceptional
1HCms wWCrc

Turmover Operating profit

2010 2009 2010 2009

£€m £m £m Em

MNewspopers & prining 94 4 98 4 23 107
Magazines & conodt

publishing 449 436 56 52

Common cosis on 08
1393 1420 148 151

www archont co uk
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ééInvestment
was made in
developing
our digital
capability
which we
expect to pay
back in 2011
and beyond %9

Key perfarmance indicators (KPls)
The key financial and non-financial
perfurmance indicators for the Group
include revenue, operaung profit,
operdung margin, advertising volumes,
circulavion volumes, uniqque users online,
nect debe and digital revenue The Group
sceks to target performance i line with
or ahcad of competitors

Dietails of the Group's performance
against the relevant KPlIs for cach
division are included i che respecuve
sections below

Newspapers and printing
Adverusing condinons in UK regional
newspapers improved over the first three
uarters of 2010, with che fourth quarter
of the year showing a worse position as a
result of public sector curbacks, economuc
confidence falling and the effects of poor
weather

Newspaper and pnintung revenues fell
by £4 Om with hike-for-hke revenues down
by £5 8m (5 9%) 10 £92 6m (2009 §£98 4m)

wew orchant o vk

Of ¢his fall, more cthan half relaced to
advernsing funded by the public sector,
where revenues fell by 29 1% in the year
Public sector advernsing now represents
9 6% of total adverusing revenues

(2009 12 4%)

Al categones of adverusing other than
property suffered revenue declines in
2010, with recruitment in paroicular
connnuwing 1ts downward trend (n our print
publications, although in digital form,
growth of 11 8% was achieved

Digital revenue grew by 14 2% overall,
with parocular growth in directones and
E-editions offsctung small reductions in
display revenue

Advertising year-an-year

Fullyoar 1st hatf  2nd half
Racnytment 117 5% {10 1%) 126 &%)
Propenty 39% G 4% {1 8%
Malors (3 4%) 11 7%) 15 2%
Clossfied 11 2%) 17 7%) 14 9%}
Disploy (5 &%) 10 7%) 10 1%}
Other 13 3%} 20% 18 6%
Al adverssng 16 8% 21% (1) &%

Circulatton performed strongly,
particularly in cthe second half of the year
Like-for-like circulation volumes and
revenues for paid-for newspapers cach
dechined by Z 5%, however the second-
half ABC performance showed a reduction
of only 0 7%, having been 4 2% lower
in the first half of the year, the best
performance for many years Both the
Fastern Darly Press and the Norwack
bvening News increased arculaton in
the second half of the year, wath weckly
ates oueside London (where a number
of routes to marker are used and pad-for
circulation 15 not the only circulation
measurc} falhng by only 0 4%

Whilst recogmising the brand capital
in our paid-for utles, Archant’s overall
audience 1s not solely compnsed of
pard-for utles and we have exploited
strong brand relacionships in the digital
audicnces for both our paid-for and frec
newspaper ttles — with unique visicors
growing by 9 5% in the ycar

Lake-condition operating costs at
£82 8m (2009 £87 7m) were down £4 9m
(5 5%), maintaining the cost savings
generated in 2009 Savings in employment
costs were driven by a reduction in full-
ume cquivalent staff numbers of 5 3%
Further savings were made as a result of
lower paginatons as adverusing fell,
reductions 1n ink prices and property exits

Investment was made 1n developing our
digital capability which we expect to pay
back i 2011 and beyond

Like-for-like operating profit was
down 9 0% at £9 7m (2009 £10 7m)

Magazines and
cantract publishing
Revenues were 844 9m (2009 £43 6m),
an increase of £1 3m (3 09%), and
operatng profic £0 4m (8 1%) hagher
at £5 6m

It was pleasing o sce growth in both
revenues and profits tn magazines agatn
in 2010, against a challenging
background Circulanon through the
newstrade 15 increasingly difficuit and
expensive and so it has been particularty
valuable to have increased subscription
sales by 99%, to a point where such
sales now represent more chan half of
our paid-for circulation Advcrusing
revenue saw improvement in property
ovcr the full year, with trends in display
shightly behind

Archant Life’s revenucs were up 4 2%
in 2010, wich adverusing revenues 3 3%
hgher Dhgieal and other revenues also
increased, but overall circufation
revenues fell by 1 9% Costs increased
by 2 1% ponupally on pninnng and
paper costs as paginations 1ncreased

Archant Specialist revenues were
down 2 6%, with imaging titles in
parucular proving challenging in a
compentive marketplace, together
with a further downtum in the French
property market | he hfestyle porefolio
posted resthene 13 0% year-on-year
growth Circulacion revenues fell by
1 3%, although subscriptions grew by
2 8%, with the biggest challenges
presented by copy sales through high-
street outlets Advernsing revenues
were down 9 19 Costs were reduced
by 2 1%, again pnincipally on costs for
prnnting and paper, employment and
distnbution

Archant Dhaloguc returned a ncar
record year, with revenues growing by
26 2% and profits nsing by 28 0%

Digital activiry

Dcspite the challenges faced in the
recnmitment marketplace, revenue
from onhne acuvines increased by

14 2% 10 £5 4m (2009 £4 7m), mainly
dnsen by revenuc from sebs?4,
E-cditions of our products and
directones OF the non-financial —
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measures of online acuvity, unique
visicors increased by 13 4%, though page
impressions fell by 2 9% following
changes in site design Almost 2 8
mullion people on average visit Archanc
websites every month

Impairment of newspaper and
magone intangible assets
The Group 15 required to review the
uarrying value of all its intangible asscts
annualiy, to determine whether either
cvents of changes 1n circumstances
mdicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable The carrying value 1s
assessed by 2 number of measures —
principally forecast cash flows — which
are discounted 1n hine with the Group's
wost of capital

The only titles for whech an
impairment charge has had to be made
relates to those acquired with KOS
Mecdia Publishing in 2010 | hese nitles
were severely affected by reductions in
publi sector spending in che second
half of 2010, and their carrying vatue
15 not currently supported by forecasts
Consequently an impaurment charge of
£0 5m has been recorded duning the
year No further charges have been
required 1n the year

The impairment charge has no
cash impact, however, 1t does reduce
distnbutable reserves, which were
£48 6m at the end of 2010 before the
impairment charge The Group’s annual
dividend payment at its current level 1s
more than adequartcly covered by the
profits generated from normal trading,
and distnibutable reserves after the
impairment charge are £48 1m

10

befors omortisohan smpairment and exceptional tems

Associated companies

In June 2010 the Group acquired
outnight KOS Media Publishing,
publisher of a number of newspaper

and digital ades in Kene, including

Kent on Sunday, since when ic has

been consolidated in full in the Group’s
resules Prior to thes date, the investment
n its holding company was treated as an
associace, with Archant’s sharc of losses
in 2010 totalling £0 2m (2009 loss £0 2m)

Exceptional items

Exceptional costs (excluding
imparrment) were £1 5m (2009 £4 Om)
in respect of the costs of reducing the
size of the business, principally
redundancy and office closure costs

In 2009, there were further excepnonal
costs of £0 6m n relation to the bank
refinanang and the restructunng of the
defined benefit pension scheme to
reduce the rate of growth in future
habtlines The restructunng of the
pension stheme resulted in g one-off
excepional credit of £10 0m 1n 2009

Taxation

The financial stacements include a tax
charge of £1 3m (2009 £3 8m) The
cffective rate of taxation for the year,
before impairment and an exceptional
corporation tax credit, was 51 3% (2009
38 6%), and the cffecuve standard rate
of tax was 28 0% (2009 28%) The 2010
pre-impairment cffcctive rate was higher
than the standard ratc due pnmanly o
amorasation of intangible asscts thac s
not deducuble for tax purposes The
tax charge has been reduced by an
exceptional credit of £1 9m relating to

* bators and F l iwma

the favourable resoluton of certain tax
matters accrued in previous years and
also includes a £0 Zm charge for deferred
1ax ansing from the reduction in the rate
of corporavon tax from 1 Aprnil 2011

Earnings per share

Basic earmings per sharc grew by 54 8p
from last ycar’s loss per sharc of 22 8p to
32 Op Adjusted earmings per share fell
by 0 7p (1 1%) to 64 Op Adjusted
carmings per share are considered to

be a better indicacor of the underlying
performance of the business and the
differcnce between basic and adjusted
carmings per sharc 1s explamed in more
derail in Note 11 to the financial
statements

Dividends und dividend cover

It 15 proposed that 4 final dividend for
2010 will be paid on 19 Apnl 2011 at the
rate of 13 7p per share If che 2010 first
intenm dividend 1s treated as bewng in
respect of 2009, the total dividend for the
year 15 20 1p (2009- 20 1p) At this level
the dividend would be covered 3 2 umes
(2009 3 2 umes) by adjusted earmings
per share

Net debt and cash flow

The Group continucs to be cash
generanve and operanng cash flow

at £13 7m (2009 £14 3m) was £0 6m
tower than in 2009, mainly duc to the
reducnion of £0 3m in operating profic
before amorusauon, impairmene and
cxccptional itecms Conversion of profic
(before impairment and one-off pension
credr) tneo cash at 158% was again
strong (2009 257%) Nect debt ar the end

www archant co uk
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Financial review

* betore amorisotion impairmant and excephonol nems

of the year was £23 3m (2009 £27 5m)
Movements in net debt are summarised
below

2010 2009
£m £m
Operahing cash low 137 14 3
Net interesi pord 12 10 4]
Tax pard nn 1091
Dradends ped 12 8 (28
Caish o Before acquist ons and
capital expenditure a0 102
Capi al expenditure 12 4 12 )
Acquisihons ond investment
n QssoCicte 105 03
Share ransachons ] 3‘ Q1
Other 0 & 01
Decrease in net debt 47 71

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure duning the year was
£2 4m (2009 £2 6m), substanually all of
which again related to investment in I
hardware and software developments
which will improve vperaung efficiency
and system restlience in furure years

Pension scheme

The tnenmal actuanal valuation
completed in 2008 indicated that
habulities of the Group’s penston scheme
of £148 6m were under-funded by £8 Om
as at | January 2008 The Group made
cash contnbutions totalling £1 45m
towards the reduction of this deficitin
2010 (2009 £1 45m) The deficir shown in
the balance sheet was determined using
the FRS 17 accounung scandard, which
the Group adopted 1n 2005 Under this
standard, the defincd bencfit scheme
service cost in the profit and loss account
has decreased by £0 2m co £1 4m and the
deficit shown on the balance sheet has

www archant co uk

* 2009 inchudes and Z01 0 exchudes tha 13t nterim for 2030 for
Samparotrie pUrposes

fallen by £3 2m, from £14 7m o £11 Sm
The fall 1n the deficit 1s a result of a
combination of a recovery in investment
markets, and increasced glt yields which
have reduced the valuanon of habihnes
As the habilites of the pension scheme
arc cxpected to fall due over a4 penod of
more than 50 years, and thc deficit is less
than onc year’s currene operating profic
before amortisation, the deficit 1s not
considered oncrous

Treasury management, associated
risks and uncertainties
The Group currently denves 1ts funding
from share capatal, retained profits and
bank borrowing Cash 1s managed
centrally, and the Group's treasury
objective 1s to munimise borrowing costs
and maximise returns on funds subject
te short-term hgquidicy regumrements

The main nsks that the Group faces
from 1ts treasury activities dre hgquidiey
nsk and incerest rate sk The Group’s
acavinies are primanly in cthe UK and
there 1s mimimal foreign currency nsk

Our liqudity nsk znses from uming
differences between cash inflows and
outflows These nsks are managed
through commutted short-term and
tong-term credit facihoies Our policy
15 to ensure conunuiry of funding and
flexibilicy and to maintain sufficient cash
balances and commutced facilitics to meet
anucipated funding requirements Qur
resources and the expected future cash
flows are regarded as sufficient to meet
the anacipated funding requirements of
the Group for at least the next 12 months

The Group successfully refinanced s
debtin December 2009, following the

exprry of its previous debt facilicy

The total facithty was £50 Om, of which
£45 0m 15 a revolving advances facility
through RBS and Bank of Ircland which
cxpires in April 2013 and a £5 0m
overdraft facility from RBS on which
compcuive rates of interest are payablc
The maximum amount of the revolving
credic factlicy was reduced to £42 Om on
10 January 2011 and will be further
reduced to £36 Om by cqual annual
reductions on 1 January 2012 and 2013
During the year the Employee Benefit
Trust was granted an overdraft facility
of £2 Om, which 15 guaranteed by the
Company, the balance of which 1s
included in Archanc debe In January 2010
the Company entered nto interest rate
swap ariangements covering £15 Om of 1cs
debrt obligations, expinng in December
2011, to limit the Company’s exposure
to mterest rate rsk

Net assets

Net assets on 1 January 2010 were £33 Im
The profic for the year was £4 5m, which
was transferred to reserves Other
movements included an mcrease of £2 6m
ansing from the FRS 17 Reurement
Benefits accounung standard and
dividend payments of £2 8m Net assets
at the cnd of the year were £57 Im
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Directors and o

S JREON Charman, Nonexeautive NR P

Richard Jewson &6 joned the boord of Eastem Counties
Newspapers Group Lmited [ECNG) 10 1982 as o
nomexecutive direcior and pecame Charman i 1996

Alter umning Jewson, the imber and bukding
mesenant, for 12 years, he hedd the pesiben of Manoging
Drectzr, ond then Chorman, of s holding company,
Mevyer Internotonal Pic, unil he refired in 1903
Subsequently he wos Chaiman of Sovills Pl for 10 years
ond Deputy Charman of owg plc Me is curenty o
director of Temple Bar Invesimen Trust Plc. Grafion Group
plc Raven Russic limited and a number of oher unquoted
companies

He 15 HM Lo Liewtenant of Norfolk and also chous
the Counal for the University of East Andla

Richard chairs e remuneration and neminatons
commiltees

AD IZAKINCS Chiel Executve N P

Adran Jeakings, 52, joned the Boord as Finonce
Director in Cclober 2002 and became Chief Execulive
in November 2008
Adnon is o Fellow of the Charlered Inshiute of
Management Accoun onts and wos Group Finance
Owecior of The Siatonery Office before joining Archont
He 15 a graduate of Impenal College London and
Wked bfleﬂy Qs an engineer MOTE lro\nlng as on
accountan of BICC ple Alter qualifying e joned the
instrumentalion division of Schiumberger where he was
Finance Director of o number of business units based
in Fronce Belore joining The Stationery Office he wos
Director = Finonce Europe for Dun & Bradshest Inc
Adrion 1s o Dwector of the PA Group bmided and
sis on the Boord of the Newspaper Society He 1s o
governor of Norwich School and o member cf the
audit commitiee of the Unmversity of East Angla

BG e T Y Finance Dueckor P

Brign McCarthy 48 |oined the Board os Finance
Director in November 2008

Brian 15 g Fellow of Chartered Accountants Ireland
hoving qualiled wath Arthur Andersen 1n Dublin and
Combndge, and joined Archont in lanuary 2004 cs
Finance Drector of Archen! Regional

Previously he workea as Finonce Directar of an
environmenicl company and prior lo that he held o
senes of sentor linance roles in the English Longucge
Dwision of Pearson Education

He s also Deputy Chairman of City Academy,
Norwich

%C CQ770 7y Nomexecutve A

Simon Capemon, 44 joined the board of ECNG in

Cclober 2001 05 a Nonexecutive Dwector having

&e‘cngushr been o member of the ECNG Newspopers
'

Since 1990 he hos held a voriety of genercl
manogement Stx Sigma ond sales ond morketing
posthions with 3M UK plc and is curenly fheir
Manager of Acquistions, Allances Strategic lanning
ond Execution

JAE 6 7 Dreclor

Johnny Hustler 55 Managing Direttor of Archant
hfeslue ond lhe newspaper hlles in Kent and the
South West, joned the Boord in Jonuary 2008 having
served as o director of a number of oirer Archant
companies duing 24 years of sermce with the Group
Alter graduet ng from Leeds Unversity he went 1o
Unilever ond storied his media caoreer with Anglio
Television i 1983 then joning the Eost Anghon Danly
Tumes in 1987 In 1995 he moved 1o Eastern Counties
Newspapers Lmited as Marketing Drec'or glter which
he served in o number of semor commercial roles
belore launching Archant Lfe, of which Fe remgins
o Director in 2001
Johnny is o past UK and European Director of the
Internahional Newspoper Marke'ing Associahon ond
1s currently o Dvecior of the Penodicol Publishers
Associohon Limited He is olso o governor of
Nzrwach School

TET ""TT Nonexecutive R A

Richard Waatl 51 wos oppointed @ Nonexeculve
Drecior of Achant in Apnl 2005

Richard 15 Chormon of loudwaler Invesiment
Pariners Umied Fe rs ¢ Manoging Director of N M
Rohsch ld ond formedy Managing Drrecior of Schroder
Securihes

Richord who 1s o low groduote 1s clso o hustee
of Aldeburgh Music

www archent co vk
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Directors and officers

&L WALSH Norrexeculive

Mike Walsh &1 wos oppointed a Nomexeculive
Dhrector of Archant in Femry 010

Mike 15 o Director of %ulvy & Maher Souh Alnca
and of Ogivy & Mather Alnco Inc ond o Nonexecuiive
of The Brond Union Formerdy ¢ man boord Direcior
of Ogihy & Mather Warldwide for 16 years, he was
also for 12 years Chief Executive of therr Europe,
Muddle East and Afncan operations He 1s also Vice
President of Business Development for Vel Ple

Aier groduoting from Durham in 1971 Mike jo ned
Young & ubicom and was oppainted 1 the Board in
1981 before joimng Ogilwy & Maher Pic in 1983

Mike 15 Choizman of the UK Qisaslers Emergency
Committee which 15 an umbrello orgomisation for 13
leading UK charities including The Red Cross Oxfom
ond Sove the Children

JT DI FACLY T Nonexecutive R AN

lune de Moller 63 |oined the board of ECNG as
o Norrexecu've Director in May 1999

June wos Monoging Dector of Carf'on
Communicaions Plc from 1993 1o 1999 having
1oined the board of Carlion In 1983

Formerly a Director of Cookson Group Plc BT ple
and | Sansbury Plc, she 15 currentty o Non-execuiive
Duector of Derwent londan Plc ond Temgle Bar
Investment Trust plc

June 1s o member of the Council of the Unversity
of East Argla

R Member of the remunerohon
commitee

A Member o the audit commitee

N Member ol the nominahons
committes

P Member of fre pensions commitiee

PUE T2OUL' TON ViceCharman, Nomexecyve
RAN

Peter Troughlon, &2, oined the boord of ECNG as ¢
MNorrexecutive Director in 1991, hoving served on the
bocrds of East Anghen Daily Times Company Limiled
and Communy Medio bimited since 1984

Peler groduated from Combidge and served in
HM Digomatic Serace  before joining WHSmith
Group plc where he pecame Managing Director
News Drvson ond loler as a Directer of the man
boord Monaging Direclor Relaling Me left in 1995
to become Depuy Chowman of Rothschild Asset
Management unt] 1999 He 15 a direcior of o number
of crvate compontes He 15 a Nomexecuiive Direclor
of lowland Invesiment Comparry ple ona JOHIM
Globo! investment Funds ple

A former tustee of he National Gallery he wos
oppan ed o bustee of the Royol Collection in 2007
He 15 Chairmon of the Councl of the Universiy of
Bah ond o trustee of The Rayol Opero House
Endowment Fund

Peter chais the oudit commitiee

www oichont ¢o vk

U EL_ 2% Company Secretary

John Elhson 59 was appoinied Compony Secretary
of ECING in Februory 1996
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During 2010, Archant’s staff continued to deliver
innovative solutions to the challenges faced by an
ever-changing media landscape.

The roll-out of our content management system is
enabling journalists to publish to multiple channels
with one touch. This integrated media approach
continues to be essential to Archants strategy of
serving its clearly defined communities.

A significant success in 2010 was Archant’s fightback

against the challenge of declining newspaper
circulations. Giving readers what they want,
together with effective, responsive distribution
management, has been critical to winning,
regaining and retaining readers.

Across the Group’s portfolio, new products have
been launched that cater for new communities and
innovative thinking has been applied to existing
products. Cost efficiencies remain important and
initiatives to make the Group more sustainable
have started to pay off.

On the following pages, we pay tribute to some of
those who have been involved in the initiatives that
made 2010 a year of which Archant can be proud.
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Intelligent integration

Archant's customers increasingly expect to get news and information at
a hime and place of their choice, but one thing remains the same  they
shll want engaging, relevant content

VWHETHER THEY GET 1t from
newspapers, magazines, tablet
PCs, smart phoncs or e-readers,
Archant’s customers want news
that matters to them ‘| hat’s
w hy Archant continues to puc
the journahst at the hearr of ity
operauons In 2009, Archant
Regronal moved to 4 single
newsroom culture (ur went
the idea of reporters working
on just one title and in came
multi-title news teams supplying
tailored content to brand editors
In 2010, Archant accelerated
this integrated media approach
with the roll-out of 1ts Content
Management System (CMS),
cnabling journalists to publish
to multple channcls wich one
touch James Foster, editonal
dircetor, Archant Norfolk
explains “We believe we were
the first UK newspaper business
{and onc of the first in the world)
to usc a completely integrated

CMS o develop content

for print, web and mobile ”

‘I he CMS enhances Archant’s
mulumedia capabilinies,
vphamusing stories for different
publishing platfarms, and
uncourdges journalists o
engage with audiences using
suctal media sites such as
Twitter and Facebook

James adds “This integraced
media approach is essenual o
Archant’s strategy of serving
clearly defined communiues,
based on geography or interest
groups "

The UK ts one of Europe’s
fastest growing smartphonce
markets with mobnle web
raffic growing an csumarted
eight umes quicker than fixed
wcb traffic As a result, mobiles
could surpass PCs as the main
point of web access as carly
as 2013 ‘That has profound
imphcanons for the business,

88 The CMS puts the story
back at the heart of everything

we do, rather than being
driven by deadlines99

An information pockoge Head of sport Richord Willrer (ieh] ond edutoriol

development director Poul Hill

16

as Serge Taborin, Archant’s
Group business development
director, explains “We must
grow our audiences by
provading nch coneene from
strong hrands across muluple
channels — harnessing digieal
platforms and developing new
revenue streams ™

James backs this up “Our
editortal process 15 bule on
strong planning and, above all,
focusing on our customers —
audiences, advertisers, whoever
wants to engage with us ” The
Welewyn Hatfield {imes (WWH D),
which was the first Archant
ncwspaper to usc the CMS
in Ocrober 2009, has scen a
55 per cent incrcasc 1n unique
visitors to 1ts website 1n 2010
“Testimony to the power of
good copy,” says WH{ chief
reporter Kelly-Ann Kiernan

Culture change
The roll-ous of the CMS
wasn't casy “It involved a
major cultaral as well as
technological shift,” explains
James, “as our whaole approzch
to news gathenng and
storytelling radically changed ™
Among thuse embraang
the newn technology are people
like Rechard Willner, head of
sport at Archant Norfolk,
who 15 enthusiastic about the
results “The CMS puts the
story back at the heart of
everything we do, rather than
being driven by deadlines ™
Journalists now enter all
their matenal for each event,
including photos and vidcos,
into the CMS as a story They
then work with cditors o
determine how it will fic the
available media *“We spend
more ame developing the full
story,” explans Richard, “making
our stones morc engaging for
rcaders and the surrounding
space more attractuve for
advernsers — which 1s good
for journalism and Archant ”

That’s a view shared by Bob
Crawley, who moved to Archant
[.ondon as editonal director in
March 2010 “The new CMS
gives us greater control over
copy and design and frecs up
editors to work more closcly
with their brand teams, crafoing
interestng, relevant content
for their communinies ”
According co Bob, 1c was
also a sigmficant factor 1n
Archant London’s decision
to centralise production of a
number of utles and ¢cnabled
a redesign of the [ford
newsroom around a central
editorral hub “This command
centre,” he says, “cnsurcs
joined-up thinking across
the editonal, advertusing
and markenng teams ”

www archant co uk
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One story,
many channels

As Terry Mitchinson, editor
WH I senes, puts it “Lhe CMS
lets everyone see the whole
picture and track a story’s
progress onling and in print
Journalists also have a more
varied role — not just searching
out stories but using nch
media, such as videos, polls
and hnks, to make the most of
them The process s also
completely seamless — which
1s a huge step forward

The CMS also helps with
planning, beheves Terry “We
all have a deeper understanding
of each story’s value and how
we can best use it When we
first considered the CMS two
years ago, Archant was really
trail blazing — now it 15 hard to
imagine being without it " —»

The power of good copy
Terry Mitchinson, editor
WHT senes, with the WHT team
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NEW TALENT

SERGE TABORIN
GROUP BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

What aftracted you to become
part of Archant?

| was drawn by the opportunity 1o
become a port of and help shope
Archant’s future The strength of
the vision to turn Archant from o
publishing company inte @ much
wider mulhimedia organisation
was even more imporiont | telr
that Archani, wath ifs long local
history and culture of innovation,
offered excellent potential for
launching successful new products

What skills ond experience

do you bring?

| worked for five years i
commercial ond strategy roles in
digital media Prior to that | wos
a technolagy consultant My
professional skills are in corporate
strategy and commercial
development, although | also hove
operational expenence Cigital
media i1s my areq of experise

What excites yov about your
new role?

Archant's longstanding presence
in the communihes that we serve
gives us o rumber of unique
advontages thdl, | beleve, can
be successhully exploited in our
rapidly changing industry —
something | om really looking
forword to betng part of

77
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The move to mobale

The rapid nsc of smart phones
and tablet PCs has inereased
the consumpuion of content
on the move, something Serge
15 keen for Archant to exploit
“We made significant strides in
mobile dunng 2010, launching
1Phone and 1Pad apps as well
as 10 mobile-opumised sites
across selected uitles helping
generate new revenue ”

Twao of Archant’s most
popular mobile sices are for the
football-focused Piné’{/n and
Green'lUn | hese together
get on average almost 20,000
visits 4 month, generatung
almost 200,000 molnle page
impressions,” says Serge, “and
both sites are growing rapidly ”

That coverage made them
perfeet for Archant’s first
mobule platform sponsorship
dcal — wath local brewer
Adnams The deal gave
Adnams prominent banner ads
on the mobile sites These
linked 10 4 webpage where
fans could enter a competition
to win a case of beer, find a
local Adnams pub and pick
up 4 voucher redeemable for
Adnams-branded goods

As Sean Clark, head of web
at Adnams confirms
“Sponsoring the mobile
Pk’ Un and Green'Un sices
Wdb AN INOVATIVE WaY 0
engage with one segment of
our target audicnce and raise
brand awareness ”

Crecter control
Bob Crowley
edional director,
Aschant London

Seecing eye-to-cye
Archant Speeiahist launched
a number of 1Phone and 1Pad
apps towards the end of 2010
As Muller Hogg, managing
direcror Archanc Specialist,
explains “Fots News Now 1s
4 new mobile brand for the
amateur and professional
photographer It draws the
best content from the websites
of Professtonal Photographer
and Photography Monthly and
optimises 1t for 1ts 1IPhone-
compauble site, creating a
gredt user expurience
“Uipdated regularly by our
journalists using the CMS,
Fotn News Now delivers videos,
podcasts and features from
both print magazines, as well
as hsungs, competitions and
readers’ photos from both
websites ” The app, which
costs just £1 79, s regularly
featured in 1'Tunes Photography’s
‘What's [Tot’ list and alrcady
has over 1,200 paid subscribers
“We also launched two 1lad
apps,” says Miller “Foro Mags
Now 15 a frec app that lcts you
sample and buy 1Pad-fnendly
(or print) cdittons of four
specialist magazines These
include World of Photography,
which mn wurn offers a free 1Pad
app compiling the best images
from the readers of Phoragraphy

86 The beauty
of web and
mobile is

that we

can reach

a global

audience
who share

a common
interest99®

Monthly (a print edition 15
available on subscniption) This
app 15 very popular ton, with
morc than 12,000 downloads

in 1ts first seven weeks ”

Global reach

Not only 1s this succcss
increasing print subscripuons,
1t1s also creating new audicnees
for 1ts websites, as Miller
explains “The beaury of web
and mobile 15 that we can
reach a global auvdience who
share a common nterest

wwwe archant co uk




Soctal media
Social media encourages users Io communicale ond share Tradihionat
medra, like pnnt or TV, deliver onettormeny communication Webrbased
and mobile technologies have tumed communication «nto interactive
diologue between indviduals and groups, often in reakime

Sccial media exsts in many forms, including blogs, voting, and profite
bulding ond shanng but ils basis 1s that of parhcipation, encouraging
contributions ond feedback from @ vanety of users

Archani uses social media extensively within s digital operations to
encowrage user engagement with s products and brands  This actvity
ranges from blogs and photo sharing to profiles for most newspapers and
magazines on major social media sites such as Facebook and Twitter

Thanks 1o the nteligent use of social media, Archants Life hiles now

have 22,000 Twitter followers and around 10,000 Facebook fans
between them Regular online conversaticns encouroge repeat visits,
engogement and subscriptions to the prnted magazines As a resull,
visits to Great Briish Uife's websites have incrensed by 195 5 per cent

Socicd networlang, left 1o right Don Coman Jules Rastell, Loura Jordan

Mary Brooks and lavro Smnger

“By producing content with
global appeal, we actract global
brands such as Nikon, which has
alrcady sponsorcd our 1(I"ad app
for the next 12 months They
ltke the face thar a third of cur
maobile audience 15 10 Amernica,
a third 1n Auscralasia and a
third in Europe - you can't
get that coverage or integrated
sales opportunity with a
specrahst magazine in the UK ”

Head out on the highway
Other divisions making good

www archant co uk

use of new platforms include
Archant Dualogue, which
launched 1ts first 1Phone app
for the [larlcy Owners Group
{HO G )in 2010 “Tt was a namural
devclopment,” says Draloguc’s
editonal director, Zoe Francis-
Cox “Wc alrcady crcate and
manage a sutte of mulalingual
communication channels for

H O G,” she says, “including
a quarterly magazine, members’
website (with 20,000 unique
visitors a month), monthly e-zine,
and Twitter and Facebook

8 The

integration
of social
media is
increasingly
important
in building
brand

communities 99

activity Creating an app that
cnablcs members to interact
from their 1Phones while out
on the road made scnse ”

Phil Sumner, Dhalogue’s
semor developer, adds “Ic’s
very rewarding to see it used
around the world and it’s a
great way to reach exisung and
potential customers, without
being pushy They can read the
latest news, watch videos, send
messages and post prctures of
their Harleys to the website ™
Creating a sotial buzz
Tt's not just mohile platforms
that are helping Archand’s
divisions engage new and
existng audiences The
mtegraton of social media
15 increasingly important in
building brand communities
Thar’s parucularly true at
Archant Life, which has the
largest portfolio of regional
magazines 1 the UK

As Mary Brooks, editor and
publisher, Greas Brisish Life
(GBL), explains “GRL s the
wch portal to our 45 regional
sites Onhne conversations
through our social media
channels have encouraged
repeat visits, cngagement and
subscripuions to our pninted
magazines This has helped
us build a database of
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NEW TALENT

JULES RASTELU
OIGITAL DIRECTOR
ARCHANT tIFE

What attracted you to become
part of Archant?

Archnn!'s lleS’er mﬂgﬂzlne
brands lead the market and have
a greal reputahon, so this
seemed like a good opportunity
1o help them do the same onhine

What skills and experience
do you bring?

My last role was as head of
cigital ot KM Group, and before
that my background was in
senior roles in magozine
publishing at the BBC and
Redwood group for 14 vears

What excites you about your
new role?

It's o brandnew role at Archant
50 s exciting to be of the stort
of a project that shows so much
promise |'ve been impressed by
Archant's commitment and vision
to be os successhul onkine as
they are in prnt, and they have
bocked this up with resources

to get the job done

100,000 email addresses,
with 90,000 askmng to receive
GBL’s weekly e-newsletter
contaimng local-interest
articles and compentions ”

The benefits are clear
“Readers benefit frum the
strengeh of our coverage -
events, hifestyle tips and
regional news — while adverusers
gain massive reach across
affluent and engaged
audiences,” says Mary

That’s something Tan Fish,
finance director, Archant
Lafestyle, agrees with “Social
media builds audience loyalty,
as scen by the incrcasing
number of print subscnpuions
taken out onhine ™ GBL's
Chnstmas 2010 gift subscription
campaign generated 1,656
orders onhne in just mne weeks

[an concludes “It’s part of
an integrated package where
mulople access points help
build strong media brands
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FRASER CHAPMAN,
COMMERCIAL DIRECTOR,
JOBS24

What attracted you to
become part of Archani?

| was impressed with Archant’s
clear wision 1o dominate ther
market and instantly wanted to
be pert of it The opportunity 1o
develop a new digital platform
was an exciing challenge and
one | knew we could achieve

What skills and expetience do
you bring?

My expenence developing new
digttal recritment products in @
morkeHeading pubbshing
envkonment wos a perfec fit for
this role | also bring expenence
n implementing soles strategres
that mprove effectveness

within many media sectors

My expenence leading ond
influencing geogrophically spread
leams fo manage ‘change’ projects
lends tself well i1c the rcle

What axcites you about your
new role?

Archant shares my possion for
ensuning that jobs24 continues to
profitably exceed our jobseekers
ond chents’ needs The most
exciling element to my role 15 that
| have the opportunity to wark with
o dverse group of expenenced
ond dedicated mdmduals

‘largeted
Innovation

During 2010, Archant continued
to increase its portfolio of highly
targeted publications and websites,
as well as being innovative with

exishng products

IN 2010, ARCHANT 1dennfied
dreds to connect with new
audiences, as well as expanding
its produce offenng through
innavation

Money matters

The personal finance industry
generates £1 billion in
adverusing revenue a year
and Archant has taunched a
compichensive offering that
will aterace a sharc of this
MyAfoney24 was announced

in 2010, hcaded by award-
winning personal finance writer,
Adam Aiken (below) Adam
has worked with Archant for
12 yecars — most recently as
Fastern Daly Press (KDP) depucy
business editor — buc his
passion 1s personal finance
and he has always pushed for
more consistent coverage
across the Group “I launched
a regular column in the EDP
i 2007, he explains, “and

in February 2010 [ became
what we belicve was the fing
full-time regwnal personal

MyMoney24
Adom Acken
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finance wnrer in the 1TK

“Personal finance has naconal
appeal, mortgages, pensions,
savings and borrowing intereat
different audiences at different
hfe stages Being part of Archant
gives the sitc 4 competve
advantage We will be providing
an opinion picce for every one
of Archant’s weekly utles, which
have a combined circulation of
1 1 million The nch content
will ateract a wide range of
advertisers = from small, local
personal finance businesses to
nauonal providers ”

Archant’s daily newspapcrs
also benefit from the tcam’s
mcisive news and comment
“T'he EDPs *Moncy Matcers’
column was rcbranded as
MyMeoney24 and 15 a double
page spread It now appears
every Saturday in the £DP and
in che Fust Anglean Denly 1imes
and Kent on Sundeay "

Adam 15 also using the CMS
to distnbute news stones “We
are 4 resvurce for editors, helping
them cackle lacal and natuonal
isues We are also working
with the Archant Tafe ntles to
ensure they have a range of
articles for use throughout the
year These target speaific
audicnce segments and aim
to provide shmulanng content
for readers and an atrractive
environment for advertisers —
as well as dnving waffic to the
MyMoney24 website ™

Mew-leel recruitment
When I'raser Chapman
became the new commercal
dircctor of yobs24 in May 2010,
he was tasked with relaunching
the site to ensure 1t retained
s postoen as a leading
recruitment portal “We had

to offer a simple way to find

®® Unique
visitors on
jobs24 were
up 48 per
cent year-
on-year9®

the night job quickly We also
wanted to help recnuiters
differentiate themselves

0 4 crowded market ”

With extensive expenence
of managing online job portals,
including the aw ard-winming
Times Educational Supplement site,
Fraser’s first move was to
apposint a speciahst provider of
online recruitment platforms
“We had to ensure the new site
was flcxible and responsive ™

The new site 1s cleaner and
casicr to usc "It also offcrs
seekers great functionaligy,
which recally empowcrs them,”
he says “They can refine ther
search by location, sector and
salary They can also sign up
for cmanl alerts as soon as we
adverusc a new job that macches
their saved searches ”

A mobile-optimised pods24

woarw archant co uk




sitc was launched at the same
time “Seeckers can browse
for jobs on the move and our
sales team can offer chents a
portfolio of new products that
generate addinonal revenue
Advernsers hke the new
enhanced ads because they
make jobs look more exciting,
and chat boosts enquines ™ The
response has been excellent, he
adds “CV numbers on the siute
trebled 1n the first ewo months
following the relaunch in
September,” says Fraser
“Umique visitors were up
48 per cent yedr-on-yedr
More impressively, considering
the challenging jobs market,
digual revenue 15 up 12
per cent and means we are
outperforming the market”
The new site works because
of 1ts great hyper-local scrategy,
adds Fraser “We understand
our communitics, that cnables
us to engage a loyal local
andienge and cnables recruntcrs
to cross-advertise successfully
in cur prnted media - we give
them muluple routes o market
and our seekers greater job
opportunitics ”

A year of firsts

For Archant Herts & Cambs,
2010 was a year of firsts — notably

www archont co vk

the launch of Cambridge First, a
weckly paper that takes “a fresh
took” at the ciry “We call itz
Z1st-century weekly,” says
Herts & Cambs managing
director, Stuare McCreery,
“because tts ‘mulu-platform,
mutuple roures to market’
approach 1s the future for local
newspapers ” These routes
include paid-for sales, free
pick-ups, hand-outs in hugh
footfall locations, a website
and a molnle site — a formula
that also provides excung
ways to work with adverasers
“Archdnt s a progressive,
communsty media company,”
says Stuart “Cambridge First
implements many of our
mnovatve ideas on local
engagement and distnibution 7

Paul Richardson, editonal
director, adds “Cambridge First
has an onginal design and
refreshing blend of posinive
news and uscful information
It also has a strong rapport with
uts audience, and reflects the
CILY’S reputation as a centre
of research and innovauon ™

In another first, Herts &
Cambs launched Sceme, an
mnovauve weekly ‘newszine’
covenng East Hertfordshire and
Harlow Herts & Cambs
business development manager,

{left) Cambndge hirsts

Left lo nght Poul Richardson
Barry Hunt, Roy Testa

John Wood, Stuert McCreery
ond Jonathan Tewson

Jonathan Tewson, says “Srene
fuses the exctement and thruse
of a ncwspaper with the
glamour and comfort of a
magazine, supporied by web
and mobile sites ”

Seene also takes muluple
routes to market, including the
use of 41 pansh council outlers
to distnbute copies to rural
arcas Editor, Barry [une, adds
“We aim to increase reader
mvolvement by dehivening
destrable, relevant and aceurate
conteng, at 2 ime and placc to
suit them ”

Jason Valentine, regional
advertisement manager, 1s
proud of the team for dehvering
such an excepuienal publication
“With 1ts sharp news and
contemporary design, it meets
the needs of our readers and
Creates a positive environment
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for adverusers and sponsors "
Herts & Cambs’ third
success was the acquisiion of
Cambridge-focused Explorer
magazine, which celebraced i1ts
100th edition in December
This vibrant ‘what’s on?’ guide,
with its individual editonal scyle,
keceps readers abreast of the
lztest leisure and entertaimment
opportunitics i the cicy and
surrounding arca “Explorers
an ideal fit with our cxisting
utles,” says Stuarc McCreery,
“mving Archant a comprehensive
portfolio of products covenng
the exciang Cambnidge marker
It also provides us with an
oppertunity to develop kxplorer’s
digital offering and replicate
the format in ocher markets ”

Lifestyle launches
Archant [ afe relaunched
in Lewestershire and
Notunghamshire, and acquired
a ticle in Herefordshire “We
cantnue to stnive to achieve
our ambition of having a ntle
in every Enghish county,”
says Archant Lafe managing
director, Johnny Hustler
“Qur coverage offers
advcrusers a local solution
of consistent qualiry”
Synergics arc dlso being
exploiced berween Archant
divisions The opportunity to
promote local cvents, such as
Porsche Club cvents, through
Life utles, 15 now a regular
part of Archant Dhaloguc’s
pitches for new business
“When Archant Norfolk
launched an cquestnan
magazine in 2010, 1t was
able to draw on Dialogue’s —

Chapelfield celebrahon
Innavation 1s not |ust about new
tfles and formats, exploms Tim
Wilhams Norwich Evening
News editor “We dlso use
exishng products in different widys
to create o real buzz for readers
and key customers — such ¢s
Chapelheld shopping centre’s
sponsorship deal with the
newspaper, celebrafing s

hfth birthday *

For one day in September, the
MNorwrch Evening News mixed
regular news with content specihic
io the Norwich Chapelfield mall
- induding a fashtan feature on
the new Superdry store, TV
programme reviews by
Chopelheld sicff and o look at
the centre’s green credentiols
Chapelfield’s generol monager
Daovina Tarner [nght], who was
guest edilor for the day, says

“This was an exciling and
innovative portnership Credil fo
Tim and his team for the 1dea —
and for making a positive local
business story even more relevant
and engoging Thot helped boost
our footfall across the week —
and sales of the newspaper So it
was good for our consumers and
retollers, as well as Archent and
its reqders *

1
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Sales innovahon
drives spend

Helping advenisers maamise thesr
sales 15 good business - successhul
COMPAIgNs encourage repeat
backings That's why Archont
mvested 1n o Mclnnis & Associates
design and sales course for 320
sales people, more than half its
salles force

Bob Melnnis, based in the US,
specighses in teaching sales leams
to undersiond customers and lailor
campaigns 1o their needs, aming
to "help adverisers get the best
response possible”

Linda lkwue, Archant Life
{obove], sow immediate benehts
of the training  *One cusiomer
planned to pull ther account
because of poor respanse,” she
explons, *bul, following the
troming | helped moke therr ad
more effectve As o result they
moved from a quarter poge o a
full page and ncreased spend
from £520 in 2009 10 £1,605
in2010°

Stephon Phillips, Aschant
Norfolk’s managing director,
says "The sales team has alieady
generated signdicantly higher
sales revenues The remainder
of the sales workforce will attend

o further workshop in 2011 °

considerable expenence in
the equestnan area,” cxplains
Johnny “And adverusers and
sponsors are taking advantage
of opportumities to reach and
inceract with Archant Life and
Specialist audienees too ™

Dialogue developments
Launching products for new
chicnts and creatng innovatve
solutions for existNg customers
kcpt Archant Dhalogue busy
during 2010 “*As well as seeing
the rebirth of Saab in 2010, we
also launched our first monthly
customer magazine for Porsche
Club GB,” explains chent
services director, Chris Raner
“Each ssue of the 136-page
maga/sne mcludes SO pages
of adverusing which generate
significant advertsing
revenue,” adds head of
ddvertising Sam Overton

The Army Cadet Force (ACF)
PUL 15 MagdAne out t tender
m edrly 2010 Fighung off
tough compeuuon from leading
industry players, Archant
Dialogue was awarded a threc-
year contract Melamie Bowran,
head of markecung and
commurucations at the ACF
satd “The deaision to appoint
Daaloguc was unammous Their
proposal was very detailed and
we were incredibly impressed
by the level of enthusiasm of
the tcam chat presented tous ™
Managing cditor, Aisha
Singleton, adds “We worked
hard to gan valuable knowledge
about the orgamsaten Now we
produce their magazine, annual

revicw and -newsleucrs We've
also directed some video work
for them at some of thesr
prestuigious events, including
the Cadet150 Garden Parcy at
Buckingham Palace ”

Dualogue was also appeinted
by the Briush Parachute
Associztion (BP'A) to publish
1ts bi-monchly members’
magazinc Kirsey Kelly,
managing editor, who has been
lcarming to skydive, cxplains
“We also designed, bwilt and
now manage 2 website that
complements the princed
magazine, with news, event
reports and photo gallenes
The BPA was very impressed
with what we have delivered
and asked us to rebutld the
Association’s website to
ncorporate enhine renewal
and membership ™

Archant Dialogue’s work in
the equestnan marketplace
dlso 3aw expansion James
Houlder, commercial manager,
explains “We've been working
with Briush Evenung since
late 2008 and this has given us
a good understanding of the
equestnian marketplace In
mid-2010, working closely with
Annc Bascy-Fisher and Johnny
[Hustler from Archant Lafe, we
presented to the PR team for
the Land Rover Burghley Torsce
Truals the 1dca for 4 Burghley
Life magazinc The magazine
was very well received and
the chient has commutred to
a second edinon to celebrace
the evenc’s 50th anmiversary
imn 20117

NEW TALENT

MICK HURRELL,
MANAGING DIRECTCR,
ARCHANT DIALOGUE

What attracted you 1o become
port of Archant?

The opportunity to coninbute to
Dialogue’s greot success story
and take it o new heights | saw
Archont as an impressively
progressive company, offenng

a unique media portfolo and
platform for growth, combined
with a supportive senior
management feam that
encourages ond mvests in
inncvotan and enfrepreneunal
success

Whiat skills and sxperience
do you bnng?

I have 25 years' expenence

in magazine ond mulmedia
publishing = 15 of those n the
contract publshing sector | brng
a proven track record of giowing
bustnesses and producing
international uwcud-wlnnmg
publications, both s a joumnclist
and publisher | relish challenges,
encourage and embrace
innovahon and bnng a passion
for publishing — 1fs o great
business

What excites you about your
new role?

The sheer scope of the
opporunity Dialogue 1s one of
the country’s most established
publishing agencies, boasting
an emvicble chent st ~ many of
whom have been with us not just
for bve years, but 10 and more
From this strong base we have
the perfect platform to grow
across o range of fronts — new
media, new chents and new
services = 1o explon business
opportunities within the Group
and with national end
international brands
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Dynamic Dvalogue

tefi 1o nght Jomes Houlder Chns Roiner,
Sam Overion Nicolo Presion,

Abi Burroughes Clowe lesbrck

Assha Singleton ond Kirsty <elly
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I .ocal focus

An aligned management struciure
has seen Archant's county magazines
focus on what's really important.

ARCHANT LIFF’S ABILITY to
cnbance and cmpower its local
teams played an important part
10115 success 1n 2010

A reorganisanion in lace 2009
replaced the regional managing
directors with a new flateer,
funcuonal structure Tim
Thurston % as appointed
Group commercial director
and Suzanne Heaven Group
pubhishing director = supporeed
by commercial, publishing and
editurial teams with specialise
expertisc oh the ground

I'he new structure enabled
the faster implementation of
decisions Suzanne expldins
*“The speed we can move
and change things, introduce
cost cfficiencies, share best
practice and improve traiming,
15 much quicker with the
new funcuonal strucrure ”

Tim and Suzannc have
worked closely to ensure they
sprecad a single vision Both
are on the road continuously,
mecting and supporung local
teams Archant Life has mine
offices across the country in
addition to a high proporuon
of staff who work from home
“We need to ensure we
masntain the strength of our
ragline ‘made in the county,

www orchant ¢o uk

especially for the county’,”
says Suzannc

The new structure meant
the teams neceded ume to
cvolve and absorb the new
culcure of conunuous product
and skill development
“Cnuque noc crincism’ 15
the motto for every utle
ICVIEW MEChng SO cveryone
understands that part of our
professiunal job satisfaction s
0 tmprove every aspect of
what we do - dll the ume,”
explains Suzanne

“I he iggest challenge,”
adds Tim, “was a lack of balance
- some titles were too focuscd
on being platforms for
adverusing sales, wich very
tieele atcention pad wo the
needs of readers, while others
were editonial-led but with
insufficient attention pard to
the cffcer on che commercial
attracuvencss of the resulang
product,” he explans

Tim and Suzanne’s goal has
been to focus teams on whats
most important — the reader
“The reader is the responder,”
says Tim “If they are happy
and responsive that makes
our adverusers happy

“We have really invested
in understanding what our

Teamwork
Suzonne Heaven
ond Tim Thursion

customers want Suzanne hosts
regular reader focus groups and
I meet as many adverusers as 1
can, as docs my tcam We can
tailor our products to cnsure
they are beauafully designed,
with the nght mux of content
and adverusing We have proved
that bespoke local content that
focuses on highlighting local
people and local places dnves
response for advertisers and
creates confidence in the teams,
compleung the vircuous arde ”

There 1s now far greater
engagement and inferdction
with the reader, says Suzanne
“Instead of only focusing on
content from professional
Joumalists, we acuvely encourage
reader photographs, local
cxpert columnists and comments
from local people — a user-
generated content approach
that explonts the capabihoes
of digital media ™

This 1s complemented
by the development of a
substanual onling audience
through the creation of
wezty greatbriteshitfe co b
“When Grear Briansk Life ran
a compenton suppornted by
Land Rover, it attracted nearly
30,000 entrics — a gredt source
of content that we can publish
in the printed magazines ”

A commercial league table
ensures that cach team knows
how tts magazine 1s performing
overall, and the ‘best i of
editonal and commereial concent
are shared across the Archane
{.afe teams by Suzannc and
her team

“The old management
struceure created inter-region
competition — now the
compeutive focus is external
to cnsure that Archant Lafe
reeains its unique publishing
posIlon — consistent
circulavion growth for the
past 10 ycars — and the growth
of profitable adverusing
markee sharc 15 achicved

“We are very proud of the
teamwork at a local level,”
concludes Suzanne “The
Archant Awards nominanions
were really difficult because
there are so many good people
working i Archant Life who
really care abouc thew products ™

Iigh-qualiry front covers are

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

NEW TALENT

SHARON KIRBY,
PUBLISHING DIRECTOR,
ARCHANT HFE LONDON

What oftracted you to becoms
part of Archoni?

| have abways understood the
value ond place in the community
of excellent local magozines
While working ot IPC 1 continued
to walch Archant grow s Life
business with cunosity and
admiration In the past decode,
businesses have begun 1o
undesstand the need to be less
globol and more local

What skills and experience
do you bring¥

I have 24 years' publishing
expenence working across
regional newspapers and
magozines — the past 10 years
spent in nghonal mogozines
across men's, music, women'’s,
luxury, homes and weeklies

What sxcites you about your
new role?

Everything! Great brands in
afflyent neighbourhoods an AB
reach in london, and a great
new team the! beleves m and
loves the brands as much as | do
There are also huge opporuniies
for brand extensions and new
platforms

ahsolutely paramount to copy
sales, adds im “We have
enabled our covers to become
a revenue SIredm on 0ccdsion
Several of our front covers
have been sponsored — but you
wouldn’t know 1t. This 1s an
example of being true o our
values, but being able to
respond to short-term revenue
opporcunincs "

The challenge now 15 to
conunuc to INNovate because
new competitors are conseantly
launching “Managing and
supporung disparate locations
and teams requires lots of
enecrgzy and excellent
commumcauons to be added 1o
the very best of walent locally,”
says Tim “Thuis s a challenge
both Suzanne and T relish ”

X
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140 years of the
Eastern Daily Press
In 2010, Archant Norfolk's Eastern
Danly Press [EDP) celebrated its
140th binthday Celebrations
mcluded unning histonc front
pages from the post 140 years,
a sowenir supplement, on
exhibition at Norwich Cathedral
ond recephon for more than 50
former ond current journabsts
ond o special celebratory DVD

On October 22 the EDP hod
a National Express rain nomed
Eastern Daily Press 140 at
MNorwich's Thorpe stahon The
tratin was unvedled by editor Peter
Woters ond on EDP reader

Peter said “Being reminded of
the history of this newspaper 1 a
salutory lesson to journalists to
remember who therr cudience 15
We've served Norfalk for 140
years, we're the bigges! selling
regional morning newspaper in
Englond, and our continued
success 15 down to serving the
county, reflecting s 1ssues and
witerests, holding people 1o occount
when necessory, and highhghting
what @ great p|c:ce it1s o hve 7

Suffolk’s Evening Star
celebrates 125 years
Archant Suffolk s Evening Stor
celebrated s 125th birthdoy on
February 17, 2010 with special
supplements fectures communily
events, a Ive radio show ond o
huge coke

Messages of congrohlction
came from the Prnme Minister, the
leader of the Oppositon and
leading Ipswich and Suffolk
dignitanies

Since February 17, 18835,
when it was hirst published os
The Stor of the East, the paper
has remained af the heart of the
community It has been there to
deliver news of major world,
nahenal and local events over
two centuries from the outbreak of
the First and Second World Wars
1o the terronst orocihes of @/11
and7/7

Bui as well as reporting the
news of events which have
shacked and stunned the fown,
the Evening Stor has ahways
been there 1o celebrate the good
things 1n Iife with s readers

24

‘The paid-for
growth challenge

Newspaper circulation in the UK has been in general
decline for many years However, it i1s possible to fight
this trend, as Archant Regional proves

GROWING ARCHANT’S AUDIENCE
and that audience’s engagement
with 1ts media 1s essental for
the furure of the Group
“Increasing the number of
pcoplc that pay for our content,
whether that 15 1n a newspaper,
magazing or onling, 1s csscnoal,”
says Adnan Jcakings, chicf
cxcecutve, whoissued a
challenge to senior managers 1n
carly 2010 “Halt the dechine in
newspaper circulauons and get
them growing again " This was
aganst anndustry average of
an annual 5-7 per cent decline
for precty much every local

newspaper in the country
“There are three reasons
for the UK’s downward trend
1 pad-for circulation changes
m media consumption,
dcmographics and distnibunion,”
explains Brian McCarthy,
Archants finance dircecor
“The launch of mutuple radio
and TV channcls changed the
way people consume news —
the internct accelerated that
change Consumers now have
gredrer access to news and
opinions than ever before ”
Breaking news 1s now largely
the preserve of medis other

than pnint — particularly rolling
24-hour ncws channels and
social medza siwes such as
Twitter “Print has to adapt to
reflect that, by providing more
detailed and relevant analysts of
events, for example,” he adds

Dcmographically, many
young people, raised on mass-
mcdia, haven't acquired the
habit of buying newspapers
casually or on subscnption
They tend to rely on mobile
ncws distnbution So, Archant
15 making 1ts content available
through muluple, strongly
branded channels

www archant co uk




Brnan cbserves “People
often overlook the mundanc
issue of physical distnbuoaon,
vet good distnbution and daca
management are key to
maintaimng and even growing
circulanion One problem s
that home delivenes are
dechning - not just because
of falhing demand but also
lack of avarlabuhiry Many local,
independent newsagents are
closing Somc arc taken over
by national retail chans or
nothing replaces them and
trade mugrates to edge-of-town
superstores

Either way, it leaves fewer
people prepared to provide local
delivenes

In 2010, Archant began w
fight back against the decline
“kffivieny, responsive
crrculation management 1s
crinedl to winning, recamng and
regaimng readers,” says Bnan [t
also has other business benefits,
such as conuoliing costs,
reducing waste (which 1s also
good for the environment) and
IMPLovINg reums

“People must be abk. to get
our content where and when
they want it That means
devcloping muluple routes to
markct for physical as well as
vircual products

*We are working morc closcly
with newsagents on vanous
imuauves [or instance, we use
them — and accurate markeang
data = 1o canvdss new customers,
who they then supply

“We help transfer home
delivenes from one agent to
another, if one 1s taken over

or ¢loses We have also
invested in our mecchandising,
partrcularly for promotions

and point-of-sale matenals,
and we train shopkeepers on
ways of improving sales of
sclected atles ”

As well as smproving
traditional channels, Archant has
an active programmc of
promonng sclected titles at
hgh-profile cvents in their
circulation arcas “We have
stands ar agncultural shows,
arshows, football games and
horsc tnals — even local Lord
Mayor’s shows ™

These cvents are a great
way to promotc Archant’s
products, because the context
shows potenoal customers
that a local utle 1s relevant to
them It also rerminds lapsed
readers what they are missing.
“As a result,” concludes Brnan,

“we have actuaily delwered
yedar-on-yedr carcilation growth
on some tiles ”

Adnan Jeskings adds “1 am
dehghted that two of our daily
papurs grew therr arculation
in the second haif of 2010 Also,
half of our weekly ntles outside
London are showing year-on-
year growth ” In recogmition of
this success, Archant Norfolk’s
Audrence Growth Team was
named Archant Team of the
Year at the 2010 Archant Awards,
for spectacular resulis on the
EDF, Evening News and weckly
NCWSPAPCrs

Closer to customers
Gerung closer to readers has
pad dividends for Archant Lafe
too, as mdanaging director
Johnny Hustler explains
“Despite 2010 being a tough
vear, we have delivered revenue

Effective distribuhon management

Archant fought back against the decline in the
aerredlation of local newspapers dunng 2010, focusing
on retaining and regoining readers as well os largeting

new reoders through multiple routes to market The
business benefhits from cost control ond waste reduction,
which 15 also good lor the emaronment

waww archant co uk
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8 People
must be able
to get our
content where
and when
they want it99

Team cof the Yeor 2010

Left 1o nght Merwyn Freemon, Nedl
Bowman, Jo Hawkins, lon Condron
ond Don Willamson

and circulation growth -
including 4 10th successive year
of eirculation growth for our
Lounty magdanes ”

He also puts this urculation
succesy down to the wam’s
skdls *\We have people who
have worked for newspaper
distnburors and magazine
wholesalers They understand
the 1ssues and are making our
distribution more efficient
and greener so that less of the
CoVer price gocs on getung
magazincs o market.”

That has led to one parucular
development in 2010 “We
started supplying some retailers
dircctlv from our pninter,”
cxplains Johnny “The main
motvacon was £o reduce waste
Now Booths, which 11 an
important retaler with 26 stores
n the north west, reccives
copies dircetly from us and
sells every one ™

He also stresses “We
contnue to work with our
lugistivs partners to merease
supply cham efficiency,
partcularly by improving the
sales data we get back from
retatters 1 his wall help reduce
the number of magarines that
have to be pulped cach month
—which is good for us and the
environment 7

However, Johnny comes back
to Bnan’s point about strong
brands “We are a local media
company — we live or die by our
localness — which 1s why we
have a clear objective of having
4 Magazinc 1n cvery councy
En 2011, Archant plans w
strengthen s merchandising
support for independent stores
becausc local shops nun by local
people are good for sclling lacal
magazincs Johnny concludes
“They understand themina
way that the navonal chains
sometimes don't "
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NEW TALENT

PENNY WHITELOCK,
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
DIRECTOR, WEDDINGS &
PUBLISHER, ARCHANT LIFE

What altracted you to become
part of Archant?

I was affracted to Archant for

its siang belief in the printed
product | quickly recogmsed the
appetite for continued growth and
development for new and existing
tkes | could see there wos an
opporumity 1o work with beauhful
and welkrespected editonal
products This meant | would get
the chonce fo work with editors
which brings new challenges and
chances to lean  Further, 1 was
gwven the opportunily to leok at a
side of the business that 15 entirely
new to me exhibitions

‘What skills and experience

do you bring?

| come to Archant with 10 years’
publishing experience of a senior
levet This means that | hove
good knowledge not only of the
stigfegic processes needed o
toke businesses forward, but |
have alse gone through many
chonges in the business ond so
can bring sclutions to the table

to help move Archant forward
thiough current changes | have
a broad range of commercial
expenence in managing the
people, the processes and the
hinances which makes me o good
allounder which 1s of value in
the Life business

What excites you about your
new role?

The senior management teom
at Ufe have open minds and
welcome deas, which is really
refreshing
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Investing in
new ideas

People remain at the heart of Archant In 2010
Archant embarked on three programmes to
encourage new ideas from the geographical
community in which 1t i1s based, while helping
education in the region

ARCHANT THRIVES ON 1deas
from 1ts employeces, so pursues
policies to draw 1n talented
individuals from regronal
communitcs while also
supportng locdl edutational
csaablishments

Fresh thinking

Archant has always had a good
relauonshtp with Norwich
University College of the Arts
(NUCA) This was furcher
strengthened in 2010 when
Archant Norfolk agreed o
donate £50,000 a year {(for
three years) to NUCA and

to provide live projects for
students “This sponsorship
shows that Archant takes its
social responsibihines senously,”
says Stephan Phullips, Archant
Norfolk’s managing director,
“but 1t also makes good
business sense¢ Drawing on
such an extraordinanty rich

talent pool gives us a real, long-

term, competuve advantage ”
"I he first project was to

redesign the classified columns

in print ‘1 he judges selected
four tcams of cthrec students
(plus tutors) from 48 applicattons
o work on the bnief Those
tcams presented therr work
to Archant Norfolk’s exceunive
team — and the results were
“absolutcly brifluanc™, says
Stephan “They were so good
that we will use the winming
design vo relaunch our
classificds sccuons in our
newspapers tn 2011 "

[Te conunucs “Ic helps the
students becausc they have
to producc ‘rcal work' that
demonstrates to their tutors
that they can meet the needs
of a modern media company
Meanwhile we bencfic from
their fresh vision and thinking
which has the web as a default
setting, so they naturally come
up with somc innovative 1deas ”

For some of the students
there was another benefit.
“Having scen their work,” says
Stephan, “and how they firred
into the team, we fele confident
enough tw employ three of
them (Mary Hender, Tucy
Maoss and Stewart Muller)
full ume We hope to do the
same agan in future ”

As Lucy Moss, now an
editonal designer, confirms
“It’s been 4 great expericnce
—the Archant team s really
supporuve Knowing how hard
1t15 1o get 4 Job ar the moment,
I fcel really tucky to have been
offered such an excellent
opporcurnity so soon afecr
graduaong”

The apprentices

Archant’s educaconal focus also
mcludes traiming City College
Norwich (CCN) apprentices
Eighe CCN digueal apprenuces
worked with Ashley Spooner,

CCN apprentices Back row, left 1o nght working wih Andiew Denny - Ellie Gooch  Suzonne Chamberin, Hannah Mctlian
worung with Ashley Spooner ~ Sope Compbell Manse Aloow ond font sow left lo ight Emma Porker and Som Gibson

www archant co uk
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Left to nght Fayzur Rohmen,
Helol Ahmed, Vol Bulgin
and Lean Compbell

Inveshng in our communihes
Archant doesn’t just take on
graduates and co"ege students —
the Group olso understands that it
has o responsibility to invest in the
communihies 1t serves That 1s why
it 1s parheularly keen to help young
people from diverse backgrounds
to gatn valuable work experience
and fraining

One such inihative s Archant
London’s Aspirahions Programme,
which 15 run in conjunction with
the East London Business Alllance
(ELBA) @ not-for-proht community
organisation that works for long-
term posihve change through
volunteenng, employment and
|l=gr.|r.y programmes

“The | 2-week programme 1s
open to 18-24-year-alds from ol
walks of life, who are reclly keen to
earn and learn,” says Val Bulgin,
HR officer for Archant Landon whe
15 the driving force behind the
programme and ELBA's main

contact “Its aim 1s to help
parhaipants build new skills and
strengthen their CVs We dlso
guarantee to interview everyone
who complelas the programme if
wa have any suitable vacancres "

The progromme launched in
September 2010 and immedhately
had aver 30 applicants,
dernonsfruhng the level of demand
for such opportunities Followang
o nigorous selechon pracess, ELBA
chose six applicants who 1t felt
hod the necessary molvahon and
aphiude “ELBA prowides financial
support for all the participants, o
it has to be conhident that they will
get the most from the programme,”
Val explains “IF's fatr to say that
some candidates have compheated
lives that make holding down o
job difficult *

The first part of the programme
15 an infensive two weeks of
employability traiming ot ELBA's

faalihes in Londen’s Docklands
"The whole programme 15 kilored
to the needs of the parhapants and
our needs os an employer, so it
includes Archont-specific content,”
explains Val “Members of our team
even ge! involved with the imnihial
training so parhcipants know what
to expect when they |ain us for the
main 10 weeks of the programme

*I'm pleased to say that the
three who completed the course
also had successhul internews with
us We hove now token them on
hull ime, one in marketng and
two 1n sales, and they are dll
doing really well They have a
great work ethic and have fitted
into the team *

Archant London has worked
with ELBA for o number of years
and recently sponsored the design
and build of ELBA's new website
As o spokesperson for ELBA says

“Archany's experhise and support

has been invalucble in terms of
communicating ELBA's visions fo
a much broader audience *

“This sort of community work
s good for Archant,” says Val
“I's great to be able to give young
people these opportunities, it shows
us fo be a postive employer and
it reflects the diversity of our
audiences Even if we only help
participants learn good hfe skills
we have achieved something -
but if we can go on to employ
some of them then that 15 0
real tnumph

“That 15 why we will be running
more Aspirahons Programmes in
2011," she condudes "In fact, one
of our new recruits, Foyzur
Rahman, has even volunteered to
speak to parhcipants on the next
course because he wants to help
them understand that it really 15
worth their effort - now that's what

I call commitmenti®

Archant Norfolk’s digital
development director, and
tus colleague Andrew Denny,
digital directones manager
“Four apprenuces worked
on social medsa projects,”
cxplains Ashley, “using siutes
such as Twitecr and FMaccbook
to promotc events around
Norfolk Some cvents arc
customer sponsored, so our
onhinc acuvity strengehens
therr print campaigns Others,
such as Norwich Fashion
Week, only have editonal
coverage — but we create a
buzz 1n advance to increase
rcadership ™

He also sees plenty of value

www aichant co uk

in the one-year apprenuceship
scheme “It’s a great way for
students to gain meda
expenence — with the potenual
to go full-ume — and we gain
from their natural affinity for
all things digical

Orther apprennices created
hisungs for the LocalSearch24
trusingss direecory, adds
Andrew Denny “We use the
tcxt and images from customer
wcbsites - we even design
logos if they need ane, which
makes a huge difference,” he
explams “Previously, hsungs
took two weeks to go hive
Now 95 per cent are live
within an hour of booking —»
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KEVIN
QUARTERMAINE
WEDDING BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

What attracted you fo become
part of Archani?
Archant onginally acquired my
successhl Cheshire wedding
business in 2007 There were
many synergies between the two
businesses and Archant could
also provide addhonal resources
for #s continued growth

tn 2010 Archant cffered me
the apportunity to lead the future
development of their wedding
business across the Group,
uthsing the bronds end business
model | had created 1 wos
delighted 1o accept

What skills and experience
do you bring?
By combining the business skils
I gained fom my menagenal
positions in a knancial ple with
my many years' expernience in the
wedding indusiry, | created the
largest independent wedding
business plus renowned wedding
brands in the north west

My bockground provides me
with the credenhals necessary lo
help drve Archanis wedding
business forward 1o the next level

What excites you about your
new role?®

The wedding sector has shown
iself in the post ta be more
reshient in kmes of recession
Despite the current financial
difficulties, | have always enjoyed
a challenge ond therefore
welcome the opporunity to use
my expenence of praven best
wedding business prachices, 1o
help Archant achieve s objectves

across dll wedding media plotforms
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and all within 24 hours ”

The apprenuces also mock-
up listings so the sales ccam
cdn show target clients what
their hstngs mughe look hke
“U'hesr work has helped boost
average conversion rates from
5 8 pereent to 15-16 per cent,”
conchudes Andrew

Degrees of talent
The need co discover new
talenc 15 behind Archant’s
support for CCN’s new two-
year Journahsm Foundation
Degree, launched in
September 2080 “This course
1s particularly appropnate for
Archant becausc it cquips
students with traditional skalls
and the abilicy to thrive in
modern multimecha, mula-
platform ncwsrooms,” says
EDP editor Peter Waters

IHowcver, Archant provides
more than advice “Qur
journalists meet students
regularly to discuss industry
1ssues and graduartes gain real
work cxperience with us,”
adds Peter “Most importantly,
we will repay the fees of the
o best students and offer
them editanal jobs ™

As CCN's vice-prinapal
Rohin Ghurbhurun observes
“1 his mnovatve partnership
supports our development of
work-based qualifications with
leading employers who offer
the besr placements

Making the grade
Archani continues to provide
graduates with first-hand
expencnce of the media
industry chrough mternships
“Internships arc a good way to
evaluate potential employees,
and graduatcs gan valuablc
cxpenence,” says Tim
Youngman, head of digital
markenng at Archant Regional
Tim was impressed by the
interns he found through
Evolve, the University of East
Angha's graduate placement

scheme “Ruth Barton joined
in January and proved so good
that wc made her an online
andlystin March Sadse Jennings
joined in che summer and shone
—she became a digital marketing
excecunve in November ™
Bemg an Archant incern 1s 4
Eredt opportunity, says Ruth
“You're in at the deep end bue
you learn a loc 1n a shorc space
of ume Even without the job
it would have been worth 1t ™

Life opportynitias

Lan IMish, Archant Lifestyle’s
finance director, also used
Evolve to find 1ntern business
analyst Jocl Murphy “Tlec was
very good, worked hard and
leatned new softwarc skalls
These, we understand, helped
him win an analyst’s job in
[.onestoft”

Interns Ross "Faylor and
Elizabeth Kirk got plenty of
valuable expencnce dunng
their three months working
on GBL’s websites Mary
Brooks, editor and publisher,
says “They uploaded content,
tested funcuonality, used social
markcung and produced ads ”

Learning on the |ob

left to nght Emma ty-Chubb,
Abi Burroughes  Sadie Jennings,
Kesry Asmstrong and Ruth Barton

Meanwhile Juhan Rees,
cditonal and publishing
manager, Archant Life (South
West), says that Alcx Richards,
a three-month intern, carmed
hersclf a six-month traince
editonal assistant’s contract
“Alex started working on our
local weddings business website
where she showed a flair for
fashion and beauty wnung, so
we were pleased to give her
this opportunity ”

Alex adds “The graduate
jobs market 1s really tough, so
I am dehghted to be working
with Archant *

London calling
T’he government’s new
graduate recruitment website,
graduaietalentpool direct gov vk,
proved a uscful resource im
2010 for Steve Fenron, head
of communtcation at Archant
London “Tused this site to
target interns for research and
marketng projects A concise
buief and simple online
screening process enabled
mec to find cight mrems
“They camc with plency
of theorcuical knowledge and
a huge enthusiasm to put all
this study to practical use n
a commercial environment
T'he results were excellene,
and we have now recruited
three of them full-ume
Providing internships gives
graduates valuable expenence,
particularly in this tough
marker, and helps us wdenufy
talented indivaduals who will
be 4 redl asset to the team ™

Challenge Norfolk

100 days

Aschants support for apprentices will continue in 2011 with the National
Apprenhceship Service {NAS} The Group 1s one of a number of leading
local business organisations working in partnership with NAS on on
ambitious campaign o create 100 opprenhiceships in Norfolk in just

The ‘Challenge Norfolk 100 1n 100’ compaign, which launched
at City College Norwich in 2010, also aims to reise awareness of
the benehis in apprenticeships with businesses and young people
As Teresa Logan, employer services director for NAS, says “There has
never been a more crucial ime for employers in Norfolk to engage
with apprenhceships They are wital io the future success of the regions
businesses and to the local economy”

“Training apprenhces 1s an important demonstration of our belief in
corporate social respansibihity,” says Archont's chief executive, Adnian
Jeakings “Even if we don't go on to employ all our apprentices, we
know that they will have benefited from voluable work expenence
and on-the-job iraining that will give their coreers o real boost
Apprenticeships olso make an important contribution fo the health of
socisly because they support hard-working, motrvated young people
and strengthen our country’s skills bose *

www orchort o uk




Greener drmng
Group heod of
procurement and
susianabadity,
Greg Parion

Archant
continues fo
Inveshgate and
implement
initiatives to
reduce the
Croup's carbon
footprint

WHEN ARCHANT STAFF were
gven the option to downgrade
to greener compdany cdrs, three
umes more people took up the
offer than was expected Greg
Parton (above), Group head of
procurement and sustainabihity,
had expected around one 1in 10
to choosc the green opuon, 1n
fact, around one in three have
donc so General approval for
the scheme has prompted
Archant to move to lower
emussion versions of all
company vehicles The car
scheme reduced Archant’s CO,
crssions by eighe per centin
2010 on a like-for-like basis
compared to 2009

Archant’s operations director,

www archont co uk

Archants

oreen
champions

Nick Schiller, welcomed the
success of the car scheme as
evidence of the support Archant’s
sustainabidity imnanves are
receiving from Group staff
“There are some schemes we
need to inate from the top
— such as the company car
scheme,” he says, “but there
arc many things everyone can
do on a daily basis, such as
thinking about paper usage
and whether they choose to
walk or dnve to places nearby
Thts 15 a culture change that
we can all support

*“The response to a cail for
‘Green Champions’ 1s furcher
cvidence of the enthusiasm for
this imnaove,” says Tara Greaves,

sustainability correspondent, an
mtemal appointment by Archant
to promote the sustainabihity
mitiative "Tara put our a call
for volunteer champions and
quickly recrnunted around 50
people She says “They have
been shanng ideas via Facebook
and passing them on o Archant’s
team of sustainability
managcment FCPreseniauves ”

One Green Champion
proposcd that a message be
sent to users as their PC shuts
down asking them to switch off
thewrr momtors This idea has
been taken further Archantis
investang in software that will
switch off PCs and ther

ANNUAL REPCRT 2010

NEW TALENT

MARK GARRARD,
HEAD OF FINANCE

What atiracted you to become
part of Archant?

1 wos attracted by Archant's
reputation in the seclor, s
odaptability to chonge ond s
proven obility fo innavate More
specifically lo my role, the
opporiunihes to get mvoled n a
vanety of different and challenging
projects Finance roles come in
many guises however, crtical to
me 15 vonety, being challenged
daily and intesacting with people
not spreadsheets The Heod of
Finance role at Archant hcked all
of these boxes

What skills and experience

do you bring?

Prior 1o joining Archant | worked
in @ senior inance role for a
hsted company operating in the
healh and social care market
The company grew significantly
as 1t adapted to chonges in the
sector, providing me with the
opportunity 1o develop further skills
and experience 1n ocquisiions
and refmancing | olso bring
experhse ganed ocross a brood
ronge of indusines dunng nine years
with PacewaterhouseCoopers

| worked wih businesses
expenencing significant change,
ranging from those on the
cequisthon rail to those looking
to refocus on thewr core aciivilies

What exates you about
your new role?

| am excited by warking for
o business ond 1n an industry
undergoing challenges and
change

accessonces if they are untouched —+
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81t is about balance and
future proofing ... reducing
waste must be a good thing®9®

for a certain length of tme
and at the end of shafts The
sofeware 1s cxpected to
generate five-figure savings
through reductions in energy
consumpnon and o pay for
iself within 18 months

Lara presented at the Archant
cditonal conference and was
grected with an enthusiastic
response [lsing the new CMS,
her copy, promoning deas
such as how to have a greener
Christmas, has been run in the
majonty of Archant’s newspapers
“This type of editorial content,
properly presented and ina
structured package, can generate
revenue,” says Greg Parton
The FDP ran a 1 2-page
supplement on renew able
cnergy opuons for the home
duning the year They
approached renewable energy
supplicrs and installers for
adverusing and sold out

Green schemes
Data 15 beng collected and
distnbuted to managers on four
sustamnabihey key performance
indicators water usage, paper
(print and office), milcage and
encrgy consumption Foergy
mandgement 1 now 4 part of
husiness plans and Archanc s
implementing an vnergy
management standard — [SO
16001 However, one initiative
by Archant Tondon has alrcady
dchvered eight per cent energy
savings by shutting down
systems when the bwilding
was unoccupied at weekends
“"Any new imuanves will
have to be sustaingble for the
business as well as good for the
cnvirenment,” concludes Greg
Parton “It1s about balance
and fucurc proofing Regardless
of the science on chmate
change, reducing wastc must
be 4 good ching ”

Lef 1o right Glen Mackay Duncan Mocdonold James Frankhin, Alon Doy
Tony Dovison Kevin Shelcott and Lisa Donevan

All under one roof
The centralisation of advertising
design ond productian mio
Norwich and the ntroduction of
waorkflow softwore inprove quolity
while reducing casts The new
system 15 simple soles people
scan a rough sketch inlo the sysiem
attached to on order borcode
Within 48 hours o completed
advert s emailed o the customer
for approval 1115 simple, time-
saving and convenient for
customers

“The project began in November
2009 and will be completed i
the second quarter of 2011,
by which ime ol of Archant’s
publications, newspapers and
magozines will be using the new
facility,” says Group information
systems director, Tony Davison
Implementation in Nerfalk, Suffolk,
Combridgeshire and Herfordshire
15 complete

Holf the Archant Life businesses
ore also using the system “The
warkflow's capabilites with daily
ond weekly newspapers hove been
proven,” says Tony, “s0 we were
conhdent in rolling t out across
mogozines too ©

Training on the workflow system
for more than 400 Awchant staff 15
being managed by Tony Davisen
and Kewvin Sheleott, Archont's head
of produchon and design “Most
of those saned found it sraight
forword and intuitive and could
sea a lot of benefit,” says Kevin

“Concentrating adverising
produchion staff ot one location
prevades mherent efficiencies,”
cccording to operotions director,
Nick Schifler “Becouse of the

consohdated volume of work, staff
can specialise As stoff become
mare skillul, they become quicker
and the quality of therr output goes
up It also adds fexiblity as staff
con share workloods and cross-
caver for each other Consolidation
mokes more efficient use of stoff
and space ”

Becouse of the move, a new
group of designers, who are
tomidear wath the lotest techmques
from their ime in college, has
joined the central team  In foct,
implemeniation of the centrahsed
system has ollowed Aschant to
increase the number of designers
working on advertising design

“There ore people who know
that ot the end of the project they
will leave the business,” says Nick
“We haven't dropped any poges
or ads and we haven t had any
problems That 1s 0 huge credd
1o them

The next phase of the project
will be lo set up a set of metnes that
will provide the commercial teams
with an overview of advertising
production "We want to see
meosurement doy by doy and
month by month to prove the
benefits,” adds Tony

Mick Schiller pard mbute to
production director John Ford, ond
others involved in the redesign of
the workflow “The art of good
process flow design,” says MNick,
"5 to come up with a sysiem that 1s
so simple that people do not iy to
find woys around it Itis so simple
ond commonrsense, why would you
do # any other way? Thot 1s very
easy lo say, bul very difficul o do *

Making a difference Taro Greoves susiainooibly correspondent

30

www archant co uk




Report and financiol statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Registered office Auvdiors
Prospect House Ernst & Young LLP
Rouen Road Cambndge
MNorwich NRY 1RE

www orchant eo uk

31




Report of the direciors

The directors present their report and the cudited hinancial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010

Results

The results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in the
Group profit and loss account on page 46 The profit after taxaton of
the Group for the year was £4,455,000 (2009 loss £3,174,000)

Dividends
The directors recommend o final dvidend of 13 7p per share in respect
of 2010

With the first intenm dnadend of 13 7p per share paid on 18 March
2010 and the second intenm divrdend of & 4p paid on 1 Cctober
2010, this will make @ tolat dvidend of 33 8p per share for the year

Assuming approval of the recommended final dividend, the cost of
dwidends for 2010 s

£000
First Intenm 1,886
Second Intenm 880
Propesed finat 1,891
Total 4,657

The proposed final dividend will, 1f approved, be pard on 19 Apnl
20117 1o shareholders appearing on the register of members as at
28 March 2011

Principal activities
The principal actvily of the Company throughout the year has been
to act os the holding company of the Archent group of companies

The principal actvities of the Group throughout the year were, and
continue to be, publishing newspapers and magozines in pnt, online
and through mobile technclogies, contract printing of magozines and
prining newspapers

Business review and future developments

A review of the year and of the Group's prospects 1s set out in the
Chairman's statement on page 4, the Chef Executive’s report on
page 6 and the Financial review on page 8, each of which are
deemed to be incorporated herein The key performance mdicators
for the Group are pnimanly financial, and are included m the
Financial review

Events since balance sheet date

In Febuary 2011, following @ review of our pnnt actvities and an
expected 20% increase in the price of newspnint, we announced o
consuliation with our employees at the Thorpe Print Centre over o
proposat to autsource the prinhing of our weekly newspaper iifles outside

Norfolk and Suffolk to a thirdpary prnter

2

Principal risks and uncertainties

There 1s an ongoing process for the identificahion, evaluahion and
management of the significant nsks faced by the Group This 1s
described in the intemal Control sechion on page 34

The principal nsks and uncertainties are operottonal and finaneing

nisks The financing nisks faced by the Group are descrbed in the
Treasury management, ossociated risks and uncerfanties sechion

of the Financial review The key operahonal nsks are the organisational
stuchure and relention of key people, structural changes in advertising
markets resuling 1n loss of advertising revenues, circulation dechine,
loss of key suppliers, pension fund volatlity and business continuity
Each such nsk 1s being managed to mitgate any adverse impact

on the Group as descrbed below

Organisahon structure and retenhon of key people

Our abilty to execute and implement the Group's strategic and business
pkans relies on the appropnate Group stucture, culture and key people
We promote a cullure of confinuous impravement and will endeaveour to

retain our key people

Adverhsing

We are not overly reliant on any single customer or sector but we

are impacled by the economic downturn being expenenced in the UK
and the structural changes within the indusiry Following the govemment
funding cuts announced 1n 2010, we expect recrutment adverhsing
ploced by public sector bodies o continue to foll We are investing n
the quality and siructure of our sales teams, and ensuning they are
properly incentvised We have stengthened our online presence
through the launch and refresh of our digital brands and continuously
seek new online and mobile technology revenue sources

Circvlahion

We may be impacied by further market declines in newspaper
arculation due to changing Ifestes, changes in the paiddor/free
distribution models ond the proliferation of news disinbution channels
Our approach for newspapers 1 fo focus on relevant conlent and
efficient distnbution mechanisms Revenue lost through dechining
arrculations has been partially offset by cover prce increases Our
magazine circulations are principally drven by our subscnphion strategy

Key suppliers

We have a number of key suppliers which if they were unable to meet
their abligations to the Group could result on disruphon We have an
agreement to source all newspnnt fiom o single major supplier In the
event of disuphion ot one plent, the suppher has guaranteed continuous
supply from their other plants I our telecoms provider was unable

to meet their cbligatons, the Group would expenence disruption

The Group hove put contingency plans in ploce 1o minimise any

such disuplion
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Pensions

The pension deficit 1s carelully monitored and there are regular reviews
with the pension tuslee company [ Tusiee Company”) The Trusiee
Company was estabshed os the corporate Trustee to the pension
scheme in 2010 and 15 independent of the Archant Group The Board
of the Trustee Company comprises of the former Trustees to the pension
scheme The Group cnd Trustee Campany take all appropnate aciions
(=] mmgcre the growlh 1N penston liabtlines However, there cre @
number of foctors which are outside our confrol, including interest rates,
nfiation rotes, life expectancy and regulatory change

Business conhinuity

We are dependent on our technology, networks and printing capability
ond we have invesled in our network and prnhing infrastructure

Dunng 2010 there was a full review of business continuity plans

which are updated on an engoing basis 1o reflect changes in
operations and systems

Share capitol

The 1ssued share capilal of the Company, together with the detalls of
shares 1ssued duning the year are shown in Mole 22 of the financicl
stalerents

Directors
Those who ore currently dieclors, and who served as a director
throughout the year, were

RW Jewson
SC Copeman
JF de Moller
JAE Hustler
AD Jeakings
BG McCarthy
PIC Troughton
RE] Wyt

M M) Walsh was appointed as o norexecutve director of the
Compeny with effect from 16 February 2010

The interests i the shares of the Company of the directors senving
al the year end are disclosed in the Directors’ remunerahion report
on page 42

Corporate governance

The Company 1s not bound by the provisions of “The Combined Code
Panciples of Good Govemance and Code of Best Practice”, but the
Board remains committed to maintaining high skandards of corporale
govemnance

www archant co uk

{a) Board composition and appointment
The Board currenily compnses of nine direciors, six of whom,
including the Charman and ViceCharman, ore norexecutive

The durectors hove sought io ensure that the composition of the
Board 1s such that the skills and experiise present in the board
room, whether denved from technical knowledge or prachec!

experence, are those necessary for the Board to manage the

Compeny effectively

The Articles of Associaton of the Company require that at each
Annual General Meeting of the Company the number of directors
most neorly equating 1o one third [disregarding those appointed
by the Boord since the previous Annual General Meeting] rehre
by rotation

(b) Role and operation of the Board
While the Board as o whole 1s responsible to shareholdess for
the proper monagement of the Group, It has esiablished the
oudt, nominations, pensians and remunerahion committees (the
“Commitees”] as “sanding” committees wath particular responsibilives,
and other commitees are established from time 1o fime 1o deal with
specific matiers The terms of reference of the Committees are sef,
and subject lo penodic review, by the Board The Board has also
established @ formal schedule of matters that it has defermined
should be decded upon only by the Board In particulor, the Boord
defermines the Group's sirategy, approves the Group's business plan
and budget, monikors the Group's finoncial performance, delermines
the Group's funding sirategy and reports io shareholders The Board
also relains responsibility for determining, wathin the: confines of the
Company's Aickes of Associaion, the remunerahon of the
norrexecutive direciors, save that the Chairman'’s fee 15 defermined
by the remunerahion commitiee meeting 1n his absence

Meetings of the Board are minuted, os are those of the committees
of the Board, and all such minutes are considered and agreed

ot o loter meefing of the relevant body, usually the meeting
following that to which they elate Directors are free to request that
their specific views are recorded in those minutes and, in addiion
fo them having access to the odwice and services of the Company
Secrelary, o procedure exsts whereby direciors may take extemal
odvice at the expense of the Company in respect of matters of
concem to them in therr role as o director of the Company

The Company Secretary has responsibrity for ensunng that Board
procedures are followed

The roles of the Chairman and Cheef Executve are separarte and
the dvisien of responsibiliies has been formally set out

In addition ta the six meelings of the Boord scheduled o the
beginning of the year and o fullday sirategy meeting at which
the Board considered the fulure direction of the Group's achivities
in detail, there were meetings of the standing commitees of the
Board in 2010 Additionally, the Board met, erther in full arvia
other duly constituied commitiess, to consider speciic matters
on g number of other occasions i the yeor
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The Chairman mests from ime 1o time with the other nomexecutive
directors in the absence of the executve direciors, usually on on
informal basis

Board committees
The composiion of the standing committees of the Board 15 set aut on
pages 12 and 13, together with directors’ brogrophical detalls

The Board hos sought lo appoint o the standing commitiees
those of their number who, tagether, it considers to have the
mast appropriate skills to encble each committee 1o camy out
those functions allotted to it Annually each committee underiakes
a review of the commiliee’s compliance wath ils releven terms of
reference and reparts its findings to the Board

Audrt

The terms of reference of the audit commitiee, which were last
reviewed in 2008, asugn lo the commiiee, amang other matters,
respensibility for

* reviewing the integnty of the Company's financial statements,
ncluding the consistency of the apphicoton of, and changes 1o,
accounting policies,

* considenng and making recommendations fo the Board in
relaton to the apponiment, reappointment and removal of the
Company’s audiiors,

* overseeing the selechon process for new auditors,

» penodicolly assessing the independence and abjectvily of the
Compeny's auditors,

® reviewing and approving the annual cudit plan and agreeing
the cudi fee,

* reviewing the effectiveness of the aud,

* keepmg under review the effeciiveness of the Company's
mnternal controls and nsk management systems

Nominahons

The terms of reference of the nominations commutiee, which were
last reviewed 1n 2008, include a requirement that, in respect of
each proposed appoiniment to the Board, the commitiee evalucte
the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Boord,
and, in the light of thot evaluation, prepare a descnpiion of the
role and copabiliies required for o particular appoiniment

The commitiee 15 charged wath Wdenlifying suikable candidates for
appoiniment 1o the Boord and with keeping under review the ime
commitments of the nonexecutive directors with a view lo ensunng
that those so apponted have sufficient bme to propery discharge
thetr duties in relation fo the Company

The terms of refecence of the committes also require it to keep
under review the leadership needs of the orgonisation, to gve
full consideration to succession planming for directors and other
senior executives and, in consultation with the Chairmen of those
commitees, ko make recommendations to the Board concerning
the composition of the qudit and remuneration committees

{n} Remunerchon

vk

The terms of reference of the iemuneration commitiee, which were
lost reviewed in 2008, provide that the committee 15 responsible
for determining and ogreeing with the Board the framework and
pohcy for the remuneration of cerdain sentor executves and, n
consuliotion with the Chairman and /or Chief Executive os
appropnale, determining the iotal indwidual remuneration package
{inchxding pensions, bonuses, mcentive payments and share
owards) of those executives The senior executives concemed are
the Chief Executive, who 15 not consulted 1n relation 1o his own
remuneration, his direct reports, the executve directors of the
Company and the Company Secretary The commitiee 15
responsible for approving the terms of any agreement relating

to the terminaiion of the employment of such executives The
committee excluding the Charman also defermines and agrees
with the Board the remuneration of the Chaiman

The: terms of reference of the commitiee require It o review the
design and targels of oll peformancerrelated pay and longterm
share incentive schemes

Pensions

MNew terms of reference were adapied by the Boord in

2010 The pensions commitee compnses the Chairman, Chief
Executve, Finance Director, Company Secretary and Pensions
Mangger The Commitee monitors the performance of the Group's
pension scheme and mokes recommendations 1o the Boord in
respect of the Group's pension arrangements in hght of cunent
circumstonces and anhicipated developments

{d) Board’s relations with shareholders

(e}

Commumication with shareholders 15 undertaken prncipally
through the Annual Report, the Intenm Statement ond af the
Annual General Meeting

There 15 also a programme of meetings between duectors and
major shareholders

The Chaimman and ViceChauman remain willing, subject fo 1ssues
of commercial confidentiality, o discuss wath amy shareholder,
imespechive of the size of therr holding, matters of concemn to

them in relation to the affairs of the Group

Internal control
The directars are responsible for the system of internal control in the
Company and its subsidianes and for reviewing its effectiveness

The control structure ond procedures adopted are designed
to manage, rather than elkminate, the nsk of follure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, and not

absoliste, assurance against matenal missiatement, errors, losses
or froud
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The key elements of mtemal contrel that have been established,
and that were in operation throughout 2010 land up 1o, and
tncluding, the date of this report], ore

* Authonly jo manage the Company's operating subsidianes 1s
delegated, subject to certain constraints determmed by the Board,
to the board of the company concemed Each of the pnincipal
cperating subsidianes holds regular board and management
meehngs that are oftended by semor executives of the Group
Other matters of significance are reporled where reguired,
Annual financial and operahonal budgets and quarterly forecasts
are prepared by operational subsidicries and reviewed and
approved by senor execuives of the Group and, on g
conschdated basss, by the Board,
* Monthly management reports and accounts are prepared by all
operating units and include compansens to budget, pror year and
forecasts Significant vanances are highlighted and invesiigated,
Formal procedures are used 1o assess material invesiments and
capiial projects and approprate due diligence 1s comed out if
a business acquisition 15 proposed,
* The audit commitiee reviews the effectiveness of the financial
control systems and reports areas of concem to the Board

Procedures have been implemented to monitor the: systems for
safeguording assets aganst unauthonsed use, for maintaning
proper accounhing records, and for ensunng the reliobiliy of
financial information within the business

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of all matenal controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and nsk monagement
in 2010 through o tormal procedure to identify, evaluote ond
manage such significant nsks os the Group faces

Each operating unit prepares a nisk matrix annually The matrx
detanls nsks that it 15 thought could prevent the achievement of the
stategic obyectives of that business umil and assesses the likelihood
of their occurrence The measures i place, and proposed,
respect of the montonng and manogement of each such nsk are
documented This information 1s reviewed with the Group Finance
Director Thereofier, senior menagement reviews the nsks to the
Group as a whole, focusing in particular on thase factors thet
could smpoct upon achievement of the Group's stategy

The outcome of the nsk review process 1s summonsed and reported
upon annually to the cudit commuties, lo whom respansibiliy for
such annual review has been delegated by the Board

Operation of the audit committee
The audit commitiee mef on four occasions in 2010

The commitiee reviewed the 2009 Financial Stotements and the
2010 Infenm Statement pror o therr publication

The committee met wath the ouditors in 2010 1o discuss the oudit
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009, matters of
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(9)

(h)

0]

relevence to the 2009 Financiol Stalements and the
proposols for the conduct of the audit in respect of 2010
Other matters considered by the commitiee dunng 2010
included the Group's corporete govemance mecharmsms,
the annual review of operational nsk and a report in reloiion
to the Group's Insurances

Internal audit

The qudit commities considers penodically whether the introduction
of an nternal oudit funciion would sirengthen the control environment
1o the extent necessary to jushfy the addiional costs and the impact
on the operation of the business that such a function would entall

In the hght of the scale and structure of the Group ond the control
environment 1n ploce, the Board does not currently consider that the
mntroduchon of an nternal audit funetion would matenally beneht
the Group

Non-audit fees paid to external auditors and
auditor independence

The oudit commitiee has an ongoing responsibilily bor monitoring
the independence of the Campany’s auditors

In the hight of the substantal knowledge that the Compary's
auditors, Emst & Young WP |*Emst & Young”), have built up of
the Company and its afforrs, the considerable level of technicol
experhse that they can make available 1o the Company and the
cosreffectveness ond efficiency of cbtaining that experfise from
a party who already has a detalled knowledge of the Group,
the Board has not placed any restnchion on the use by the
Group of Ernst & Young in respect of nor-oudit matiers

Accordingly, dunng 2010, Emst & Young advised the Group n
relation to fax compliance, general tax advice and the provision
of arculation certiicaton to ndusiry audit bodies

tn accordonce with ouditing stendards, Emst & Young hos odwsed
the Company in writing that the firm s independent within the
meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and that the
objectvity of the audit engagement partner ond audit staff 15 not
impaired Howving reviewed that opinion, the Board 15 of the
opimion that the continuing provision to the Group by Ernst &
Young of both audd and nonaudit services has not compromised
the mdependence of the euditors in relotion to therr audit of the
affarrs of the Company and the Group i respect of 2010

Sums payable lo Emst & Young in relation to the 2010 audit were
£130,000 and i relation io nongcudi services provided in the
year were £110,000

Operdtion of the neminations committee

The nominations committee met on cne occosion in 2010 to
consider the renewal of the nonexecutive directors’ contracts for
Rechard Wyt and June de Moller ond agree the directors fo siond
for election and reelection at the 2011 Annual General Meehing
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in resped of the
financicl statements

The drectors are responsible for prepanng the Repont of the directors
and the financial stalements in accordance with opplicable law and
regulctions

Compony law requires the direclors to prepare financial statements

for each financial year Under the law the directors have elected 1o
prepare the inancial statements n aceordance with Uniked Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable kaw] Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial siatements unless they are sahshed that they
give a true and farr view of the stote of affarrs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that peried In
preparing those financial stolemenis the directors are required 1o

* select suiable occounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and estimales that are reasonable and prudent,

* staie whether opplicable accounting standards hove been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explatned in the
financual stoterments,

* prepare the financial siatements on the going concem basis unless
it 13 nappropnate to assume that the Group will continue i business

The dureclors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that cre sufficient to show and explain the Group’s ond the Company's
transachons and disclose with reasonable accuracy af any time the
financial position of the Graup and the Company and enable them

fo ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and Company and hence for toking reasonable sieps for the
prevention and detection of froud and other iregulanties

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who were members of the Booard at the ime of approving

this report are detailed on page 33 Having made enquines of fellow

direciors and of the Company's auditors, each of these directors

confirms that

¢ Io the best of therr knowledge and belief, there 1s no information
relevant to the preporation of this report of which the Company’s
audilors are unaware, and

* they have taken all the steps o director might reasonably be expected
to have taken to be aware of relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that iformanion

Going concern

The Group's business actvities, together wath the factors likely to affect
its future development, its financial position, financial nsk management
objectives, its exposures to liquidity, nterest rate, foreign exchange,
credit and price nsk, and details of its financial instruments, are
described in the Finoncial review on page 8 and Notes 24 and 25
io the financial siatements

The Group has considerable finonaial resources avaikable, together
with longrterm contracts with principal supphers As a consequence, the
directors believe that the Group 15 well placed to manage its business
nsks successhully despite the current uncertan economic oulook

After making enquines, the directors hove o reasonable expectation
that the Compeny and the Group have adeguate resources o continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future  Accordingly the
directors have continued 1o adopl the going concern bass in preparning
the accompanying financial statements

Employees

The Group continued io provide employees with information about
the Group throughout 2010 and to encourage staff involement In
addition fo local inihatives, methods of communication have induded
an online news service, which 1s updated at least weekly via the
Archant intranet and email

Adnan Jeakings underook @ senes of presentations dunng 2010, to
which alt employees were invited Those ottending were brefed on the
Group's performance, new developments, the Group's plans and ofher
matters of relevance 1o employees

In comphiance wath the relevant legislation, the Group recogrises
Unite the Union at its Thorpe Print Centre and the Nahonal Union of
Joumalsts in respect of relevant sioff of Archant Nordolk, Suffolk and
at Archont Llondon's Hockney Gazette, East tondon Advertiser and
Hampstead & Highgate Express senes  Such recogrtion provides for
on annual joint review by management and the relevont umion of pay,

hours and holidarys of siaff in the relevont bargaining uni

The Group's Information and Consuliation Framewark Constitution
ams lo piovide @ means of informing and consuling with employees,
through therr elected representatives, on a regular basis so that

therr views can be loken into account in moking decisions that may
oftect ther interests A tamning programme 15 offered 1o stoffelected
represenfatives

Consuftalion also iakes place on matters such as heolth and safety
ond pensions Certain directors of Archant Pension & Ufe Assurance
Scheme Tustee Limited (Trustee Company} are employees of the
Group nominoted and elected by members of the scheme

A forum compnsing human resources managers and other siaff wath

related responsibiliies meets regularly and has the promatian of best
humen resources prachice around the Group as one of its goals
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Although # 15 recognised thas such a policy can only be implemented
within the constraints imposed by relevant legislation, # 1s the Group's
policy that discrimination on such grounds as gender, race, ethnic
ongin, sexuol onertation, disability, natanaldy, age, mantal status

or rehgious behef of applicants for employment and employees 1s not
acceptable As a result, the Group seeks to ensure that decisions on
employment, including recruitmen, traning, development, promotion
ond pay, are based on the indmdual’s abllity ko do the |ob and on his
or her expenence and skills Accordingly, disabled peaple are deall
with 1n such respects on the some basis as oblebodied applicants end
employees If a person becomes disabled while an employes every
practical effort 1s made 1o make such reasonable odjustments as may
be necessary to enable the indwidual concerned to continue n
employment with the Group

Supplier payment policy

The Group negohates appropriate terms and conditions for its
transactions with suppliers and it 1s the Group's palicy that payments
cre made in accordance with thase terms and conditions

At 31 December 2010 the Group held 20 days’ purchases
outsianding 1n frade crediors (2009 17 days)

At 31 December 2010 the Company held nil days’ purchases
oulstanding 1n irede creditors (2009 nd days)

Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions

It has been the prachce of the Company to indemnify 11s directors

in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and o

the maximum extent permitted by law Indemnities which constiute
qualiying third-pary indemnity provisions as defined by sechon 234 of
the Companies Act 2006 have been in place throughout the year and
as at the date of this report remain in force The Company has ogreed
under such indemnihies to indemmify the directors, In occordance with
the Compoany’s Articles of Association, in respect of liabilites that may
atiach 1o them in their capacity as direciors of the Company or of
associated companies

Auditors

The Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young LLP. have indicated ther
willingness 1o continue n office and, in accordonce with section 4835 of
the Companies Act 2006, a resoluion propesing their reappointment
will be put to the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting
Notice of an Annuol General Meeting of the Company ko be held on
13 Aprl 2011 1s set oul en page 86
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Donations

The Group has three principal means of offering financial support

to chantable causes

* Through its Archant Gold programme 1t matches sums raised by
the efforts of employees for their chosen causes,

* By maiching at a given percentege sums donated to chanty by
employees using the Charihes Ad Foundation payroll gving fozility
falso known os “Give As You Eom*) — the Company dlso pays all
adminsstration costs associated with this means of chantable giving,
and

* By direct donations

Donatiors made by the Group for chanlable purpeses dunng 2010
totalled £73,000 (2009 £81,000)

tn addition, the Group, through its publications, encourages readers
to support o number of worthy couses, resuling in substantial sums
being raised

www archant co uk

JO Ellison
Secrefary

4 March 2011
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Directors’ remuneration report

Remuneration committee
The remunerchion committee 1s charred by Richard Jewson, who is both
the Chairman and a nomexecutve direclar of the Company

June de Moller, Peter Troughton and Richard Whatt, wheo ore all
norrexecutive directors, also served as members of the commitee
throughout the year The commuttee met on four occasions n 2010

Policy on remuneration of executive directors

The remuneration committee determines an overall remuneration
package for each executive director of the Company, with the intention
of aftiacting and retmning highqualty executives capoble of enabling
the Group fo achieve iis objechves

In determining the elements of those packages the remuneration
committee pays particular attention to remuneration levels in the industry
and may take advice from external remuneration and other consuliants
where it considers it approprate to do so The commuttee did not use
the services of any consulionts with regards o the benchmarking of the
directors” pay and benefits duing the year

The moin elements of the remunerction packages of the executve
directors of the Company are

(a) Basic salary
Basic sclary 15 subject to annual review by the remuneranion
camrmitee with reference fa such external data as the committee
considers relevant

{b) Annual bonus (non-pensionable)

Each of the executive directors of the Compeny porticipates

en an annual bonus scheme The payment of any such bonus 1s

dependent in part upon the extent lo which certain inancial fargets

of the Group are met, or exceeded, in relation to the paricular

year Payment of the balonce depends on the extent io which

the director achieves, or exceeds, personal goals in the year

In question

The targets and goals for each direcior are determined by the
femuneration commitiee at the beginning of the inancial year,
and any such bonus 15 paid annually in arrears
{c) Long-term incentive plan
The Company operates a shareholderapproved longterm
incentve plan [the *2006 LTIP*), which 15 designed to align
closely the nterests of poricipating senior managers with those
of shareholders by sefting performance iargets measured over

a three-year pernod for each plan cycle

a8

{d)

(e)

Under the 2006 LTIP, the Archant 2002 Employee Share Trust
acting in consuliahon wath the remuneration commitiee may grant
awards over shares in the Company io senor managers, including
executive direciors The shores are subject 1o cenan resmchons
and the rles of the 2006 (TIP shpulate the condiions that must be
me! and /or the circumstances that must anse in arder for those
resinchions lo be kfted and the shares fo vest Any resmcted shares
thal do not meet the condiions within the specified timeframe are
forfeited The maximum aumber of shares thet moy be oworded in
ony one year cannat exceed 100% of @ participant’s base annyal
salary

The condtions that must be met are based on the financial
performance of the Group The Group's ad|usted earnings per
shore aggregated over a penod of three years has been adopted
as the measure of performance

The rules of the 2006 LTIP set out the hrmited circumstances
in which restnctions may be lited prior to the expiry of the
performance period

Employee share schemes

During 2003 the Company miroduced an HM Revenue &
Cusloms ["HMRC") approved shore incentive plan {“the SIP)
Execuive directors, if eligible, are entiled 10 poticipate in
the SIP on the some basis os other eligible employees More
infarmahon concerning their participation in the SIP 1s set

out on page 43 At the 2008 Annual General Meeting
shareholder approval was given 1o exiend the life of the

SIP untl January 2012

HMRC approved pension

Each of the execulive directors 15 0 member of the Archant Pension
& Ufe Assurance Scheme [“the Scheme”) and, subject to the
elgibility a1 the hime of joining, 1s etther a member of the Defined
Benefii Section or the Defined Contnbution Sectien of the Scheme
ffurther information 1s given In Note 34 1o the inancial statements)

For the Defined Benefit Sechion, members who commenced
pensionable service prior o 31 May 1989 were not subject o the
stotutory pensionable earmings cop introduced from 1 june 1989,
nor o the scheme specihc eamings cap ntroduced fram & April
2006 From | December 2009, members’ pensionable eornings
were capped ot the level of pensionable earmings over the 12
moniths o 1 December 2009 [the *2009 Cop®] Any pension
benelits on pensionable eamings above this capped level are
provided through a Defined Coninbution omongement
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The Senior Management Defined Benefit Section prowvides a
pension of up 1o onethirieth of the participant’s final pensionable
salary {subject to the 2009 Cap) for each year of pensionable
service, so that members with ol least 20 years' pensionable
service can achieve a pension of worthirds final pensionable
salary (subject to the 2009 Cap) at the normal retrement age
of 65 Benefits may not exceed the maximum lfeime ollowence
kad down by HMRC Where a director with on accrued pension
entiflement in excess of the lfetime allowance pomicipates in the
Defined Benefit Section, the Company may make alternative
arrargements 1n respect of that excess, although such
circumstances have not yet ansen

The Defined Contnbution Sechon provides o pension at retirement
based on the value of the member’s fund, including investment
returns, the type of annuity chosen and annutly rates i place at
that fime

From 1 May 2009 the Company introduced SMART, o salary
socrifice ancngement whereby each Scheme member was
gwven the ophon to have therr pension contnbutons paid by the
Company and the member’s confractual pay was reduced by
the amount of these conmbutions Each executive director opted
to have therr contrebuttons pand by salary socrfice

Adnen Jeakings 1s a member of the Senicr Monagement Defined
Benefit Section of the Scheme and was subject to the statulory

pensionable eamings cap up to 5 Apnl 2006, the schemerspecific
eamings cop up fo | December 2009, and the 2009 Cap since

that date The Company has agreed o pay Adnon Jeakings o
norpensionable supplement of 25 per cent of pensionable
eamings above each such cap

Johnny Hustler 1s a member of the Senior Management Defined
Beneht Section of the Scheme and has not been subject o the
statulory earnings cop of the schemespecific earmings cap

but 15 subject to the lfetime hmit Since 1 December 2009,

his pensionable earmings have been resincted by the 2009

Cap Member pension cortnbutions on any pensionable earnings

above the 2009 Cap are paid by the Company under salary
sacrifice into the Defined Coninbution topup arrangement ot o
rate n the range 27 per cent and the Company also maiches
those contnbutians ot a rate of 1 5 times

Baan McCarthy 15 a member of the Serior Manogement Defined
Contnbulion Sechon of the Scheme and unil 1 May 2009
coninbuled @ percentage of his pensionable salary within the

range of 2-7 per cent Since the infroduchion of the salary saenfice

arrangement on that date, the Comparny poys the member’s
contnbulion i retum for an equivalent reduction i the member’s
pay In addition the Company malches these conimbutions ot o
rote of 2 5 hmes
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For the executive directors the Scheme has taken out o bfe
nsurance pohicy under which a lump sum of four imes “Reference
Salary” {member's salary belore ony reduction for salary sacnhice)
1s payable on death in service Spouse’s and/or dependents’
pensions are also payable for death in service

The Company moy piovide an immediate pension to, or other
benefis to acquire @ pension for, executive directors retining on the
grounds of erher permanent tolol or permanent pamal iIncopacty

Other benefits

In common with those other semior executives of the Group, the
execulive direclors are offered o company car Those who have
elected not 1o hove the use of a car provided to them by the
Group are pad an annual cash sum as determined by the
committee 1n hiev of such provision

Each of the execulive directors may elect to hove the Company

moke the benefiis of private healih insurance available for
themsedves and, if they so choose, therr spouse and/or children
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Directors’ remuneration report

Policy on remuneration of non-executive directors
Subject lo the restnctions conlaned n the Articles of Association of the Company, the fees of nomexeculive directors are determined by the Board
including the Chairman, but excluding the other norexecutive directors) in the light of such external advice as the Board considers it appropniate

io 1oke ond recommendotons mode 1o 1t by the Chauman and Chief Executve The Chairman’s fee 15 determined by the remunerahion commutiee
in his absence

Service contracts

(a) Executive directors
It s the policy of the Company thet contracts wath executive direciors should conlinue until age 65, subject to earlier termination by eiher
party on 12 months' nofice in wniling, save where the agreement may be terminated summanly for o significant and/or specified breach

(b) Non-executive directors

It1s the policy of the Company to engage nonexeculive direciors on fixedterm contracts for penods of three years Such contracts, which
are generally renewable, are, however, subject to lermmation on one month's notice, or three months’ notice in the case of the Chairman

Directors’ emoluments

Salary/Tees i Pedormance Other benelis | Total
! related borus

2010 ! 2010 | 2010 2010 2000

£000 | £000 £000 £000 £000
RW Jewson 109 | 109 109
SC Copemon 25 | . . 25 25
JAE Houstler' 110 | s 16 161 218
AD Jeckings” 282 149 | 14 w5 518
BG McCarthy 161 | 67 12 240 269
JF de Moller 25 | - . 25 25
PIC Troughton 2 | 29 29
M Wolsh? 22 2 -
RE) Wyalt 25 | 25 25
CP Gra* - i - - 13
Tolal 788 | 25) 42 1,081 1,231

" JAE Husller’s conraciual working days per week changed i January 2010 from five days to three days and from February 2010 onwards to fow days
* Highestpaid serving director os ot 31 December 2010

" M Wolsh was oppornted fo the Board on 16 February 2010 Remuneranon 1s only disclosed for the penod of his appomtment

* CP Grof resigned from the Board with effect from 30 June 2009 Remuneration 15 only disclosed for the: period of his appoimiment

Adnan Jeakings has been permitied to refain those fees payable to him in respect of his directorship of PA Group Limited and recerves no

remuneration in relation to oching as a governor of Norwich School, a director of Norwach School Limited, as o member of the Audit Commitiee
of the Unnversity of East Anglia or os o member of the Board of the Newspaper Society
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Directors’ remuneration reporf

Directors’ accrued pension entitlements

Adnan Jeakings and johnny Husller were both members of the Group’s Senior Management Defined Benefit Sechion of the Scheme dunng 2010

In accordence with the Regulations, the following table shows the members’ coninbutions, the increase in acered entitlement dunng the: pernod

and the occrued entilement at the end of the penod

I Age af Accrued | Real iIncrease Inflahon Increase in E Accrued
. 31 December pension at in accrved ocerved | pension
i 2010 31 December pension pension inthe | 31 December
i 2009 year ; 2010
H £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
| 1

AD Jeakings 52 294 32 14 46} 340

JAE Hustler : 55 845 49 39 B8 | 933

The transfer volue of the directors’ accrued benefis, calculcted in @ manner determined by the Trustees of the Scheme having token adwice from the

Scheme Actuary, were

Transter value E Tiansfer volue Other Increase n | Contribuions* | Transfer volue
31 December |of recl increase changes lo | ransfer vave 31 December
. 20091  naccued | hansler volue | in the penod 2010
| pension ret of net of
1 conmbutions contrbuhons
£000 ! £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
AD Jeckings 5344 589 105 8 1647 | 85 707 6
JAE Husler 12219 712 2128 | 2840 74 15133

* These include nationa! contrbuhons paid under the solary sacnhice amangement inroduced with effect from 1 May 2009

The transfer volues disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or poyable to the ndwvidual director, but they represent o liability of the pension

scheme The chbove figures exclude AVCs

Unid 30 Apnl 2009 Adnon Jeckings coninbuted seven per cent of huis pensionable eamings up 1o the Scheme’s earings cap Johnny Hustler also
coninbuled seven per cent of his pensionable ecrmings, and was not subject to the Scheme’s earings cap From | May 2009 member
contnbutions were replaced by SMART contrbutions Since 1 December 2009, such contnbutions have been pard on pensionable earnings

resincted by the 2009 Cap

Other pension provisions

The Company connbuted £28,210 (2009 £28,000) to Brian McCorthy’s Defined Contrbution penston fund dunng the year This figure excludes
coninbuhions paid by the Company on behall of the member under the salary sacnfice amongement introduced with effect from 1 May 2009

Contnbutions made lor accrued for] by the Compary dunng the year in respect of pension arrangements other than the Scheme for Adrnian
Jeakings were £40,125 (2009 £39,517), which were paid info a SIPP

A cash sum of £44 (2009 all] equating to 10 5% of pensionable eamings above the 2009 Cop was pad to Johnmy Hustler in lieu of Defined

Coninbution lopup contnbutions for the year

wwww archant ca vk
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Directors’ remuneration report

Directors’ interests in shares

The interests in the shares of the Company of those indraduals who were directors ot the year end were as follows

20p ordinary shares 20p ordinary shares
ot | January 2010 at 31 December 2010
of on appoiniment
RWV Jewson 35,194 35,194
5C Capeman 57,222 57,222
24,5007 24,5007
JAE Hustler" 8,820 8,826
26,800° 36,800°
AD Jeakings* 21,602 21,602
66,750° 28,4007
BG McCarthy* 4,728 4,728
29,900 49,050
JF de Moller 10,000 10,000
PIC Troughion 91,755 21,755
509,930° 509 930
M} Walsh 0 5,000
RE] Wyot 10,000 10,000
" Nobeneficial
2 Joint with cthers

? Resincted shares aworded under 2006 LTIP {see poge 44} ond subject to nsk of forfeiure
“ The direcior was invited to paricipale in the SIP on the same basis os other eligible employees As a resul, the direcior has obianed, and as at 31 December
2010 retaned, the following owords of shares under the SIP, as shown on page 43 No owards were made under the SIP dunng 2009 or 2010

42
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Directors’ remuneration report

Share incentive plan

Dote of oward . 6 October | 17 e Bjne!  3Mey!  30Moy| 30 May
2003 | 2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 2008
I
Prce paid for Pornership shares [pence per share) 1000 1250 lSOO_i— 1325 ! 1150 800
AD Jeakings !
Parinership shares - 6 51 5 & Q
Matching shares - 12 10! 10 12 18
Free shares 22 19 | 2 25 34
Totol . 40 34, 37 43 63
I 1
BG McCarthy ! i
Parinership shores } 51 5) 6 Q
Maiching shares ; 10! 10 12 18
Free shares ! 19 22 25 36
Total N 3 37 43 63
JAE Husller E !
Partnership shares 71 6! 5 3. o
Matching shores 14 ! 12 10 0! 12 -
Free sheres 28| 22" 191 22 25 3
Total 49 40 ¢ 34| 37 43 36
I
Total 49 80 102 m 129 162
£

All such shares, none of which are included in the numbers set out in the principal fable, are currently held by the SIP trusiee pursuant 1o the wles of the SIP and,
save tn the case of the Parnership shares, ore subject 1o forfeiture 1n cerain crcumsionces

MNo sum wos paid or poyable in respect of the Matching shares or the Free shares

As far as the Company 15 aware, none of the directors of the Company at 31 December 2010 had any interests in any shares in the Compony or any of

its subsidianes at | January 2010, 31 December 2010 or 4 March 201 1 save as disclosed above and in the section on poge 44 headed 'longterm

incentive plan’

Options and invitations to subscribe held by directors

As far as the Company 1s aware no director hed ophions outsianding over any share 1n the Company at any ime durng 2010 and none has

been granted any oplion over any such share since the end of that year

www orchart co vk
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Direciors’ remuneration report

Long-term incentive plan
Awards of restncled shares made under the 2006 LTIP 1o those indmduals who were direciors of the Campany ot any hime dunng the year and

which remained cutsicnding at any time dunng the year were as follows

!

' Cycle ending ; Dote of award Market price Awords held | Awarded dunng \ Forlered dunng Awards
f 3k Dec af ime of aword a1 jan 2010 the year the year outstanding at
: ' 31 Dec 2010
' Pence per share MNumber of Number of Number of Number of
j 20p ordinary 20p ordinary 20p ordinary 20p ordinary
shares shares shares shares
AD Jedkings 2009 100107 1150 10 350 10 350 -
2010 i 170108 B75 14 400 ! - 14,400
2011 060509 350 42,000 - 42,000
2012 140510 525 - 42,000 - 42,000
JAE Husiler 2009 ¢ 100107 1150 4,000 ! 4,000 !
2010 | 170108 875 6,000 ! -t 6,000
! 2011 | 060509 350 16,800 - 16 8OO
2012 140510 525 - 14,000 - 14 000
1
BG McCarthy 2000 1001 07' 1150 3,250 | 3,250 ! -
2010 17 01 08! 875 4,250 | E 4,250
2011 06 0509 350 22400 - : 22,400
2012 ¢ 140510 525 - 22,400 | ] 22,400

' Award granted prior to being appointed os an executve direcior

Where reference 1s made n this document to market price ot a dale prios lo 8 June 2004 fhus 1s the price which, at the relevant fime, the Beoard
had indicated 1t wos willing 1o offer for sale shares which o shareholder had asked it to offer for sale pursuant o Aricle 39 of the Adicles Where
reference 15 made in this document to market price ot a dete on or after 8 june 2004 this s the pnce at which shares had most recently then been
traded wia the Maiched Bargan Facility operated n respect of shares in the Company Any values of shares in Archont referred to n this document

have been cakulated solely by reference to such prices

4 March 2011

by the Board and signed on its behalf by
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
Of ArChanf lelfed (company number 4126997)

We have audited the financial statements of Acchant Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2010 which compnse the Group profit and loss
accounl, the Group siatement of tofal recogmised goins and losses, the
Group reconcihation of movements n shareholders' funds, the Group
ond Parent Company Balance sheets, the Group staiement of cash flows,
ond the related notes 1 fo 34 The firanciol reporiing framework that
has been apphed in therr preporation 15 applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Prachce)

This report 1s mode solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordonce with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
QOur audit work has been underioken so that we might stale to the
Company's members those matiers we are required 1o state 1o them m
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent
permited by law, we do not accept or assume responsitility to anyone
other then the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilifies
sel out on page 36, the directors are respensible for the preparation
of the financial siatements and for being sanshed that they give @ fue
and fair view Cur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion
on the financial stalements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Audiing (UK and lreland) Those stondaids
require us to comply with the Audiing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the omounts and disclosures
in the financiol statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from matenal misstaterment, whether
caused by fraud or emor This includes an cssessment of whether the
accouning policies are approprate fo the Group's and the parent
compeny’s circumstances and have been consistertly appled and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial stotements

Opinion on financial statements

In cur opinion the financial stotements

* Give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s ond of the
parent company’s affairs as of 31 December 2010 and of the
Group's prohit for the year then ended,

* Have been properly prepared 1n accardance with United Kingdom
Cenerally Accepled Accouning Praciice, and

» Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

www archanl co uk
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opimion the nformation given i the Report of the directors for
the financiat year for which the financial stotements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nathing to report in respect of the following matters where the

Companies Act 2006 requires us o report to you 1f, in our epimion

* Adeqquale accounting records have not heen kept by the parent
company, or retums adequate for aur audit have not been recenved
from branches nol visited by us, or

* The parent company financiat skalements are not in agreement with
the accounting records and retumns, or

* Cenain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are
nol made, o

* \We have not receved all the mlormation and explenations we
require for cur audi

Tony McCartney

Emst & Young LLP
Statutory Auchtor
Cambridge

4 March 2011
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Group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 December 2010

|
|
2010 | 2009
Notes 2000 £000
Group turncver
Confinuing operations
Ongaing operatians 137,434 141,973
Acquistions 1,819 . -
2 139,253 | 141,973
Opercting proht before amortisahon and exceptional items
Conhinuing operations
Ongoing operations 15,205 15,116
Acguisihons {453)
14,752 i5116
Amortisation of goodwll and other intangible assets {4,617) [5,009)
Impoirment of miangble assets 4 (500 112,343
Restrucuning cosls 4 (1,484} ' (3 991)
Other excephional ncome/{costs) 4 21 |573)
Reduction in defined benefit pension liabilities 4 - 10000
Group operating profit 2.3 8,172 3,180
Share of aperating results in associate {202) . {196)
!
Total operating profit Group and share of associate 7970 2984
Income from investmenis ) 4 227
Interest poyable 7 (1,813) {663)
Cther hnance expense 34 {435) | {1 874)
S e - . e B i
Prohit from ordinary activinies before taxation 5726 i 674
Tax on profit ffom ordinary actmiies 8 {1,271) : 13,848}
- L—
Proht/{loss) from ordinary activihes cfter taxaton 4,455 % {3,174)
# T
Earmings/floss) per share ~ Basic 11 320p {22 8p)
Conhnuing operations 11 320p | (22 8p)
Diluted i e | (228
Adjusted 1 l 44 Op | 64 7p

There 15 no matenol difference between the profits colculoted on a historical cost basis and those presented above
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Group statement of fotal recognised gains and losses

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2000

Notes £000 £000

Protit/loss) for the yeor excluding share of results of associcte 4,657 (2,678)

Share of operating results in associate (202) {196)

Prodit/(loss) for the financiol year attnbutable 1o members of the parent company 4,455 (3 174)

Actuanial gains recognised on defined beneht pension schemes 34 3.806 5,822

Movement on deferred tax asset associaled with pension scheme deficts (1,086) {1,630
Change in deferred tax asset an pension scheme defioil ansing from o change in the rate of corporaiion ox 158)

Totol recogrised gams ond losses reloting to the year 7,037 1,018

Group reconciliation of movemenis in shareholders’ funds

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 | 2009

Notes £000 £000
Cpening shareholders' funds 53,127 55043
Total recognised gains ond losses 7.037 1,018
Dwidends 10 2.766) (2,802}
Issue of new shares 327 1
Purchases of own shores 665) {133
Totol movements in the yeor 3,933 1,918)
Clasing shareholders’ funds 57,060 53127
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Balance sheets

as at 31 December 2010

Group ! Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Notes £000 | £000 £000 £000
Fixed assels
Intangible asses 12 59,059 60,535 - -
Tangible assets 13 35,202 37,499 - 1
Investments 14 43 2009 138,764 138,764
94,304 100,053 138,764 138,765
Current assets
Siocks 15 1,391 1,347 - -
Debtors 16 25,486 25,692 213,056 214,581
Cash at bank and i hand 17 1,779 4,286 12 ! Q
|- e __ f A ——
28,656 31,325 213,068 + 214,590
Creditors — amounts falling due within ane year 18 27,077 : 27928 4,294 : 2,750
. . — . - - - - - I 4 -0 -} —
Net current assels 1,579 3,397 208,774 | 211 840
b . . — . — - - , - } -
Toted aissets less current hcbilihes 95,883 103,450 347,538 350,605
Credifors — emounts falling due ofier more than one yeor 19 24,863 ' 32,515 307,240 308,077
Provisions for habilihes 21 2,443 3,066 500 742
Net assefs excdluding pension scheme hab:lity 68,577 67,869 39,798 41,786
Defined benefit pensien liabidiy 34 11,517 14,742 -
Net assets induding pension scheme liability 57,060 53,127 39,798 41 786
Capital and reserves
Calledup share capital 22 2,872 2,860 2,872 2,860
Share premwm account 23 2,616 2,301 2,616 2,30
Revaluation reserve 23 293 301 - -
COrther reserves 23 3172 | 3,837 4,547) 13,882}
Profit and loss account 23 48,107 I 43,828 38,857 40,507
I
- e e e e BRSNS
Shareholders’ hunds 57,060 I 53127 1 39,798 | 41,786
RW Jewson (
Charrman
BG McC /
Finance Director
4 March 2011
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Group statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2010

i
2010 2009
Notes £000 | £000
|
Cash flow from operating actmties 26 13,725 ; 14,261
Retuns on invesiments and sermeing of finance 27 229 {401)
Taxat:on {1,750 ! {875|
Copital expenditure and hnancial wvesiment 7 {2,429 5 26110
Acquisitions and disposals 27 {538) | {300)
Equity dwdends paid 10 (2766) © (2,802
_ _— —_— —— e e e e — —— —
Cash inflow before use of liquid resources and hnanang 5015 l 7272
Finoncing 27 |8,407) | (3 266}
!
{Decrease)/increase in cash 28 (3,392) 4,006
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt (Note 28)
2010 2009
£000 £000
[Decrease}/increase in cash 13,392) 4,006
Cash flow hom decrecse in loans 8,000 2,000
locn 1ssue costs 61 1,133
Cash ouflow from lecse fnancing | 8
R - - b e -
Change in net debt resuling from cash flows ! 4,677 7.13¢
Fmance leases ocquired with subsidiary underiokings ‘ (8l
Amortisahion of loon 1ssue costs ; {409) [35)
Change in net debt 4,260 7104
Net debi ot 1 Jonuory (27.517) [34,621)
et debt ot 31 December {23,257) 127.517)
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Notes 1o the finoncial stotements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

1. Accounting pehaes

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal

cost convention modified by the revaluation of certain freehold ond
leaseheld propesties, and in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practce

The Group's business acinties, logether wath the factors ikely to offect
its future development, its financial position, financial nsk menagement
objectives, its exposures to kquidity, interest rate, foreign exchange,
credit and price risk, and detals of its finarcial nstryments, are
descnbed in the Financial review on pages 8 to 11 and Notes 24
ond 25 to the financial statements

The Group has considerable financial resources availoble, together with
longrterm contracts with paneipal suppliers As a consequence, the
directors believe that the Group 15 well placed to manage s business
nsks successfully despile the current uncertan economic outlock

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Company and the Group hove adequale resources o continue in
operaiional existence for the foreseeable fuure Accordingly, the direciors
hove continued to adop! the going concern basis n prepanng the
financal statements

Basis of consolidation

The Group financiol statements consolidate the finoncial statements
of the Company and all s subsidiery undenakings drenwn up 1o 31
December each yeor No profil and loss account 1s presented for the
Company, as permitied by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

Entihes, other thon subsidiary underickings, in which the Group has o
parheipating mlerest and over whose operating and binancial policies
the Group exercises a significant influence are treated as ossociotes
I the Group financial sialements associotes are accounted for using

the equity method

Intangible fixed assets

(o) Newspaper and magazine tifles
On the acquistion of a business the cost of nvestment 15 allocated
between net langible assets, goodwill and newspaper or mogazine
tiles on a fair volue basis The fair value of newspaper fitles 1
assessed by the duectors at the date of acquisiton, supported by
a comparative view of similar ransactions within the newspaper
industry The fair value of magozine hiles 1s himited to an amount
that does not create or Increase any negative goodwall ansing on
the acquisihon

Newspaper and magozine hiles are amorhised on a straight line
basis over ther esimated useful Ives, subject lo o moximum of
20 years

The corrying value of newspoper and magozine tiles 1s reviewed for
imparrment ot the end of the first full year following acqusition and

in other periods If events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the camying valve may not be recoverable

Newspaper and magazine tiles created within the business are not
capitahsed and expenditure 15 charged against profits in the year in
which it 1s incurred

Newspoper and magazine tiles acquired pror to 31 December
1997 were classihied as goodwill and written off directly lo reserves

{b) Goodwill
Goodwill ansing on acquisihons prior to 31 December 1997
was sef off direclly agamst reserves and has not been reinstaled
on implementation of FRS 10

Goodwill ansing on ooquisiticns since 1 January 1998 15
copiichsed, chassihed as an asset on the balance sheet, and
amoriised on a straight hne basis over its useful economic fife,
subject o o maximum of 20 years It 1s reviewed for impairment
at the end of the firs ull finaneidl year following the acquisition
and n other peniods if events ar changes In circumstances indicate
that the camying value moy not be recoverable

If o subsidiary, asociate or business 1s subsequently sold or closed,
any goodwill ansing on acquistion that was waitten off directly to
reserves 1s laken info account n detesmining the profit or loss on
sale or closure
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Nofes 1o the financial siotements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets

Freehold propertes are camed at therr kozen 1996 valuctions,

as permited by FRS 15 "Tangible Fixed Assets”, as adjusted for
subsequent additions, disposals, depreciation and imparrment, i any

All other assets are stoted at cost less accumulated depreciation and
mpairment if any Such cost includes the cost of refutbishing or
replacing part of an asset when that cost 1s incurred, provided that
the recognition crderia are met

Freehold lond 1s not depreciated Depreciation and amorhisation 1s
provided on all other assets on a staight line basis estimated 1o wnte
off the cost or valuahon of those assets, less therr estmated residual
values, over their usefud Ives at the followsng rates

Freehold buildings 2%
lecsehold buldings — long 2%
- short Penod of lease

Plant, equipment and vehicles Between 7% and 33%
Website development costs

Costs incurred in the development and mantenance of webstes are
expensed as ncurred, and are only capitalised if the entena specified
in UITF 29 “Website development costs”™ are met

Leases

Assels acquired under finance leases ore capiialised in the balance
sheet and depreciated over the shorter of therr respective lease terms
and the estimated useful lves of the assets

Rentals paid under operating leasas are chorged to income on o
strcagght ine basis over the term of the lease

Stocks

Stocks are siated at the lower of cost and net realisable volue
Cost includes all costs ncurred in bringing each product to its
present location and conditien

Raw malenals, consumables and goods for resale are staled af
purchase cost on a frstin, firstout basis
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Deferred taxation

Deferred fax 1s recogmsed in respedt of all nming differences that
have onginoted but not reversed af the balance sheet date where
hansaciions or events have occured at that date that will result in an
obligaticn to pay more, or a nght fo pay less or to receive more, fox,
with the following exceptions

* provision 1s made for tox on gains ansing from the revaluation fand
simslar fairvolue odjustments) of fxed assels, and gains on disposal of
fixed assets that have been ralled aver into replacement assets, only to
the extent thai, ot the bolance sheet date, there 15 o binding agreement
1o dispose of the assets concemed However, no provision 1s made
where, on the basis of all avollable evidence at the balance sheet date,
it 1s more likely than aot that the toxable gain will be rolled over into
replacement assats and charged fo tax only when the replacement
assets are sold,

» defered 1ox ossets are recognised only 1o the extent that the directors
consider that it 15 more likely than not that there wall be suiable faxable
profits from which the fulure reversal of the underlying hming differences

can be deducted

Deferred iax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis af the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the penods in which tming differences reverse,
based on tax rates and lows enadled or substoniively enacted ot the
balance sheet date

Provisions

Prowisions are recogmised when the Group has o present obligehon cs o
result of o past event, and 1t 15 probable that the Group will be required to
setfle that obhgation Provisions are measured at the directors” best estmate
of the expenditure required 1o setfle the obligation ot the balance sheet
date, and ore discounted to present volue where the effect 1s matenal

Foreign currency transactions

Transachons n foreign curencies are recorded a the rates mling af the
dates of the transactions Maonetary assets and liabibties denominated
i foreign currencies are onslaled into sterling at the rales ling ot the
balonce sheet date All axchange differences are taken to the profit
ond loss account

The tading results of foreign subsidiary undertokings are translated into

sterling at average rates for the year All other exchange differences are
taken fo the profit ond loss account

51




Notes o the financioi siotements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

1. Accounting pelictes (continued)

Pensions

The defined benefil pension scheme operated by the Group requires
contnbuhions 1o be made to seporately administered funds The scheme
wus closed 1o new members in February 1998 from which me
membership of o defined contnbution plon 1s availoble

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit scheme 15
determined using the projected umt methad, which atinbutes enttlement
to benefits to the current penod lio determine current service cost) and 1o
the current and prior peniods [lo determine the present value of defined
benelit obligations) and 1s based on actuonal advice Past service costs
ore recognised in the profit ond loss account on o straight hne basis
over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits have vested
When a sefflement or curtailment oceus, the change in the present
volue of the scheme liabilines and the farr value of the scheme assets
reflects the gain of loss which 1s recognised in the profit and loss
account losses are measured af the date that the employer becomes
demonsirably commitied fo the ransaction ond goins when oll parties
whase consent 15 required are irevocably commitied 1o the fransaction

The mterest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change
n present value of the scheme obligations resuling from the passage
of hme, and 1s determined by applying the discount rate to the opemng
present value of the beneht obhgation, taking nto account motenal
changes i the obligation during the year The expected return on
scheme ossets 1s based on an ossessment made af the beginning of
the yeor of longterm market returns on scheme ossets, adjusted for the
effect on the forr volue of scheme assets of confmibutions recesved and
benefits pard duning the year The difference between the expected
refurn on scheme assets and the interest cost 15 recogmised in the profit
and loss account as other finance income or expense

Actuanal gains and losses ore recogmised n full in the Group siatlement
of total recognised gomns and losses in the pertod in which they occur
Any difference between the expected retun on scheme assets and that
achually achieved and any differences that anse from expenence or
assumphon changes are also charged through the Group statement

of totaf recognised gains and losses

The defined benefit pension asset or hability 1n the Group balkance sheet
compnses the present value of the defined benefit obligation [using o
discount rate based on igh-qualily corporate bonds) less any post
service cost not yet recogmised and less the farr value of scheme assets
out of which the obligations are to be setled directly, net of deferred
tox Foir volue is based on market price information and in the case of
quoted secunties 15 the published bid pnce The value of o net pension
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benefit asset 15 limited 1o the amount that moy be recovered erther
through reduced coninbutions or agreed refunds from the scheme

The Group operates a defined contnbution pension scheme, which 1s
open fo elgible employees The Group's contnbutons are charged to
the profit and kass account i the year m which they are payable

Addionally, the Group contributes o two small Group personal
pension plcns for certamn emplcyees who are not porticipants in
one of the Group’s pension schemes

The Group also makes provision for the capital value of uniunded
pensions fo cerdain curent and former employees in accordonce
with independent octuanal odvice

Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses the foir value of the consideration receved or
recenvable for the sale of goods and services in the crdinary course
of the Group’s octivilies Revenue 1s shown net of value added tox,
frade discounts and anticipated returns after elminating sales within
the Group

The Group recogrses revenue wien the omounl of revenue can be
rehably meosured, 1t 15 probable that future economic benehits will flow
to the enity and when specific crlena have been met for each of the
Group's actvities as follows

* Advenising and cireulaton revenues are recognised on publication
or display,

* Subscaption revenues are recognised over the penods 1o which the
subscriptions relate,

* Pnnling and contract publishing revenues are recognised on delivery
of the publication,

* Other revenues are recognised when the goods or serces have
been supphed or provided 1o the cusiomer, ond there 15 a contractual
obligation for the customer to pay for those goods or services
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Notes fo the finoncici siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

1. Accounting poliaes (conhnued)

Share-based payments = equity-settled fransactions

The cost of equitysetled transactions with employees 1s measured by
reference 1o the fair value ot the date at which they are granted and

is recogrised as an expense over the vesting penad, which ends on
the date on which the relevant employees become fully ertifled 1o the
oward Farr value 15 determined by reference to the price at which
shares in the Company have most recently raded through the Maiched
Bargain Facility

At each bolonce sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense

15 calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting penod has
expied ond the management's best eshmale of the achievement or
otherwise of nomrmarket conditions and of the number of equity
instruments that will ulimately vest The mavement In cumulaive expense
since the previous balance sheet date 15 recognrsed in the income
slatement, with a corresponding entry in equity

Derivative instruments

The Group uses interest rale swaps to imit the Group's exposure
to fluctuations in mierest rates The Group's crferia for interest rate
SWOps are

* The inshument must be related to an asset or o liabdity,
* It musi change the choracter of the interest rate by converting
@ vanable rate 1o o fixed rote or vice versa

Interest differentials are recogmsed by accruing with net inferest
payable Interest rate swaps ore not revalued to farr value or shown
on the Group balance sheet at the year end If they are terminated
early, the gain or loss 15 spread over the remaining matunty of the
onginal instrument
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2. Segmerval analysis

2010 2009
Tumover £000 £000
Continuing operations
Newspapers and pnnting — ongotng operahions 92,555 98 375
Newspapers ond prinfiing - ocquisiions 1,802
Magazines ond confract publishing - angoing operations 44,879 | 43,598
Magazines ond conlract publishing - acquisiions 17
139,253 141,973
2010 ' 2009
Group operating proht Notes £000 £000
Continuing cperattons
Newspopers and printing ~ ongoing operations . 9713 10,671
Newspapers and pnniing — acquisihons (464}
Mogozines and contract publishing = ongeng operahons 5,630 5218
Magazines and confract publishing — acquisiions 12
14891 15880
Common casts {139) (773
T
Operanng proft before amorisation, impairment and excephional tems 14,752 15,116
Amortisation of intangible ssets 12 (4.617} {5.009)
Impaimment of mtangible assets 4,12 (500 * {12,363)
Excephional items 4 (1,463) 5,436
‘ _ . . = S __A.._.I T
8,172 E 3,180

The Bntish Connechion, Inc had magazine sales in the United States of Amenca equivelent to £1,591,000 (2009 £1,438,000] ond genercted
an operoling prot equvalent 1o £113,000 (2009 profit £34,000] All other operations are camed out m the United Kingdom

The Group’s magazines had combined export sales of

2010 | 2009

Turnover by destinahon £000 £000
Europe 505 491
USA 1,988 1,839
Rest of the world 255 258

2,748 2,588

All other soles were made in the United Kingdom

The Group ccquired Explorer magazine on 23 Apnl 2010, the Retrement bfestyle Show on 28 May 2010, KOS Media (Publishing) Limied an
21 June 2010, Wie Valley Life on 25 October 2010 ond 50% of the ordinory share capital of Local Vouchers lmited on 21 December 2010

All other segments of the business have confinued throughout 2010
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Nofes o the financiai siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2. Segmentat analysis [continued)

2010 2009

Net assets £000 £000
Newspapers and prntng 48912 47,857
Magazines and conrract publishing 32,529 34 886
81,441 82,743

Central net labilihes {24,381} 29,616}
57 060 ! 53,127

Central net liobilhes comprise certain bank loans ond overdrafts, laxation and certon unallocated current ligbilites less bank and cash bokances end ceroin

unallocated fixed and cunent assets

3. Group operating profi!

2010 { 2010 1 2010 ; 2009
£000 i £000 £000 £000
Ongomng
Naotes operations Acquistiions Total Total
Tumover from connuing operations 137,434 “ 1,819 139,253 , 141,973
Operating costs !
Change i stocks of hished goods and goods for rescle 5 5.
Row matenals and consumables 2,596 - 2,596 ! 10,843
Staff costs 5 54,410 1,043 55,453 ! 56,935
Depreciohon of fangible fixed assets 13 4715 5 4720 | 4974
Amortisation of tangible cssets 12 4,245 372 4617 ] 5,000
Losses less profits on disposal of iangible fixed assets 29 (M 28 | 230
Rental of property 1,349 49 1,398 : 1,726
Rental of plant ond ecuipment 1,963 28 1,991 i 2,070
Auditors” remuneration !
Group audt 130 | . 130 | 130
Tax complionce 70 - 70 ' 29
Other services 40 - 40 i 906
Cther operating charges 49,937 1,133 51,070 49,824
126,489 2,629 129,118 131,866
|
Operating profit before impaiment and excephonal tems 10,945 | (810) 10,135 10,107
)
impaiment of ntongible assets 4,12 | - [500) (500} = 112,363)
Exceptional ems 4 (1,443) i 20) 1,463 5436
Operating proki/lloss) 9502 | 1,330 8,172 3,180
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Noftes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

4, Exceptional items

Cash flow mpact | Prafit and loss account
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Recognised in armng ot operating profit
Impament of intang ble assets 12 - - 1500) , 112,363
Restuckinng costs (1,704) (3.662) (1,484) . (3.991)
Reduction m defined benefit pension hobilites - - - 10,000
Casis incurred to reduce defined benefit pension liabilines (18) (288) 21 {330)
Rehnancing costs (278) (153) . (243)
Tohl excephono| fems {2,000) {4,103) {1,963) 16,927)

Restructuring costs
The restructunng costs anse from redundancies and related praperty exit and relocation costs resutting from a number of inihatives to Improve the
productvity of the operating dmsions

Reduchon in defined benefit pension habilikes

Following a review of #s Finol Salary pension provision in 2009, changes were made to the definiion of Final Pensionable Salary such that
Pensionable Eamings used to cakulate Final Salkary pensicn benefits became capped al the employees’ Pensionable Eamings i the 12 months
prior to 1 December 2009 These changes resulted in a cunadment gain of £10,000,000 in 2009, baing the release of the pravision for future
salary mereases on accrued pension benefils

Costs incurred to reduce defined benefit pension liabilihes

The costs were incurred iIn 2009 in relotion to the reduchion 1n defined benefit pension hobiliies above The credit In 2010 15 the release of amounts
overoccrued ot 31 December 2009

Rehnancing costs

During 2009, the Company negotiated new banking facilities 1o replace a fveryeor revolving odvances facilly and two averdraft facihihes

All exceptional tems recogmised in armving at aperafing profit anse from the contiruing aperations of the Group

In eddiion, the lox charge n Note 8a) includes an exceptional credit of £1,883,000 for prior year corporation tax, following agreement of the
technical aspects for a number of pror years' abiliies with HM Revenue & Customs
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Notes io the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

5, Stoff costs
l Group Company
Average monthly number of staff . 2010 2009 2010 2009
j 1
Newspopers ond prnting 1,488 1,542 .
Mogozines 1 4462 496 o -
Group heod office 32 | 29 32 29
] | !
1,982 2,067 32 ; 29
Fullime equivalents 1,846 1,895 29 26
Group Company
2010 2009 2000 2009
Pay and benefits 2000 ! £000 £000 £000
Woges and sclories 47,188 E 48,425 1,891 1,819
Social secunty costs 4,541 | 4,636 228 212
Other pension costs 3,946 E 3995 270 261
55,695 ; 57056 2,389 2,292
Credu for sharebosed paymenis (242) ! 1121} [95) : 148)
55453 | 56935 | 2,294 2,244

The overage monthly number of siaff shown above for the Group head office includes six {2009 six) nenexeculive directars of the Company

From 1 May 2009 the Group ntreduced o salary sacrfice amangement which had the effect of converting the Pension & Life Assurance
Scheme into a noncontnbutory scheme with the employee pension contabutions being replaced by additional employer contrbutions, known
as SMART Pension contrbutions, ond there 1s an equivalent reduction in the member’s cortracual pay

Members of the Scheme of 1 May 2009 were cutomatically enrolled info the SMART Pension arrangement, unless they chose to opt o
Directors’ emoluments and other benefits are disclosed in the Directors’ remuneration report on page 40

Share-based payments
The Group operales a LongTerm Incentive Plon ond o Share Incentive Plan both of which may result n eligible employees of the Group receming
part of thear remuneration i the: form of shares n the Company {“equitysetiled transachions”)

2006 long-term incentive plan (LTIP}
The LTIP wos onginally approved by shareholders of the AGM on 20 Apnl 2006 In any financial year, an employee may be granted
an gward over shares, the finat vesting of which 1s subject o satisfaction of the performance conditions

For the awords made in 2010, the vesting of shares will be determimed by the Group's odusted eamings per share, aggregated over a threeyear
pertod, meosured agamst largets set al the beginning of the plon cycle

Share incentive plan

Durng 2003 the Group infroduced an HMRC-approved Share incentive Plan ["SIP) Eligible emplovees may be imted from fime lo time lo
purchase shases ("Parinership Shares”) in the Company, and may be awarded further shares, esther condiions! on the purchase of Portnership
Shares ("Matching Shares™ and /or uncondionally ("Free Shares®) All SIP shares are held by the SIP Trustee on behalf of the participating employees
The Compoany funds the SIP Trustee 1o purchase Matching Shares and Free Shores on behalf of participants in accordance wath the rules of the
SIP [“the Rules”} The shores so ocquired are valued by reference to the pnce at which shares in the Company have most recently traded thiough
the Matched Borgawn Facily The value of Maiching and Free Shares owarded 1s recogrised in the profit and loss account in the yeor that the
award 15 mode The SIP Trustee also acquires, without cost, shares as a result of therr forferture by SIP pariiciponts in accordance with the Rules
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Notes to the finoncial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

6. Income from investiments

‘ 2010 2009
| 2000 £000
— - e —_—— e ——— g
Interest and dvidends receved |
Listed nvestments ! 1 1
Cther interest | 3 226
e — - r“‘ e ]
4 227
7. Interest payable
2010 2009
£000 £000
Bank overdrafts and loans | 1,404 626
Amoriisahen of loan 15sue costs 409 35
Other interest - 2
1,813 663
8. Taxt an profit from ordinary activikes
(a) Tax on profit from ordinary achivities:
The taxation charge 1s made up as follows
1
! 2010 |, 2000
Nose £000 | £000
Curent fax
UK corporation tax 2,094 1,980
Tox overprovided i prior years [454) {137)
Exceptional tox overprowded n pror yeors (1.883) -
Curent tax on proft rom ordinary acirvihes 8(b} (243) 1,843
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of kming diferences 407 318
Ongrnotion and reversal of pension scheme timing differences 250 2,693
Exceptional deferred tox credit ansing hom impaiment of mtangible assets - {1,190
Adjustments in resped of prior years 638 184
Adustment ansing from change in raie of corporanion fax | 219 -
1
Tolol deferred tax | 1,514 | 2,005
Tox on profit from ordinary octviies | 1,271 l 3,848
T
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Notes to the financial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

8. Tax on profit from ordinory adivitias [conlinued)

{a) Tax on profit from ordinary achivities (continued)
The effective tox rate 15 os follows

| 2010 2010 2000 2009
! £000 | % £000 %
T f
Tox charge and effective tax rate before impaiment of mlangible assets, [ i |
excephonal tox averprovided in prior years and the effect of the change ‘I ; i
n the rate of corporation tox | 2,935 513 5,038 ! 386
Impact of imparrment of intangible assets on 1ax charge and effectve tox rate - ; - 1,190 3322
Excephonal tox overprowded n pror yeors ‘ {1,883) | 329 - .
Adustment ansing from change in rate of corporation lox I 219 i 38 <
D M S —— -
i '
Tax charge and effective tox raie cfter impairment of infong ble assets, v-] | I
exceptional tox overprovded in prior years and the effect of the chenge i f
in the rate of corporation tax i 1,271 ; 222 3,848 5709

{b) Factors affecting tax charge

The tox assessed on the profit from ordinary activities for the year 1s lower (2009 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tox in the UK

of 28 0% [200@ 28 0%} The diferences are reconciled below

2010 > 2009
€000  £000
i
Profit from ordinary acinties before tox 5726 674
Profit from ordinary actviies multplied by standard rote of corporation tox in the UK 1,603 I 189
Expenses not deductible for tax purpases 407 | 447
Inehgible amertisation of goodwill and intongible assets 1,003 l 1,068
Ineigible impairment of intangible ossets 140 2,272
Decelesoted copital allowonces - ehigible impaiment of intangible assets l 1,190
Accelerated capital allowances 730 ! {399
Reduction n defined beneht pension abdties - [2.800)
Crther iming differences (3297 13
Tox overprovided n previous years {454 l {137}
Exceptional tax overprovided in previous years (1,883) -
i
Totat cument tax (Note 8al) (243) i 1 843
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Noftes to the financial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

8. Tax on profit from ordinary activities (confinved)

(<) Factors that may affect future tax charges
The Finance (No 2} Act 2010 reduced the matn rate of UK Corporation Tax from 28% to 27% from 1 Apnl 2011 The effect of the new
rate 1s lo reduce the deferred Kax assets by £377,000, compnsing a charge of £21¢,000 o the Group profit and loss account and o
charge of £158,000 to the Group siatement of total recogmsed gains and losses

Addiional changes to the main rale of UK Corporation Tox are propeased, to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1 Apnl 2014
These chonges had not been subsieniively enacted at the bolance sheet dote and consequently are not inchided 1n these financial stotements
The effect of these proposed reductions would be lo reduce the deferred tox assets by £1,129,000

Further tax changes, subject to enactment, are a reduction fram 1 Apnl 2012 in the 1ate of copial allewances applicable to plont and
machinery and to integral features from 20% to 18% and from 10% o 8% respeciively

No provision has been made for deferred laxation where polentally faxable gams have besn rolled over nto replacement assets Such gains
woukl become taxable only if the assets were sold without 1t being possible to claim rollover relief The amount not provided 1s £390,000
(2009 £404,000) b is not envisaged that any tax will become payable in this respect in the foreseeable future

The Group has tax losses ansing in the UK of approxmately £7,900,000 [2009 £1,800,000) that are avallable indefinitely for offset
aganst future taxable profits of those companies and newspoper and magazme portfolios n which the losses arose Deferred tax assets
have not been recogmsed in respeci of these losses as they may not be used 1o offset toxable profits elsewhere 1n the Group, ond they
have ansen in subsidianes ond newspaper and magazine portfolios thot continue fo Incur losses

The markst volue of the Group's hisied snvestments and the Directors’ valuction of the Group’s unlisted investments are in excess of their
back values as disclosed in Note 14 If they were sold af those values there would be a liabilily to tax of 0 maximum of £260,000
{2009 £276,000} on the capiial gain ansing from the sale

(d) Deferred taxation asset
The deferred taxation included 1n the balance sheet 1s os follows

Group Company
2010 | 2000 2010 | 2009
Notes £000 £000 £000 } £000
Inclhrded n debiars 16 5,900 7164 3 i A7
Incheded i defined beneft pension labiliy 34 4,259 5733 -
10,159 12,897 3 i 47

The movements in the amounts recognised for deferred lax are as follows

Group Company
£000 £000
At 31 December 2009 indluding deferred tax on defined benefit pension hobdity 12,897 47
Deferred tax charge n group/company profit and loss account (1,514} {44)
Amaounts debited to sialement of total recognised gains and losses (1,224)
At 31 December 2010 including deferred tox on defined beneht pension liability { 10,159 3
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

8. Tax on profit frem ordinary activitizs (continued)

{d) Deferred taxation asset [contnued)
Deferred taxation recogmsed i the finoneia! siatements and the amounts not provided are as follows

Group i Company
Recognised | Not provided ! Recogrised Not provided
; 2010 2009 | 2010 2009 ! 2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £000 ! £000 £000 ! £000 ' £000 £000 £000
H 1
Depreciation in advance 1 i‘ |
of capital allowances ! 5,675 6717 } ! 2 3
Caoprtal gons rolled over, less, i |
coprial fosses comed forwurdt - l {308) (322) -
Shorebased payment . 68 | - | 16
Pension coss P 4,259 5733 | . ' - -
Ciher timing differences ! 225 379 | - | 1 28
i 10,159 12 897 lt {308) (322) 3 47 .
2. Profit atinbutable to members of ine parent company
The profit dealt with in the financial stolements of the parent company was £1, 116,000 [2009 profit £3,023,000)
10, Dividends
2010 2009
£000 £000
Declored and pard dunng the year
Equity dendends on ordinary shares
Furst intenim for 2010 13 7p {2008 final dradend 13 7p) 1,884 1,910
Second Intenm drdend for 2010 & 4p (2009 intenm dwidend 6 4p) 880 892
. 2,766 2,802
Proposed for approval at the Annual General Meeting and not recognised os a liobilty at 31 December
Equity dradends on ordinary shares ;
Final dwdend for 2010 13 7p {2009 0 Op) : 1,891

A st intenm dividend for 2010 of 13 7p per share wos pad on 18 Mareh 2010 in ploce of a hnal dvidend for 2009

There are no dmdends accrued as hobilikes ot etther year end

The niles of the 2006 LTIP provide thal whilst shores are held by parkcipants in the 2006 [TIP subject to resmcions no dividend shall be payable
on such shares and the tustees of the Archant Employee Benefit Trust have waived the dvdends payable on shores that they hold in the Company

and have agreed to wave such dvidends in the fulure
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Notes to the finoncial stotements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

11, Earnings/(loss) per ordinory share

The caleulation of basie eamings Aloss) per ordinary share s based on profits of £4,455,000 2009 losses £3,174,000) and on 13,916,000
(2009 13,938,000 ordinary shares, being the weighted averoge number of shores i 1ssue duning the year, excluding the shares held by the
Employee Trusts, and the resincted shares 1ssued under the 2006 LTiP

The diluted ecrings/(loss) per share 15 based on profits for the year of £4,455,000 {2009 losses £3, 174,000} as above, and on
14,306,000 (2009 14,223,000} ordinary shares, calculoted os follows

¥ T
2010 2000
‘000 ‘000
Basic weighted averoge number of shares | 13,216 13938
Dilstve polential ordinary shares
Restncted shares issued under the 2006 LTIP 390 285
| 4306 0 14223

As in previous years, adusted earnings per share have also been disclosed os the Disectors consider that this alernative measure gves a more
comparable indication of the Group's underbying trading performance

The adjusted eamings per share hove been calculated by using the profits/losses) atinbutable to shareholders, adjusted as follows

2010 | 2010 2009 2009
! Pence Pence
£000 per share £000 per share
Profit/fkoss| attmbutable to shareholders/ecmings/loss) per share 4,455 320 (3,174) 22 8}
Exceptanal dems 1,463 105 (5434 ' 139 G}
Amorisation ol goodwill and other inlangible assels 4,617 332 5009 ' 359
Impament of infangble assets 500 36 12,363 887
Tax impact of exceptional tems {468) {3 4) 1,451 E 104
Exceptional corporation tax cradit for prior years {1,883) (13 5) -
Exceptiona! deferred tox on impoirment of mtangible assets . - 1,190 | {8 5]
Deferred tax odjustment ansing on change in rate of corporation tax 219 16 - !
. R
Adsted earmings per share 8,905 640 9,023 647
| |
62
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Notes fo the financiol siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

12. Intongible fixed assets

I_ ) 1
I Films  Newspoper tdes  Magazine hiles Goodwill Total

Group | £000 £000 | £000 £000 £000

!
Cost l |
Al 31 December 2009 4,100 109,103 59,228 6,629 179,060
Acquistion of businesses ! - 3,386 250 5 3.641
At 31 December 2010 4,100 112,489 | 59,478 6,634 182,701

!
Amorhsahion |
At 31 December 2009 2,487 87,095 25,139 3,804 118 525
Provided dunng the year - 1,498 i 2,850 269 4,617
Impatrment 500 - - 500
e —— e amm ims s e marinss _— [ [ - e e § - w,..f_.rw ————— == —— P —
At 31 December 2010 2,487 89,093 27,989 4073 123,642
MNet book value
At 31 December 2010 1,613 23,396 31,489 2,561 J 59,059
_______ e e e e ——— ——— o | = — [ [—— — + — - - — - - - w—— - [P
A 31 December 2009 1,613 | 22,008 34,089 2825 | 60535

Goodwill ansing on the aequisiion of ssbsidiary undertokings 1s being amorhised evenly over the Directors’ estimale of s uselu! economic Iife,

subject to o maximum of 20 years

Newspaper and magozine itles are amortised evenly aver the Directors’ estimates of their useful economic [ves, subject 1o @ maxamum of 20 years

The Group owns the copynght and physical matenal of two films Films are camied at estmated net realisable value, calevlated as the mimmum
value of future royaties recevable The camyng value 15 malched by interestree loans, secured on the films and repayoble out of film receipts up

o 14 December 2013

The carrying volues of all ntongible ossets are reviewed for imparment ot the end of the first fult year fallowing ocgursition and in ather penods if
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recovercble

Impeurment of ntangible fixed assets

Newspaper tiles, magazine tles and goodwill are cllocated, at acquistion, fo the Income Generafing Units (IGUs) that are expected to benehit from
that business combination The recaverable amaunts of the IGUs are determined from value 1n use cakeulations The key assumptions for the value in
use caleulations ore those regarding the growth rates, expected changes to revenues and direct costs duning the penced, and the discount rates
applied These assumphions have been reviewed dunng the yeor in light of the current economic emvironment The value n use colculotion uses
postax cash flow projections based an the fironcral budgets approved by the Board for 2011 The growth rates for cash flows beyond 2011
assume on onnual B mcrease only and no underdying growth Changes i revenues ond direct cosls are bosed on past praciices ond expeciations
of market development Manogement estimates discount rates using posHax rates that reflect curens market assessments of the ime value of money
and the nsks specific to the IGUs The cost of capitol and therefore the discount rate opplied to future cash flows has remaned unchonged at 12 0%

The Group prepares discounted cosh flow forecosts denved from the most recent inancial budgets opproved by management for the next year and
extiopokies cosh flows for 20 years om the dote of testing based on an estimated onnual growth rote of 2 5% A discounted residual value of one
tmes the hina! yeer's cash flow 1s included in the forecast The present value of the cash flows 15 then compared to the carmying volue of the asset

Green the current diffieul rading chmate, and the anticipated timing and esdent of the recovery, cerain of the Group's newspaper tiles have
been impared  The camying volue for the newspaper itles acquired dunng the yeor ond published by the Regional Kent business unit before any
imparrment charge was £3,269,000 The volue in use has been calculated os £2,769,000 resuling n an mparment charge of £500,000
{2009 Regional Lendon and Regional Hestfordshie €10, 100,000, Ufe Midlands, East and South East dvsions £2,263,000)

The Group has conducied a sensitmly analysis on the impairment test of each IGU's camying value A decrease in the longierm growth rate of 0 5%
would result in o further impaiment for the Group of £1,002,000, and an increase in the discount rate of G 25% would result in a further imparment
of £495,000 A terminal volue of fve himes the hnal year's cash flow would resull in o lower impairment charge by £208,000
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13, Tangible fixed assets

Freehold land leaschold ' Plans, equipment Total
I ond buldings buldings 1 and vehicles
Growp : £000 £000 | £000 £000
i [
Cost or valuation | |
Al 31 December 2009 ' 16424 1,087 50,818 68,331
Additions I 10 | 2,429 2,439
Acquisiion of business | 12 | 10 22
Disposals Vl 72) . 493} (565)
. | - —
At 31 December 2010 | J 16,426 1,037 52,764 70,227
S I i —_ e e T
Depreciation ; ‘ |
At 31 December 2009 3,334 574 | 26,924 30,832
Charge for year : ‘ 309 146 4,265 4,720
Disposals ’ | : {63) (464) (527)
T * T ! T
A1 31 December 2010 | ! 3,643 657 | 30725 | 35025
e e el _ ok —— ] _ _ ]
‘ 1
Net book value ! l |
A1 31 December 2010 : 12,783 380 | 22039 | 35202
e - s e D e
Al 31 December 2009 ; 13092 513 | 23894 | 37,49
1 1

Included 1n freehold lond and buildings 15 lond valued at £3,408,000 (2009 £3,408,000), which 15 nat depreciated

Following the closure of the Ipswach Prnt Centre in early 2009, the Group entered nlo o joint venture arrangement in December 2010 o develop
the freehokd property ot Lower Brook Stieet, Ipswich Culline development planning 15 expected to be completed dunng 201 1

Al 31 December 2009

Plant, equipment Total
and vehicles
Company £000 £000
Cost
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 10 | 10
Depreciation
Al 31 December 2009 9 Q
Charge for the year 1 1
Af 31 December 2010 10 i0
- 7
Net book value | :
At 31 December 2010 -
i m e e [ r —————e . e e - - —_— ____'_‘_,_A__q _——— -
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Notes o the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

13. Tengihle fixed assets [continued)

The historical cost of freehold and leasehold land and buildings 15 as follows

I Frechold ! Leasehold
| : long Short
Group ! £000 | £000 £000
|
Al voluahon — 1996 ‘ 12,388 3 126
Al cost ‘ 4018 | - 961
} 16,426 126 941

Alfter taking appropricie professional advice from Ernest Webster FRICS, chartered surveyor, the directors revalued the Group's freehold and
long leasehold properties at 31 December 1996 Cerain Group properties identified as potential disposals were valued at open market value
The remaiming Group properties were valued at open market value for existing use  Subsequent addihions are shown af cost

The histoncal cost of freehold and leasshold land and bulldings 1s as follows

Freehold Leasehold
2010 2009 2010 2009
Group £000 £000 £000 ! £000
i |
Cost 15,761 IL 15,761 1,044 | 1,005
i
Aggregate depreciation 4,581 4,330 659 | 577

Depreciation on freehold ond leasehold properies for the year has been based on the 1696 revalued omounts Based on cost the consolidated
charge would have been lower by £8,000 (2002 £8,000)
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Notes to the finoncial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

14. Invesiments

2010 | 2009
Group £000 £000
L [ — e ———— e [P
Associates {a) - 1,976
Orher fixed asset iInvestments (b) 43 r 43
43 ! 2,019
I
{a) Associates
' |
Share of net E Goodwill % Total
tangible labilies | |
£000 ; £000 t £000
: i
Al 31 December 2009 f (3,320) 5,29 | 1,076
Share of results refained by associote {202 [ - {202)
Acquired as subsidiary underioking , 3,522 E 15,296) ! (1,774)
T L s . SR e Ty
At 31 December 2010 ' - <)

The Group acquired KOS Media [Publishing) imited from KOS Media (Holdings| imited on 21 June 2010 Prior 1o that date, the Group
hod an investment of 42 7%, on a fully diluted basis, in KOS Med:a (Holdings) Limited  Prior o the acquisiion of KOS Media (Publishing]
Lmited by the Group, KOS Media [Holdings} Limited and KOS Media [Publishing] Limited were both engoged in newspaper publishing
within the UK

(b) Other fixed asset investments

Listed E Unlsted Totol
Group £000 £000 ¢ £000
Cost '
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 8 60 48
Prowsions
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 L - 25 25
MNet book value I
Al 31 December 2010 8 35 43
£ 31 December 2009 I 8 35 43
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Noies to ihe financial sfatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

14, Investments (continued)

Subsidiory

Unlisted Total

undertakings
Cormpany £000 £000 | £000
Cost )
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 138,721 &0 138,789
Provisions
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 25 25
Net book value :
At 31 December 2010 138,721 35 ¢ 138,764
— ——— - . - - —— = - - - - - SO G
At 31 December 2009 138,721

35 138,764

The marke! value of the listed invesiments at 31 December 2010 was £53,000 (2009 £43,000) for both the Group and the Cempany
Unhsted invesiments, which consist entirely of equilty share eapital, are valued by the Directors at £952,000 2009 £986,000) for the Group

and the Company

In omving at morket or Directors’ valuations, no provision has been made for taxation which would be chargeable, omounting to @ maxamum of

£260,000 (2009 £276,000), in the event of disposals ot these values

The Company's principal frading subsidary undertakings, all of which ore unlisted componies, are set out below The Group owns 50% of the
ordinary share capilal of local Vouchers Limited, but exercises dominant influence over the management of the company, and accordingly aeeounts
for this nvestment as a subsidiary undertaking All other subsidiory undertakings are wholly owned With the exception of The Brhish Connechion,

Inc , which 15 incorporated i the United Stetes of America, all subsidiory undenakings are incorporated i England

These companses in which the equity 15 held by o subsidiarny undertaking are marked with an astensk

Subsidiary underiakings

Achvity

Aschant Regional Limited *

KOS Media [Publishing) Limited*
Aschant Pani Limifed*

Aschant Ufe Limited *

Aschant Speciolst Limited*
Archant Diclogue Limited

The Buish Connection, Inc*

East Anghon Dally Ttmes Company Limited*
Archont Properhies Limited *
Aschont Holdings Limited
Archant Lifesiyle Pic*

Local Vouchers Limited *

Newspaper publishing
Dormard

Printing

Magozine pubhshing
Magozine publishing
Coniract publishing
Magazine distibulion
Plant ond much:nery lecrsmg
Properly

Holding company
Holding compary

Discount vouchers

www orchant co uk
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Notes to the finoncial siotements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

14, Investiments [continued)

The Group's acquisthons dunng the year were

4
i

Date of acquisthon

23 Aprd 2010

28 May 2010

21 June 2010

25 October 2010
21 December 2010

Company or asset acquired

Explorer magazine

Retuement lifeshle Show

KOS Media [Publishing) Limited
Wie Valley Lfe mogazine
Local Vouchers Limited

The aggregate consideration for these acquisthons was £582,000, which was satisfied in cash

15. Stacles
I
‘ Group Caompany
2010 2000 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 | £000
! |
Raw matenals , 1,368 l 1,319 i -
Fimshed goods and goods for resole ; 23 | 28 - -
T T ot Tt m T oo SR e i
F 1,391 l 1,347 -! -
16. Debtors
I Group Company
2010 2000 2010 2000
Note | £000 £000 £000 £000
Due within one year
Trode debiors 15,786 15,145 . -
Amounts owed by subsidiory underiokings ' - - 942 | 631
Other debtors l 1,342 202 -
Prepayments and accrued income I 2,458 2,581 7 27
Corparation tox recoverable . ! 1,042 630
| 19,586 . 18,528 1,991 1,308
- — o ——— o ——— —— ——— e s ——— e ——————— ‘-_—1k — - S A—{w—v—_—_—_
i
Dve after more than one yeor l l |
Amounts owed by subsidiory undertokings - - 211,082 L 213,226
Deferred tox sset 81d) s900 | 7064 | 3 47
' . .
f 5900 | 7,164 l 211,065 213,273
| S R S - T T |
Total debiors 25,486 25692 1 213,056 214,581
b . : ;
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Notes o the finoncial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

17. Cush ot bank and in hond

Group Company
2010 2000 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 L £000
!
Cash at bonk and in hand 1,779 4,286 12 | Q@
18, Creditors: amounis falling due within one vear
Group Compary
2010 2009 2010 i 2009
Note g000 ! £000 £000 £000
l
Bank loans and overdrafts 20 1,786 ! 201 3,210 o0i
Trade creditars 3,872 | 3297 -
Amounts owed 1o subsidiory undertakengs . . - ' M
Corporation tax 6,431 J 8,424 - -
Tox and socal secunly 2,656 | 2,296 - -
Other craditors 1,454 1,414 5 -
Accruols and deferred meome 7,021 7,843 1,079 1,738
Subsenphons in advance 3,857 1 3,747 | -
e e - — _———— - _—— L_ —_— —_—
27,077 | 27928 4,294 ! 2,750
19. Credrors: amounts faling due after more than one year
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 ! 2009
Note £000 £000 £000 | 2000
|
Bank loans and faciliies 20 23,250 30,202 23,250 1‘ 30902
Loans — film finance 1,613 1,613 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary underiakings T . 283,990 277,175
24,863 32515 307,240 308,077

The loans relanng to film finance are mierest free and repayoble out of film receipts pror to 14 December 2013 They are secured by charges on
the copynght and physical matenal reketing 1o two films owned by the Group ond shown under thal heading 1 ntangible fixed assets

All ather liobilites mature between two and five years
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Notes fo the financial siciements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

20. Ban't loans, overdrafis and facilities
The bonk loans, overdiafts and facilites compnse

Amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 ! 2009
£000 £000 £000 | £000
Bank overdrafts - =] 1,424 Q01
Employee Beneht Tust overdralt 1,786 - 1,786 -
1,786 901 3,210 ' %01
Amounts feling due after more then one year
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 i 2009
£000 £000 £000 ! £000
Term revolving advances facility 24,000 32000 24,000 ! 32,000
Arrcngement fees (750) {1,098} (750) : [1,098)
' ;
23,250 30,902 '[ 23,250 | 30,902
]

The Employee Benefit Tust has o bonk overdrafi facility of £2,000,000 and any overdraft under this facility s guaronteed by the Company
The Group has o bank overdraft facility of £5,000,000 and any overdrofts under this focility are secured by a floeting charge over the
undertaking, property, assets and nghis of certain companies in the Group, together with cross guarantees fom cerlain compenies in the Group

The Company hos a term revolving advances facilty expinng in Apnl 2013 for a maximum amount of £45,000,000 The maximum amount
on this facility was reduced fo £42,000,000 on 10 January 2011, and will be further reduced to £36,000,000 by equal annual reduciions
on | January in each of years 2012 and 2013 The undrown commited focilites availlable at 31 December, in respect of which all condiions
precedent had been met at thot date, were £26,000,000 (2009 £17,000,000) Provided that the Company continues to comply with the
condiions of the faciliy, the Company has the nght o drow down sums up 1o the amouni of the focilily for penods ending on or before the
expiry dote

Sums drawn down under the revolng advences focility are secured by o floating charge over the undertoking, property, assets and nghts of
ceriain companies in the Group, together with ¢ross guarantees fram cerfain companies in the Group

The bank loons ond overdrafts are shown net of bank facility arangement fees of £750,000 (2009 £1,098 000
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Notes 1o the financial statemenis

for the year ended 31 December 2010

21. Provisions for habilitics

The movements in provisions ore as follows

! Dilapidations longterm Other Totol
and onerous [ incenine plan provisions |
' leases i
Group . £000 £000 £000 | £000
A 31 December 2009 2,152 242 672 3,066
Ansing dunng the yeor 192 i - 653 ' 845
Acquisiions 40 - - 40
Released i [169) {242) 156) (467)
Undised E {698) - {343) (1,041]
| t
At 31 December 2010 E 1,517 - 226 2,443
| .
Dilopdations longserm Cther Tota!
| and onerous | incenhve plan provisions
' lecses
Compoany £0C0 1 £000 £000 £000
t ;
Al 31 December 2009 l ! 242 500 742
Released - 1242] - [242)
i -+
At 31 December 2010 - - 500 500
!

Provisions for dilopidations are made m accordance with independent professional advice ¥ the leases rur to expiry, without ecrhier break clouses
bemg exercised, or without the leases being renewed for o further term, these obligations will mostly be setled within frve years, with the remaining
labilites due in vanous years up to 2036

Prowsions for onerous leases are made where the properties cancemed are vacant or subrlet at less than il rental, ond are based on assumptions obout the
Group's abilily io sublet the properiies through o lease expiry, or 1o ext the leases eary The bming of the setlement of these obligations 15 dependent on
the terminatien of the vanous leases 1f the leases un 1o expiry, of the exercise of eartier breck clauses, these obligaons will be setied within two yeors

The LongTerm Incentve Plan (LTIP) provision 1s calculoted 1o provide for the cost of share awards over each threeyear ITIP plon cycle The provision
15 measured by reference to the number of years that have elapsed in each plan cycle and the most recent view of performance against the growth
targets set ct the commencement of each plan cycle It 1s expected that any liokilites ansing under the LTIP would be settled within three years of
the balance sheet date

Chher provisions at 31 December 2010 compnse the prowision for amounis potennially payable under a ckim against the Company from the
hquidator of The Dublin Danly News Limited (DDN) of £500,000 jos disclosed i Note 31), and redundancy costs of £426,000 |t 1s expected
that the claim from the liquidator of DDN [which 15 being vigorously defended)] will be settied within two years, and the prowision for redundancy
costs will be setled wathin one year
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Notes fo the finoncial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

22. Colled-up share capstal

Authonsed Allotied, ealledrup ond hlly pard
i 2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 | £000 £000 | £000
i
Ordinary shores of 20p each '
14,361,822 1550ed {2009 - 14 298,494 1ssued) 3,650 | 3,650 2,872 2,860
Movement in ordinary shares
e L e Number
Shares in 1ssue at 1 Jonuary 2010 14,298,494
Shares issued for cosh on 21 Apnl 2010 at £5 25 fo the frustee of the Archant 2006 UTIP 56,308
Shares 1ssued for cash on 29 June 2C10 at £4 75 to a senior executive 1,000
pursuont to the authorty given by shareholders on 20 Apnl 2006
Shares 1ssued for cash on 31 August 2010 at £4 75 to o nomrexecutive 5,000
drreclor pursuant to the authonty given by shoreholders on 20 Apnl 2006
Shares 1ssued for cash on & September 2010 ai £4 75 to @ senior executive 520
pursuant to the authonly given by sharehelders on 20 Apnl 2006
Shares 1ssued for cash on 15 Seplember 2010 at £4 75 10 a senior executive 500
pursuant to the authonty gven by shoreholders on 20 Apal 2006
Shares in 1ssue ot 31 December 2010 14,361,822
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Notes 1o the finoncial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

23. Movements on reserves

l Group Company
£000 £000
Share premiwum E
At 31 December 2009 2,301 ! 2,301
Premium on shares 1ssued during the yeor 315 ; 315
At 31 December 2010 2616, 2,616
Revaluahon reserve 3
At 31 December 2009 301 -
Transfer lo profit end loss account 8 |
i
At 31 December 2010 293 ; -
Other reserves |
la) Special reserve ‘
At 31 December 2009 ond 2010 2,350 | -
1 -
v 1
I
(b} Copric! reserve | ‘
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 5,349 i .
[c) Own shares held |
At 31 December 2009 (3.882) F {3,882)
i
Purchose of own shares {665) | [665)
¥
At 31 December 2010 {4.547) [4,547)
Tatal other reserves
At 31 December 2010 3,172 (4,547)
At 31 December 2009 3.837 13,882)
Proht and loss account
At 31 December 2009 43,828 40,507
Proht from ordinary actnilies ofter toxation 4,455 1,116
Equity dmdends paid {2,766] 12,7606]
Other net recogmsed gains and losses in the year
Net movement m pension scheme deficit 2,582 -
Transfer Fom revaluahon reserve 8 -
At 31 December 2010 48,107 38,857
Total reserves
At 31 December 2010 54,188 | 36,926
As 31 December 2009 50,267 | 38,926
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Notes to the finoncial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

23. Movements on reserves [continued)

The special reserve was created in 2001 on the cancellation of the preference shares n Eastern Counties Newspapers Group Limited
{now Archant Regional Limiled) ["ECNG®| to protect the creditors of ECNG at the date of cancellation The special reserve can be released
to distnbutable reserves when all of the crediors of the Company at the date of cancellation have been satishied

The capital reserve comprises the balance of the share premium account in the former holding company on 1 March 2002

Own shares held comprise shares held by the trustees of the Empleyee Benefit Trust, the longTerm Incenfive Plan Trust and the Share Incentive Plan
Trust other than shares being held as a bare tustee Own shares held compnsed 540,692 shares with a nominal walue of 20p each, acquired
at on averoge cost of £8 41 each (2009 411,232 shares at £9 44) Purchases of shares in the Company by the EBT hove been funded by

a bank overdraft guaranieed by the Company and by a loon from the Company, and purchases by the LTIP and SIP hove been funded by cash
contnbulions from the Company and its subsidianes The trusts prowide sources of shares for use In connection with the SIP and LTIP

The nght io recerve dradends on the shares held by participants subject o the rules of the 2006 LTIP 1s precluded by the rules of the 2006 (TIP
and the nght to receve dvdends on other shares held by the trusts [other than the Share Incentive Plon Trust) has been waved by the trustee
Al expenses incurred by the trusts are setiled directly by the Company, ond charged i the financial siatements as incurred

The cumuletive amount of goodwall written off o the profit ane koss aceount at 31 December 2010 in the cansolidated fnancial statements 1s
£8,032,000 {2009 £8,032,000]

24. Financial nisk monagement
The Group currently denves its funding from share copital, retamed profils and bank borowing

The Group's objectives when managing copriol are to safeguard the Group's ability lo continue as @ going concern To mamtain or adjust the
capital stucture, the Group may adjust the dividends pard to shareholders, return capilal to shareholders or issue new shares

The Boaid retain responsibility for the agreement of the terms of ony new or renewed borrowing focdites Cash 1s manoaged centrally, and the
Group's freasury objective 1s lo minimise borrowing costs and maximise refumns on funds, subject to shortterm iquidily requirements

Financial nsk Factors
The Group's principal financial nisks ase quidity nsk and interest rote nsk The Group has imited exposure to foreign exchange nsk, credit nsk
and pnce nisk The Group's overall nsk strategy seeks 10 mnimise potential adverse effects on the Group's performance

Liquidity nisk

Liquidiy nsk results from having insufficient financial resourees to meet doytoday fuctuations in working capitol and cash flow Ulimate
responstbibly for iquidity nsk management rests with the Board The Group manages liquidity nisk by mainiaining adequate reserves, by regulary
monilanng forecast and actual cash flows and by mointaining a mixture of longterm and shorterm commitied facilites thot are designed to ensure
the Group has sufficient avarlable funds for operations and planned expansions At 31 December 2010, the Group had faciliies avalable
totalling £50m compnising the term focility in the amount of £45m ond an overdiah fociliy of £5m In addiion, the Employee Benefit Trust has an
overdraft facility of £2m The amount avaikoble under the term facility wes reduced to £42m on 10 Januory 2011 The overdralt facihites of the
Group and the EBT are repayable on demand, and the term focility expues in April 2013 £26m of these facilities remained undiawn at the year
end, and the Group considers that it should be able to operate within the level of its cument foclites

Interest rate nsk

The Group's exposure to the nisk of changes i morkel infesest rates relales prmarly to the Group's longerm debt obligations wath octing interest
rates, which debis are managed centrally

The Group has adopted o policy lo manage s interest cost using a mix of fixed and vanable rate debts, and plans lo keep at least 50% of 1
bormowngs ot fxed rates of mierest unil December 2011 To manage this, in January 2010 the Group entered into interest rate swaps on £15m
of the Group's debt obligatons, expinng in December 2011, 1o imit the Group's exposure to flucluctions in interest rates The Group has ogreed
to exchange, ot specihed intervals, the difference between fixed and voriable rate inferest amounts ealculated by reference o an agreed-upon
nahional principal omount
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Notes 1o the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

24, Finarncial nsk manugement (continved)

The Group's bank bortowing focilities contain financial covenants based on cash flow cover, nterest cover and the raho of debt to adjusted EBTDA
Throughout the year the Group manianed comfortable headroom agonst these covenants and is expected to do so in the foreseeable future

Foreign exchange nsk

The Group has a subsidiary undertoking in the United States of Amenca, whech 1s imited i seale and kargely selffinaneing  Therefore the Group
has no foreign currency barrowangs to hedge the foreign currency investmeni The Group has limited exposure to foreign exchange nsks with
respect to tronsactions in US dollars and the euro Due to the low exposure to cumency nsk, the Group does not use forward exchange controcts

Credit nsk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk The Group has implemented policies that require, where oppropncte, credit checks
on polenhal cuslomers before sales cammence

Price nsk
The Group has on agreement to source all newspnnt kom o single major supplier and negotiates prices for newsprint ot least 12 months
in advance

25, Fingncial instruments

tn Jonuary 2010, the Group entered info interest rate swaps on £15m of the Group’s debt obkgations, expinng in December 2011, 1o hmit
the Group's exposure 1o fluciughions n interest rates

26. Reconciliation of aperating profit fo operating cash flows

; 2010 2009
£000 £000
Operoling profi ' 8,172 3,180
Depreciaton of tangible fixed assets ; 4,720 4,974
Amortisahon of inlang:ble fixed assets 4,817 5,009
Impairment of intang ble fixed ossets 500 12,363
loss on disposals o tangible fixed assets 28 230
Profit and loss credit for share-based payment (242) {121}
{Increase)/decrease in stocks (44} 410
{Increase)/decrecse n debtars {490} 3178
Decreose in credilors {1,788) [3.851)
Movements In provisions 420 V,777
Payment against provisions {1,164) 1,527}
Adjustment for FRS 17 pension funding {1,204) 11,361}
Adusiment for FRS 17 reduction in defined benefit pension labiliies - 110,000}
Cosh flow from operating acivities 13,725 14,261
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Notes o the financial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

27. Analysis of cash flows for headings nefted in the cash fow statement

2010 2009
£000 £000
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest receved 3 226
Dridends receved 1 1
Interest pad {1,233) {628)
(1,229) [401)
Capital expendiure and hinancial investment 1
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,439] ‘ 12,6272]
Sale of langtble fixed ossels 10 11
|
(2,429) | 2,611)
Acquisihons and disposals
Investmenis in associate - 1300)
Acquisihons of businesses (582) -
Bank and cosh balances acquired with businesses 46
(536) [300)
Financing !
Issue of ordinary share capital 327 ! -
Repayment of loan under bank revohing credit facility {8,000) I [2,000]
ssue costs of new banking focilities [61) : {1,133}
Caprtal element of hnance lease rentol payments (8) I -
Purchose of own shares {665) | 1133)
e e et o e e e S - j —
{8,407) i 13,260)
28. Annlys:s of net debt
. Al ; Cash flow Other | At
Janvary nomrcash t December
2000 | changes 2010
| £000 £000 £000 } £000
Cash ot bank and i hand P 4283 2,504) | 1,779
Bank overdrafts |9o1 ! 901 - | -
£BT bank balances 3 {1,789} C {1,786)
T i
Bank and cash balances 3,385 ! {3,392) [ 7
Bank loans 132,000} 8,000 {24,000}
Finance leases L 8 {8 | -
loon 1ssue costs 1,098 ; 61 1409) | 750
¥
Total (27 517) | 4677 17) | [23,257)
: i
74
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Notes io the finoncial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

29, Cupirel commitments

Approved future capitol expenditure ot 31 December for which no prowision has been made in these financiol siatements amounted o

| Group Company
2010 | 2009 2010 | 2009
£000 I £000 £000 i £000
I B
Contracted for but not provided 9 231 . l

30. Commitments under operating leases

At 31 December onnual commitments under norreancellable operating leases were as follows

l land and buildings ! Plant, equipment and vehicles

2010 2009 2010 2009

Group £000 i £000 | £000 £000
T I
Operating leases which expie | i

Within one year | 383 155 i 391 305

Within two to five yeors 1,198 | 1,252 | 980 1,071

Over hve years 102 : 398 l - -
l

1,683 1.805 . 1,373 1,376

31. Contingent livbilities

In July 2003 The Dublin Daily News bimiled ["DDIN), a newspaper pukhshing eompany based in Dublin in which the Group had token o 20%
holding, cecsed rading

The Company received a statement of claim dated 8 February 2008 from the liquidetor of DDN seeking judgement in the sum of approximately
500,000 euras plus casts in relation to nomcash consideration for the 1ssue to the Company of shares i DON The Company continues 1o
vigorously defend the claim, but ofter toking legol advice has considered it prudent to make provision for what it believes 1o be a foir and
reasonable setlement

32. Related party transactions

For the penod up to 21 June 2010, Archant Print Limitad provided newspoper printing services with & sales value of £270,000 (2009 full year
£677,000), on an am’s length basts, for the Group's former associate disclosed at Note 14

33. Post balonce sheet events
In February 2011, Iollowing a review of our prnt oetvites and on expected 20% increase i the prce of newsprint, we announced a consulialion

with our employees at the Thorpe Prnt Centre over o proposal 1o outsource the prnting of our weekly newspaper tiles published outside Norfolk
and Suffolk to o thirdparty printer
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

34, Penston schemes

The principal pension scheme operoted by the Group is the Archont Pension & Life Assurance Scheme [the PLAS'), a hybnd scheme wath a
defined benefi section {“the PLAS DBS™) which includes a senior management section {“the PLAS SMS”} and o defined coninbution sechon
("the PLAS DCS")

The Group also pays ex gratia pensions on an unfunded basis to certain former emgloyees and their dependents and, accordingly, provides for
this hability in the knanciol stotements The prowisions for unfunded pension liakilites have been made in accordance with actuanal advice

From 1 May 2009 the Group introduced a salary sacrifice arrangement which had the effect of convering both the PLAS DBS and PLAS DCS into
a noncontributory scheme with the employee pension contnbutions beng replaced by addional employer contnbutions, known as SMART Pension
coninbutions, and there 15 an equivelent reduction in the member's contractual pay

Members of the scheme at 1 May 2009 were cutomatically enrolled info the SMART Pension arrangement, urless they chose to opt out

Defined contnbution section

The group provides refirement benefils to approxmately 42% of current employees through the defined contnbution scheme For the PLAS DCS the
pension cost represents contbutons payable by the Group to this section, the Group matching members' contbutions fwhich are permitted in the
range of 2% to 7% of pensionable earmings) ona 1 1 basis, excepl in the case of cerlain senior managers, where the employer's cantnbution 1s
at enhanced mulhples

Addinienally, the Group made payments fo the PLAS DCS equal to 1 4% (2009 1 4%) of pensionable earnings n respect of insured death
berefis, expenses and benefit guarantees

! 2010 , 2009
Contnbuhions pend 1n the year £000 ! £000
I —- - —— e e ——
Charged in the profit and loss account ; 2,462 2,168
Becember 2010 contrbutions paid in Janusary 2011 ' [213) -
December 2009 contribuhons paid in January 2010 : 207 r {207}
December 2008 contnbuhons pad in Jonuary 2009 - 256
Contnbutions paid in the year 2,456 2,07

These contnbutions include SMART Pension contributions from 1 May 2009

Defined benefit saction

The pension scheme ossets are held in a separate trusteeadminisiered fund 1o meet longterm pension liabilites to past and present employees
The directors of the Trustee Compary fthe “Trustee Birectors”] of the fund are required to act in the best mterest of the fund’s beneficiones The
manner of appontment of the Trystee Directors 1o the Trustee Compony 1s determined by the scheme’s trust documentation The Group has a policy
that at least anerthird of all Tsstee Directors should be nominated by members of the fund, including ot least ane member by current pensioners

The Group prevides retirement benelts to some of its former and approximotely 1% of curent employees thiough o defined benefit scheme
The level of retirement benefit 1s based pnncipally on pensionable salary eamed in the last thiee years of employment

The liobilites of the defined benefit scheme are measured by discouniing the best esimate of future cash flows to be poid out by the scheme using
the projected unit method This amaunt 1s reflected in the deficit in the bolance shee! The projected umit method 15 an accrued benefits valuation
method in which the scheme hobilihes make allowance for projected eamings The accumulated benefit obhigaton 1s an actuanal measure of the
present volue of benefits for servce alieady rendered but differs from the projected umit method 1n that i nchwdes no assumption for future: salary
increases Al the balance sheet date the accumuloted benefit obligotion was £131 2m {2009 £125 9m)

An glternative method of valuation 1o the projected unit method 15 o sobency basis, often estmated using the cost of buying out beneits at the
belance sheet date with a suilable insurer This omount represents the amount that would be required to setffle the scheme licbilites ot the bolance
sheet dale rather than the Group coniinuing o fund the ongoing hobilities of the scheme The Group estimates the amount required o settle the
scheme’s labilites at the balance sheet dote 1s £90m (2009 £100m)
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Notes 1o the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

34. Pension schemes [continued)

The most recently completed trenmiol actuanial veluation waos comed out as at 1 January 2008 by an indspendent aciuory for the then trusiees of
the scheme The hnoncial assumphions cdopted thot have the most significant effect on the valuation were

%
Annual rate of increase n
Prices 31
Salanes 40
Pensions in payment 10
Investment return — Pre-retirement 65
= Postreirement 53
At the vme of the actuonal valuchion the assets of the scheme, which are held separately from those of the Group, were
Moarket value of the scheme’s ossets £140 6m
Present value of the scheme’s hahilines £148 6m
Actuanc| dehicit £8 Om
Actuanol value as a proporhon of accrued benefit 94 6%

Coninbutions to the defined benefit section are determined with the advice of iIndependent actucnies, using the projected unit method

Reduction in defined benefit pension liabilihes

Dunng 200% the Company undertook a review of its defined benefit pension provision As a result of this review, chonges were made o the
definition of Final Pensionable Solary such that Pensionable Earnings used 1o calculate Final Salory pension benefiis become capped at the
employees’ Pensionable Eomings in the 12 months pnor o 1 December 2009 Any pension benefits on Pensionable Earings above the
capped level of Pensionable Earnings are provided through @ defined contrbution arrangement Members of the defined benefit section continue
to accrue addmonal pensionable years of service af thewr current acerual rate for the purpose of calculating pension beneft

The defined contnbution element constitutes a “loprup fund” within the defined benefi section Members are able to pay contributions infe the fund
ol o rate between 2% and 7% of ther Pensionable Earnings in excess of the 1 December 2009 Cap ond the Company contrbutes an equal
amount, except In the cose of cerfam senior managers where the employer's ceoninbuhon 15 ot enhanced mulples

As a result of the reduction in the defined benefit pension liabilities, an exceptional credit of £10,000,000 in respect of past service was
recognised in the profit and loss account for 2009

Contribution rates for final salary pensions as a percentoge of pensionable earnings, which are defermined on the basis of the most recent
actvanal valuation, were

- AAS DBS PAS SMS
| Member T Company Member* Company
| % % % | %
| | '
From 1 Jonuary 2006 ! 70 | 166 70 ; 341
From | Jonuary 2009 ! 70| 173 70 | 418
from | December 2009 i 70| 91, 70 326

*SMART Pensions fram 1 May 2009 unless member opted out of salary sacnfice

Followang the actuanal valuotion as at 1 Jonuary 2008, the Company has ogreed 1o pay a shorfall recovery payment of of least £1 45m
per annum for the years 2009 to 2015 mchisve The Company paid on additional cash coninbution of £1 45m into the PLAS i 2010
{2009 £1 45m)
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Notes to the financial siaiemenis

for the year ended 31 December 2010

34. Pension schomes {continued)

In 2003 the Group decided that future increases to the discrelionory element of pensions in payment [1 e that for pre-Apnl 1997 service other
than, In respect of porticipants over stote relirement age, the Guaronteed Minimum Pension element of any such pension} would be funded either
by the Company or out of fund surpluses The Company made no such payments dunng the year (2009 £all]

Following the actuanal valuation os ot 1 January 2008 the Group ogreed the following funding objectives with the then tustees

1 To retum the ongoing funding level of the scheme io 100% of the projected post senvice labiliies within a period of exght years from the
valuahon as at 1 January 2008

2 To maintain funding ct least at this level ance the funding level of the scheme 15 100% of the projected post service kabilities

The Group and the Trustee Direciors moniar the funding level on o quartery basis The next inennial valuaton is due to be completed as at
1 January 2011 The deficit and regular contabutions will be recakeulated as part of this valuation

The levels of coninbutions are based on the current service costs and the expected future cash flows of the defined benefi scheme The Group
estmgtes the present value of the duration of scheme liobilihes on average fall due over 17 years

On 16 January 2009 the Company entered info a Deed of Guarantee (“the Guaraniee”} wath the then trusiees of the Archont Pension & Life
Assurance Scheme {"the Scheme®) wherebyy the Company guoranteed the punctual performonce of all obligations under the Scheme of the
Scheme's patipoling employers Demonds under the Guorantee ore subject to a cop equal 1o the defoulting porticipating employer’s share of the
Scheme’s deficit on the angoing, schemespecific funding basis, as calculated by the Scheme octuary The Guarantee also indemnifies the Scheme
agasnst any loss or liobility suftered f any payment abligation under the Guarantee 1s, or becomes, unenforceable The Guarantee will remain in
place untl the Scheme becomes fully funded on the schemespecific funding basis, as advised by the Scheme actuary The then trusiees undertack
io take the Guaraniee inio considerahion when seting the period of the Scheme's deficit recovery plan, following the 1 January 2008 actuandl
voluation, and setting the Scheme's investment strotegy

The benefits payable by the scheme are expecied to increase sieadily over ihe next 30 1o 35 years as octive and deferred members reach
refirement Afier that the benefits payable should diop off markedly os mortality rates ncrease

Pension disclosure under FRS 17
The following information shows the results of the Group's hybnd defined benefit and defined contribution pension scheme in the UK

A full octuanal valuation was camed out for the PLAS as ot | January 2008

The actuariol valuation has been updated to 31 December 2010 by an independent actuary The amcunts shown ot 31 December were
measured 1n accordance with FRS 17

Assumptions
The major assumphons used by the actuary in updating the valuation were

i 2010 2009 | 2008
% % } %
; |

Rate of increcse n salories 000 ° 000 400

Rate of increase in deferred pensions 285 345 | 280

Rate of increase of pensions in poyment 335 ¢ 3as ! 280

Discount rate 546 ; 570 i 576

Infiation 335 | 345 280
Expected longterm rate of return |

Equities 682 i 690 i & 40

Bonds and gilt secunhes ‘ 541 560 | 540

Other I 050 050 1 200
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Notes fo the financial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

34. Pension schemes [coninued)

An nveshgahon of the scheme’s morlality experience over the previous three years was cemed out as port of the actvanal valuation ot
1 January 2008 The current assumed life expeciations on refrement ot oge 65 are

2010 , 2009
Retiring today ;

Males 24 : 224
Females 249 | 24 8
Retining in 20 years E

Males 252 251
Femnales 268 267

Sensitivity analysis of the prinapal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities
The sensirihes regarding the pnncipal assumgtions used to measure the scheme liabilives are set aut below

Assumphion

Discount rate

Change in assumption

Impoct on scheme labiites

Increase by O 25% ! Decrease by 4%
Rote of nflation Increose by O 25% Increose by 2%
Ufe expeciancy Increcse by 1 year | Increcse by 2%
Employee benefit obligations
The amounts recogrised in the balonce sheel are as follows
2010 2009
£000 £000
A - — - —_—— - S N
Present value of funded obligations 160,497 150,506
Fair volue of scheme assets [145,544) (130,933)
14,953 19,573
Present valve of unfunded obligations 823 902
Dekicit 15774 20,475
Related deferred 1ox asset ol 27% [2009 28%) (4,259) 15 733)
Net habilty i 11,517 | 14,742

The unlunded cbligations are in respect of the ex gratia pensions paid by the Group The present value of these obligations has been calculated in
accordance wath FRS 17 by an independent actuary for the years ended 31 December 2007 through to 31 December 2010 Book value was
used at 31 December 2006 and in earlier years as o reasonable approximation of present value of those dates
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Notes 1o the financiol sictements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

34, Pension schemes Icontinued)

The amounts recognised 1n the profit and loss account cre os follows

! 2010 | 2000

£000 £000

Current service cost — DBS ’ 1,368 1,738

Current service cost — DCS 2,462 2168

Past service cost {reduchon in defined benefit pension habilihes) - {110,000)

Recognised in arnving ot operahing profit 3,830 16,094)

Interest an funded obligations 7,042 7,155

Interest on unfunded obligations 45 l 46

Expected refurn on scheme assels {6,652) i 15,327)
|

Other hinance expense 435 ! 1,874
]

Tote!) recogmised n the profit and loss occount 4,285 | 14,220)
H

Actual return on scheme assets 14,045 17 970

Changes in the present value of the scheme obligation are as follows
! 2010 ' 2009
£000 | £000 '
. . . _ — —- - — - s i

Opening scheme obligation — DBS and DCS | 150,506 146 478

Opening scheme obligation = unfunded obligations of present value | 902 | 255
T f

Total opening scheme obligation : 151,408 I 147,433

Current service cost - DBS 1,368 i 1,738

Current service cost — DCS 2,462 i 2,168

Reduction in defined benefit pension habahities - [10,000]

Interest cost 7,086 | 7.201

Actuanal losses = DBS 3,587 ] 6,790

Actuariol losses — unfunded obligations - 31

Contribulions by employees — DBS and DCS 76 i 619

Change in BC fund volyes 3,625 4,800

Benefis poid - DBS 6,694) | (6,460

Benefits paid = DCS | (1,475) | (2,776

Beneis poid — unfunded obligations (123} {130)
i

Closing scheme obligation 161,320 i 151,408

B2
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Nofes to the finoncial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

34, Pension schemaes (contnued)

The analysis of the actuonal [goms] and kesses in the DBS s as follows

2010 r 2000
£000 £000
Experience |gamns) and losses |
Changes in assumptions
Discount rate ‘ 4,466 | 1,300
Inflahon (879 5,490
3,587 1 679
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets ore cs follows
2010 ! 2009
£000 ! £000
Opening farr value of scheme assets 130,933 111,519
Expected return 6,652 5,327
Actuanol gains 7,393 ! 12,643
Coniributions by employer — DBS 2,572 3,099
Contributions by employer — DCS 2,462 2,168
Conliributions oy employer = unfunded obligations : 123 | 130
Coninbutrons by employees - DBS and DCS 76 ' 619
Chonge in DCS fund values 3,625 4,800
Benefits pad - DBS (6,694) ' 16,466)
Benehits paid ~ DCS [1,475) | 12,776}
Benefits paid - unfunded obligations 123} (130]
Closing farr volue of scheme assets 145,544 I 130,933

The Group expects fo contnbute between £2,400,000 and £2,600,000 o its defined benelit pension scheme 1n 201}

At 31 December 2010 the scheme ossets were invested in o diversified partfolia that consisted primanly of equity and debt secunties The: farr
value of the scheme assets s o percentoge of the total scheme assets and plonned allocations are set out below

Panned 2011 2010 2009
% % %
H

Global equities ‘ 50 . 51, &0

Absolte retum funds | 20 ! 20
Al stocks gilts ! - ¢
Corporate bonds 20 19 20
Hghypedbods S T o, o on
, 100 | 100 | 100

In conpnction with the Trustee Bireciors, the Group has pencdically conducted assetiability reviews for the Scheme These studies are used o
assist the Trustee Direciors and the Group to defermine the ophmal longderm asset allocation with regard to the stucture of iabilities wathin the
Scheme The results of the study are used to assist the Trustee: Directors i manoging the volatlity in the undedyng investment perfarmance and
nsk of o significant increase in the Scheme deficit by providing information used to determine the Scheme'’s investment strotegy

The aim 1s 1o hold & globally diversitied portiolio of equities, with a target of 60% of equiies being held in UK companies and 40% in

overseas equities
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Notes to the finoncial siatements

for the year ended 31 December 2010

34. Pension schemes icontinued)

2010 2009
Cumulative octuanal gains and losses recogrised in the Group statement of total recogmsed gains and losses {STRGL) £000 £000
Actual retum less expected retum on assets l 7,393 12 643
Changes in assumptions {3,587} {6,821
Net actuanal goins recognised 1n STRGL 3,806 5,822
At the beginning of the year (28,772) 134,594)
At the end of the yeor (24,966) {28,772
| 2010 2009
Analysis of the movement in the balance sheet liabality | £000 £000
1
Shortfall in scheme of the beginning of the year {20,475) 135,914
Movemenis
Total recognised in the profit and loss cecount ! (4,264) | 4,220
Employer connbxtions ~ DBS and DCS I 5,034 5,267
Employer connbutions - unlunded obligations 123 130
Actorial goins 3,806 5,822
Shortfall in scheme ot the end of the year (15,776 {20,475)
Amounis for the current and previous four years are as follows
, 2010 2009 208 | 2007 2006
. £000 £O00 | £000 £000 | £000
Present value of funded obligations ¢ 160,497 150,506 E 146,478 | 146,344 148,703
Present,/bock vale of unfunded obligations | 823 602 | 955 969 1,128
| E
Total scheme obligatians boo161,320 151,408 | 147433 147,313 140,831
Scheme assets ! 145,544 130,933 i H11,519 138,714 132,324
I — — i =
Deheut ; {15,774 {20,475} | (35914) {8,599) (17,507
e ? T
Experence adjustments on pension scheme liabdies ! . 5,055 | . 649
Expenence adjustments on pension scheme assels i 7,393 12,643 1 127,097) | i1,100] E 1,384
;
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Five-year financial summary

L 2010 2000 | 2008 | 2007 2006
' £000 £000 ! €000 | £000 £000
1 t
Turnover 139,253 141,873 } 175,115 ! 193,783 191,040
Operating profit before amortisahon and excephional ttems ! 14,752 15,116 1‘ 22,162 f 30,451 29,451
Retorn on sales 10 6% 106% | 127% . i57% 15 4%
t
Share of operating results of ossociotes 1202) {196} (158} {315 {291}
Amomsation ond impairment of intangible fixed assets {4,617} 15,009} 7,067) ¢ 8,560) (8,609}
Exceplional mcome ' ] 10,000 - 3,757 548
Excephonal costs {1,963) 116,927] 138,087 130,932) | 11321}
Income from nvestments, nierest payable ond FRS 17 financing costs {2,224) 2,310] (2 065) 12,515 (3,352)
Profu/(loss) before tax 5726 674 125,215) 8.114) | 16,426
Tax | {1,271) {3,848 {(t 112) 2055 | 8,720
Effectve rate of taxation i 22 2% 5709% 44% {25 3%) : 53 1%
Proht/(loss) after tax | 4,455 {3,174} {24 098} 110,169) ; 7. 706
Dvidends paid dunng the year 2,766 2802 | 5608 5,412 ] 5,316
Profit/[loss) after tox and equity dvidends paid 1,689 {5,976} E 129,706) 115,581 2,390
1 1
Basic earnings per share 320p {22 8p} ! 1172 5p) (72 4p] 54 5p
Diluted eomnings per share Nip {22 8pl E {172 5p) (72 4p] | 53 6p
Adjusted earnings per share 64 Op 64 7p E 105 1p | 140 0p 133 1p
Dividends declared per share! 201p 201p | 264p | 40 1p 38 1p
Drndend cover [bosed an dwidends declared and odjusted EPS) : 32 32 i 40 35 | 35
Net assels ¢ 57,060 53,127 55043 | 105174 ' 110,202
Net debs | (23257) | (27517 | (34621) | (36940) | (54,827
e ' |
Exceptional items ‘ |
Reduction in defined benefit pension habilifies E 10,000 -
Profts on dispesal of Scotish newspoper aperations : - 3,757 -
Prohi on disposal of freehold property E . 548
i
Totol excephonal income: H - 10,000 3,757 548
Impairment of intangible fixed assets % {500} 112,363} 133615 (30,000|
Impaiement of goodwill in ossociate ' - - (5001 -
Imporment of tangible fixed ossets ! . - 1477} . ‘ .
Reorganisction and resiructunng costs (1,484) [3,991) 13,495) 1932 (1,321)
Costs incured to reduce defined benefit pension hobdities 21 1330) - - ;
Refinoncing costs - 243) i - '
, e e
Tota! exceptional costs | 1,963) 116,927] ! [38,087) | (30,932) | 1,321)

12009 tncludes the 2010 fust intenm dwidend in place of the final dwedend for 2009
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTCE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at The Conference Centre at the John Innes
Centre on Wednesday 13 Apnl 2011 at noen, to consrder and if

(k) the maximum amount of such shares thot moy be allotted under

this authanty 15 shares having an aggregote nominal valve of
£20,000,

thought fit, pass the following resolutions

Ordinary resolutions

1

6

THAT the reports of the directors and audrters and the cudited
financial stalements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2010 be and are hereby receved

THAT M B MeCarthy refinng as o directer of this meeting be
reelected os a dwector of the Cempany

THAT Mr P Troughton refining as o director at tis meeiing be
reelected as a director of the Company

THAT Mr R Whatt retimng as a director af this meeting be
reelected cs a direcior of the Company

THAT Emst & Young LLP be reappointed as audiors for the
Compary at @ fee to be fixed by the directors

THAT @ fnal dvidend of 13 7p per share be pad

Special resolutions

7

86

THAT the Archant 2011 longTerm Incentive Plen [the “2011 LTIP7),
whose principal terms are summarised in Appendix 1 o the
Chairman'’s letter, be and 1s hereby approved and adopled AND
THAT the Directars be and are hereby authorsed 1o do all things
necessary to put the 2011 LIP into effect

THAT the les of the Archant Shore Incentive Plan be omended in
the manner set out in Appendix 2 o the Charman’s letter, such
omendments to be effective from the date on which the Board of
Directors o a duly constiuted committee thereof adopts such
omendments

THAT, subject to the passing of resohution 10, the direciors be
genemlly and unconditionally authonsed pursuant to sechon 551
of the Compames Act 2006 {the *Act’) 1o exercrse all the powers
of the Company to dllot ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company to any director and/or any semior employee of the
Compeny or any of ifs subsidiary companies who does not hold
any shores n the copal of the company upon such terms as the
direciors shall at their complete discretion detesmine provided that

fa) the maxsmum aggregate emount of such shares that may be
allotted under fivs cuthorily to amy indvdual 15 shares having an
aggregate nomingl value of £2,000,

{c] the pnce at which such shares shall be alloited shall be not less
than their market value as defermined by the directors taking nto
account all matenal foctors of which they are aware at the ime
of alloiment, ond

{d} this authony shall, unless i 1s [prior o its expiry} duly revoked or
varied or 15 renewed, expire on the date five years following the
date of this reselution, save thal the Company may, before such
expiry, moke an offer or agreement which will or may require such
shares 1o be alloted after such expury

10 THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 9, the direciors be
generally empowered pursuant o sechion 569 of the Componies
Act 2006 (the *Act”) to allot equily secunties (within the meaning
of secton 560 of the Act) pursuant fo authonly conferred by
Resoluion @ as if secion 561 of the Act and the preemption
provisions of the Company’s Athcles of Association did not apply
to such allotment

11 THAT for the puposes only of the allotment of ordinary shares in
the capita! of the Company pursuont fo an elechon mode by the
holders of such ordinary shares to recenve oddiional ordinary
shares in accordance with Adicle 132 of the Company's Articles
of Associahion, the direcicrs of the Company are generally and
conditonally authonsed in accordance with section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) and in subshiution for any
exising authorty conferred on them 1o allet erdnary shares in the
Company up to on oggregate nominal amount of £790,000,
such authornty to continue for a pered of five years from the dote
on which this resolution 15 passed, and further that, pursuant to ond
in accordance with sechon 570 of the Act, sechion 561 of the Act
shall not apply 1o any allotment pursuant to that authonly

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
JO Ellison

Secrefory

4 March 2011

Archant Lirited
Prospect House
Rouen Road
Normch NR1 1RE

Telephone 01603 772772

Focsimle 01603 613276
Regstered number 4126997
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notes

Members are entilled o appont a proxy to exercise oll or any
of therr aghts lo attend and 1o speck and vote on therr beholf
at the Annual General Meeting [*AGM”) A shareholder may
appoini more than one proxy 1n relation to the AGM provided
thal each proxy 15 apponted to exercise the nghts attached to
a different share or shares held by that shareholder A proxy
need not be o shareholder of the Company A proxy form
which may be used to make such appomimeni and give proxy
insiuchions occompanies this notice |f you do not have a proxy
form and believe that you should have one, or if you require

odditonal forms, plecse coniact the Company Secretary on
01603 772810

To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appoiniing o proxy
must be receved by post or [dunng normal business hours only)
by hand at Equinity Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Rood,
lancing, West Sussex BN 671 no later than noon on

Monday 11 Apnl 2011

The retum of a completed proxy form will not prevent o
shareholder atending the AGM and voting in person should
they wish to do so

To be entifled o attend and vole of the AGM land for the purpose
of the determination by the Company of the vates they may cast),
shareholders must be registered in the register of members of the
Company at &pm on Mondoy 11 Aprl 2011 {or, in the ever

of any adjoumment, at &pm on the date which 1s two days
before the ime of the adjourned meeting) Changes 1o the reguster
of members after the relevant deadline shall be disregarded n
determining the nghts of any person 1o atiend and vole ot the AGM

A copy of the draft form of the rules of the Archant 2011 long-
Term Incentive Plan, as they are proposed, will be available for
inspechon ot the Company's registered office durning normal
business hours on any weekday (Soturdays, Sundoys and public
holidoys excepted) from the date of dispatch of the notice
convening the AGM unill the close of the meeting This docurment
will also be avallable for inspection at the venue of the AGM for
at least 1.5 minutes before the start of the AGM unh! its close

A copy of the droft form of the nules of the Archant Share Incenirve
Plan, as they are proposed to be omended, will be availoble

for nspection at the Company's regrstered office dunng normal
business hours on any weekday {Saturdays, Sundays ond public
holidays excepied) from the date of dispatch of the notice
comvening the AGM untll the close of the meeting This document
will alse be avaksble for inspection ot the venue of the AGM for
at least 15 minutes before the slart of the AGM until its close
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Financial calendaor

for year to 31 December 2011

28 March “On record” dote for 2010 final dvdend
13 Apnl Annual Genercl Meeling

19 Aprl Payment of 2010 final dvidend

2 July Hclf year end

3 August Intenm statement

16 September "On record” date for 2011 intenm dividend
30 September Payment of 2011 intenm ddend
REGISTRARS

Shareholders with questions regarding therr shareholdng should contacs the Company's registrars

Ecyunuh Limtted
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing
BNGS 6DA

0871 384 2641

Shareholders may occess details of sheir shareheldings via the internet To register for the service go fo www shareview co uk

Produced and designed for Aschant Limited by
Archant Diglogue Limited

Prospect House

Rouen Road

Norwach NR1 |RE

Tel 01603 664242
mail@archanidialogue co vk

wavw archantdiologue co vk

Photogrophy by Dawvid Burton
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NUJ Regional Press Awards 2010

Columnist of the Year
STaaA BIGGS
Norwich Evering News

EDF Energy East of England
Media Awards 2010

Datly Newspoper of the Year
EASTERN DALY PRESS

Website of the Year
EpP24 CO UK

Front Page of the Year

NORWICH EVENING NEWS

for its "Defeated Clorke heads for exit” front page
teatunng photographer Bill Srith’s bullant picture of
a deleated former Home Secretary and Norwich MP
Charles Clarke leaving the Generol Elechon count

Designer of the Year
JOE RINGER
Creotive designer

Archant Awards 2010

Employee of the Year
AlAN DOY
Archant Production Services

Team of the Year
AUDIENCE GROWTH TEAM
Archant Norfok Distribution Team

Commercial Person of the Year
RHIANNON WRAGG
Ad director, south east Archant Life

Editorial Person of the Year
KATIE DAVIES
News editor Ham&High, Archant london

Support Person of the Year
PAUL BRENNAN
Service suppon manager, Archant Information Systems

Newcomer of the Year
MARC BLOOMFIEID
Ad drrector, lree tilles, Archant Life

Unsung Hero of the Year
NICHOLAS HITCHENS
Reporter - Grovesend, Archant London

Customer Service Person of the Year
Z0E FRANCISCOX
Edienal diveclor, Archant Dialogue

Innovation or New Launch of the Yeor — Interncl
ADFLOWY
Archant Information Systems

Innovahon or New Launch of the Year - External
SUBSCRIPFTHONSAVE CO UK
Archant Specialist

Product or Service of the Year
EAST ANGHAN DAY TIMES SATURDAY EDITIOR
Archant Suffolk

Green Champion of the Year
KARON WATIS
Cewvion, Archant Norfolk




